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LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT

xperts advise their clients to have a goal and then follow a plan to reach
thac goal. Unired Bank has put chis advice into practice in working with
aur custamers for aver onc hundred years, We work every day to ensure

United Bank is the best choice for customer’s financia) needs to help them
achieve their financial goals. The Righe Path. The Right Bank.

During those on¢ hundred and four years, there have been times of prosperity and economic challenge.
Throughourt chese times, United Bank has been there working with customers to stay on che righr parch.
This past year was one of economic challenges. In response to these challenges, the Federal Reserve re-
duced interest rares to stimulate the economy. These rmte reductions resulted in the bank's nec interest
margin being reduced and this compression combined with a slowing market, produced financial results
far che bank thar were less than desirable.

Several years ago, we established a vision for United Bank. This involved identifying and expanding into
cemmunitics that would valuc a strang, progressive, community bank; a bank that was focused on gen-

c'mnonal.rcl:monfhlps; markets needing innovative solu- WE WORK EVERY DAY TO ENSURE
tions delivered with a personal touch. Where customers

were not numbers and bankers could help them not just UNITED BANK 1S THE BEST CHOICE FOR
take orders. This strategy involved expanding into those CUSTOMER’S FINANCIAL NEEDS TO HELP

markets with facilides thar macched the community in THEM ACHIEVE THEIR FINANCIAL GOALS.
appearance and services, This past year we made major

strides toward thosc goals. The bank expanded its footprine by opening five offices in Baldwin County,

Alabama and Santa Rosa County, Florida. This growth was not undertaken without hard work and

expense, During the year we completed construction, staffed and opened those offices. We believe hav-

ing a long-term view to these investments will benefic United Bank for many years to come despire the

financial impact on this past year.

Part af thar vision was a realization that today we live, work and play nor just in our tawns but in a re-
gian, the coastal gareway region. This coastal gateway region reflects a range of lifestyles covering small
towns, farms, rural homes and emerging centers of growth. Geogrphically, ic is locaced inland from the
beaches but close enough to enjoy the benefits. lIts people have been here for generations or have come
here because of the artraction of our quality of life. While we may live in differcnt communities, we share
many of the same interests and values. United Bank’s mission is to detiver Anancial services to this coastal
gareway region and to be the Hometown Advantage in cach communiry ir serves.

Being that Hometown Advantage requires us ro approach cach day with an inquisitive mind. Canstantly
finding ways to improve, Listening to our customers and non-customers. Identifying areas of opportu-
nity. Empawering our team to bring salutions to our customers and delivering an our commitments.
If we do these things consistently, ic is our belief we will be rewarded with the opportunity to carn our
customer'’s business. We are blessed to be in this coastal gateway region, While chere are short-term chal-
lenges, there are positive long-term opportunities. Unired Bank has been here for one hundred and four
ycars for a reason. The Right Path. The Righr Bank.

Robert R. Jones, [11
President & CEO
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n wday’s Anancial world, customers
need more expertisc and service than
cver. For. in their lives and businesses,
a sound fnancial fooring is the road
map for success.

“The coastal gateway region is
changing by the day. yet we're a bank whose values seem
timeless. A bank where innovation and tradition exist side
by side, without contradicrion. In short, the values of the
coastal gateway region arc the same values thar you'll ind
in United Bank. Where we keep our vision fixed firmly
on the future, but preserve the very bese things abour our
century of service to you. For we are commitced to the
growth of our beloved region, along with the success of
you, our ncighbors and friends.

That's why, in a year of banking change, it’s good to
know rhat our values remain consrant: Service, anention
to customers, and partnership for grawth in the coaseal
gatcway region. For more than a century, we've renained
faithful to these ideals, resulting in our continued grawth
throughour the region—all while kecping what's best
about a local bank. So, at United Bank, we remain
dedicated to these values by providing both a hometown

approach to banking and the innevative Ainancial
products.

THE COASTAL GATEWAY’S FUTURE!
LEADING THE WAY,

Every day, every relationship is guided by a single
quesrion: “Are we doing everything passible for our
customer?” As a result, we continuously examine our
range of services, so that we can suggest che right solution
for customer needs. Further, in a changing world, we
conrinuously develop new financial products that help
customers in their life and work. From Personal Siorage
Compartments to Saver CDs, from telephone banking
to Interner banking to clectronic bill paying, customer
service and convenience is what drives our innovation day
afier day, year after year.

As we sec things however, the dick of a mouse or
a cash withdrawal from an ATM is no subititue for a
welcoming smile fram our staff, the sound of an acrual
person’s voice on the phone, or our helpful cuscomer
service representatives. OF course, at United Bank we are
proud to offer such automared services to help customers
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in their busy lives. Yer, at the same time, we also pride

ourselves on being “Your Hometown Advanrage.” So, no
matter what a customer’s needs may be, we're ready o
help them with a smile and a solution.

SECURITY AND SUCCESS. THE
PATH GOES THROUGH OUR L.OBBY.

With United Bank’s unmatched approach to customer
carc, cvery transaction begins with convenience — from
branch and ATM lacarions to preduct variery, helpful
staff and 50 much mare. These elements of our success
weren't just learned overnight, but through knowledge
and experience gained over a contury of service. As a
result, customer szrisfaction remains our time-honored
priority, as well as our distinct specialry.

Within the last few years, banks have gained the
abiliry to expand services beyond traditional loan,
savings, and deposit products to include a wider universe
of products such as investment and insurance offerings.
What's more, our improved |nterner capabilicies will
altow cusromers to make even speedier transactions while
tying all cheir accounts together for case of use, That, in
combinarion with our supesior BillPay scrvice, makes
United Bank the hometown favorite for those who prize
scrvice and innovation in their financial managemen.

In fact, United Bank's broad range of services
and products cover almost every conceivable facet of

our customer’s financial lives. From AgriFinance and
Moregage Services to Financial Services and our United i




Insurances Corporation subsidiary, United Bank offers a
true One Stop Shop when it comes to supetior financial

management.

PART OF THE REGION.
AND ITS ASPIRATIONS.

Location is not just a matter of real estare. Jris also a
matter of service to our customers. At Uniced Bank, we
are especially proud of our 2007 cxpansion, completing
our market footprint with ncw branches opened in Jay,
Summerdale, Pace, Milton, 2nd the Eastern Shore. As

a result, our offices cover a broad geographic area in
South Alabama and the Florida Panhandle. We offer
further customer convenience with both on-site ATMs
and satcllite ATMs in local businesses and hospitals.
Whar's mare, United Bank remains on top of the banking
revolution with our Internet Banking services, helping
customers monitor balances, transfer funds, and pay bills
electronically from anywhere in the world.

OUR INNOVATION. WITH YOU,
WHEREVER YOU GO.

While being accessible is important for United Bank
customers, it is just as vita} thar we offer products and
services that zre equally helpful in assisting customers
succeed in life. Our ongoing study of customer needs
has altowed Unired Bank to assemble a linc of banking,
insurance, and investment products to meet cvery
passible customer requirement. Freedom checking,
competitive certificates of deposits, and flexible loan
products are just a few of the many personal banking
products we offer customers.

Our array of business banking products is just as
impressive. While an assortment of business checking
accounts is the foundation of a quality business banking
relationship, United Bank’s partnermship with the U S.
Small Business Administration can prove invaluable in
helping businesses borrow through using SBA guaranties.
In fact, United Bank was recognized as one of the
most productive SBA Lending Institutions in the Gu!f
Coast Region in 2005 — a capabiliry haavily sought by
borrowers needing funds for hurricane damage repairs
thesc past few years. In additian, United Bank also offers
other valuable products, such as a commercial accounts

receivable plan to help businesses streamline cash Row, As
a resule of our ongoing cffore ro upgrade product lines,
both our personal and business banking customers can rely
an Unired Bank to supply all of their hinancial needs in 2
friendly and councous way.

As we grow, United Bank is well-positioned 10 bring
our unique customer service into other communiries
as well. Qur morto is “Your Homerown Advantage.” In
kecping with our brand, we believe strongly in communiry
investment. We do this in a host of ways, from spansoring
local schoa! events to supporting local civic chubs. United
Bank also works hard 10 keep the community informed.

Customer service. Canvenience. Community
involvement. Each in turn has contributed 1o our long
and successful tenure in the banking industry. As our
sccond century gets underway, we continue to perfect these
elements of service, all to ensure a long and successful

life together.
RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENTS.

At United Bank, we continue our strong growth throughout
our region. Yet, growth is more than opening new branches.
In the past year, we have ensured future growth by adding
new services to make us even more competitive, and even

more helpful to our existing customers.

New Branches. Our new branches in Jay, Summerdale,
Pace, and the Eastern Shore have compleced our plans
for immediate growth, allowing us to reach arcas with an
attractive demographic base. Our Milton branch is near
campletion and ground breaking for our Loxley branch is
fast approaching.

Banking That's Gaod For The Environment. With

online BillPay, Enterner banking, online account reports,
E-Statements, and more, we can greatly reduce the need for
paper in our daily transactions. After all, our environment is
the most important asset of all.

Ongoing Technological Improvement. We're never content
with the status quo at United Bank. That's why we're
investing in an ambitious upgrade of our online capabilicies,
allowing customers even greater convenience and access to
accounts for financial management, BillPay and more.
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UNITED BANCORFPORATION OF ALABAMA, INC.

DIRECTORS

Michael Andreoli

Partner, Robertson, Andreoli and Covington

Dale Ash
Controller, Pepsi-Cola Bottling Company
of Alabama and South Alabama Vending

L. Walter Crim
Owner, Central Farm Supply

Robert R. Jones, 111
President and Chicf Executive Officer, United Bank

William ]. Justice, PD
David D. Swift
President, Swift Supply Company, Inc.

Vice President, Swift Lumber Company, Inc.
Partner, Palustrus Products

J.W. Trawick
President, Trawick Building
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OFFICERS

William . Justice

Chairman

David D. Swift

Vice Chairman

Robert R. Jones, 111
President and Chief Executive Officer

Allen Jones
CFO/Treasurer

Tina Brooks

Secresary




UNITED BANK

DIRECTORS

OFFICERS

Michael Andreoli
Dale M. Ash

David A. Bagwell

L. Walter Crim

Leslie H. Cunningham
Chris Hornady
Robert R. Jones, 11
William ]. Justice, PD
Richard K. Maxwell
J. Carl Mixon

Bob W. Sawyer

David D. Swift

J.W. Trawick

Eddie L. Tullis

DIRECTORS EMERITUS

H. Leon Esneul
Claude S. Swift
John E. Conn, Jr.
John B. Swift, Jr.

Willie Saucer
James Witherington

Robert H. Maxwell

Robert R. Jones 111, President, CEQO

Allen Jones, SVE CFO
Alton McRee, SVP

Wayne Briske, SVP, Marker President

Mike Rogers, SVP Marker President

PD. Pollard, SVE Market President
Jonathan Dick, SVE Market President

Russ Banks, SVE Senior Commercial Lender

Bruce Trammell, SVP

Tina Brooks, Corporate Secretary
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UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA, INC.

BRANCHES

BALDWIN COUNTY

Bay Minette
404 Courthouse Square
Bay Minette, Alabama 36507
251.937.0052

615 McMeans Avenue
Bay Minette, Alabama 36307
251.937.0052

Foley
516 S. McKenzie Sureet
Foley, Alabama 36535
251.943,2020

Lillian
34354 U.S. Highway 98
Lillian, Alabama 36549
251.962.2010

@ www.unitedbank.com

Loxtey
2106 South Hickory Street
Loxley, Alabama 36551
251.964.7682

Magnolia Springs
12512 Magnalia Springs Hwy.
Foley, Alabama 36535
251.965.4040

Silverhill
21950 Broad Street
Silverhill, Alabama 36576
251.945.1902

Eastern Shore Centre
30500 Highway 181, Suite 100
Spanish Fort, AL 36326
251.621.1229

Summerdale
1015 Sourhwest Ist Street
Summerdale, Alabarma 36580
251.989.9070

-3 I UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA, INC.

ESCAMBIA COUNTY
Atmore
200 East Nashville Avenue
Armore, Alabama 36502
251.446.6100

Southside Station
164 Lindberg Avenue
Atmore, Alabama 36502
251.446.6100

Flomaton
705 Sidney E. Manning Boulevard
Flomaton, Alabama 36441
251.296.3493

MONROE COUNTY
Frisco City
4285 Bowden Screet
Frisco City, Alabama 36445
251.267.3161

Monarocville
1588 South Alabama Avenue
Monroeville, Alabama 36460
251.743.3161

SANTA ROSA COUNTY
Jay, Florida
14038 Alabama Street
Jay, Florida 32565
850.675.6000

Milton, Florida
5907 Berryhill Medical Pack Drive
Milton, Florida 32570
850.981.3352

Pace, Florida
3615 Highway 90
Pace, FL 32571
£50.994.2301




PRODUCTS & SERVICES'

PERSONAL CHECKING

Freedom Checking ~ Free Personal Checking Account with no balance
requirements and free debit card.

Advantage NOW ~ Intcrest Bearing Checking Account with minimum
balance requirement,

5-0H! Checking ~ Personal Checking Accaunt designed for Seniors. All
the offers of Freedom Checking with added benefits.

Tiered Monecy Market Account — A tiered account, with a competitive
interest rate, which gives you easy access to your money.

BUSINESS CHECKING

Small Business Checking — A checking account with che Small Business
owner in mind. Low monthly fee and special discounts on United
Bank’s Visa Business Credit Card and SBA Loan opportunities,

Business Check-For-Less — An cconomical approach to business
checking. Online Banking available to allow business owners fo
manage their account 24 hours a day.

Business Analysis Checking — Designed for businesses with average-
to-heavy monthly transaction levels. Analysis method used 10
determine pricing for this account, making it possible to waive

moenthly fecs.

SAVINGS TOOLS

Certificates of Deposit {CD) — A variety of terms with
competitive rates,

Individual Retirement Account (IRA) — Save for your retirement today.
Traditional, Roth, and Educational IRAs available.

Laddered CDs = Align the maturity of your CDs ta ensure interest
income every G months. A great way to provide short term access
with long term yiclds.

Savings Account — Minimum halance requirement, Track balances with
Online Banking or BankLine 24-hour telephene banking.

Saver CD - Have a savings goal in mind? Saver CDs offer competitive
interest rates and zllow you to make monthly contributiens through
an automatic moathly transfer from your United Bank checking
account.

CDARS {Cerrificate of Deposit Account Registry Service) - Through
a membership nerwark, United Bank can be your source to receive
full FDIC coverage on large deposits {up to $50,000,000 and
subject to change) ail while working with enly one bank,

Teade-A-Rate CDs - Open a 7 month or 11 month CD at a great mte.
Enjoy the one time opportuniry to raise your interest rate should

rates rise during your selected term.

* See your nearest Unised Bark office for a complece lisring of products and services

FINANCIAL SERVICES

United Bank offets Full Service and Discount Brokerage
and Insurance through UVEST Investment Securities, Inc.
All Securities provided by UVEST are not FDIC Insured,

have no Financial Institution Guarantee, and may lose value,

Unired Bank Financial Services can assist you with:
Mutual Funds
Tax-Favored lnvestments

Annuities

Retirement Planning
Life Insurance Assct Allocation
Portfolio Management Financial Planning
Money Marker Accounts And much more!

Stocks and Bonds

LOANS

United Bank offers a wide varicty of lending options to help

with any need and for all stages of life.

Small Business Administration (SBA) Loans
Mongage Loans

Petsonal and Business Visa Credit Cards

Personal Loans
Vehicle Loans
Commercial Loans

Agriculture Loans

MISCELLANEOUS

* 18 ATM locations throughout Southwest Alabana and Northwest
Flotida.

* BankLine -~ United Bank's 24 hour telephone banking service
(800-861-8752).

» CheckEasy — United Bank’s Debit Card can be used at any location
that accepts MasterCard.

* Online Banking — access your accounts online at
www.unitedbank.com.

* Online Bill Pay - pay your bills clectronically through
United Bank’s Online Banking scrvices.

* Visa Gift Cards — they're not just for Christmas anymore!
Give somconc special a gift card that can be loaded up
to $750 and used anywhere that acceprs Visa,
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- Personal Storage Compartments
Personal Storage Compartments (PSCs) are new 0 United Bank ar}d _:hc
American banking indusn?'Nc‘c!cf'a sécutt, convenicnt logation to Reep
-perfeet solution. These durable, fireproof cofpartments can bie.actessed .-
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PIN code eliminares the need for keys to lock or unlock your PSC.
PSCs are now available in United Bank's Magnolia Springs location and
in Jay (FL) and other future locarions.
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sensitive documents or smaller keepsakes Gway from hemé?i PSCs arsthe'r G F

Dedicated to a greener environment, I

With a century of agricultural financing, we know our most important
rasser of alls the Tngjronment. So.our interngt banking, direct and remote
, deposits, c-statements, bill pay, debit cardsAnd Mbre mgke fopossible for
“J6u“té bink with6T paper 6r driving, giving 3 huge dividend for our
environment.

. E-Statehcits "< ¢ [T RO ] I PP S
E-statements from United Bank allow you to receive and view your
stacements on the computer and climinate unwanted paper mail from
LA U L T Y L + . b E *
¢éming to yoor doorstep cach monith.

R T o M _
" Wigh E-starenicints, you disconiinic recciving statements chrough the
Wi ST, . . .
r rua.ﬂml begin- gegeiving everything online. Each month, when your

. -statemcnt-is ready o be viewed, you will receive an e-nrail notification.

“'his tog ohto the server-link provided in your e-mail, ingur jour hame
and password and view your stareinent. It’s thae easy! Your statement
will look cxactly the same as if you were to receivesit in the mail. Qur
software will allow you to view 2 years of statement history. You may
also save your statements onto your hard drive and keep them
as leng as you want.




x PLEASE MARK VOTES
AS IN THIS EXAMPLE

PROXY FOR ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

The undersigned stockhcider of Untied Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. (the
*Corporation™), Atmore, Alabama, hereby constitutes and appoints Michael R,
Andrecli, Dale M. Ash, L. Walter Crim, Robert R. Jones, 1ll, Willlam J. Justice,
David D. Swift and J. Wayne Trawick and any of them, with lull power of
substiution, proxies to vole the number of shares of Corporation common
stock that the undersigned Is entitted ©0 vote at the Annual Meetng of
Stockholders 10 be held al the corporate offices of Unitod Bank, 200 East
Nashville Avenue, Atmore, Alabama, on May 7, 2008, a! 3:00 p.m., Incal time,
or at any adjournments thereof (the "Meeting”), upon the proposals described
in the Proxy Staternent and Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, both
dated April 4, 2008, recelpt of which is hereby acknowledged, in the manner
specified below.

Niai <Ce
3l Processing
wontion

R v s 78

WaShfngtDn' oc
&
Please be sure to sign and date Dato
this Proxy in the box below.

L— Stockholder sign above

+

Co-helder (it any) sign above ——

REVOCABLE PROXY
UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA, INC. Forali hold Except

=

with-  For Al

Proposal 1. Election as direclor o serve
untit the 2011 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and until his or her successor
is elected and qualified:

Dals M. Ash and Robert R. Jones, lll

INSTRUCTION: To withhold authority 10 vote for any Individual
nominee, merk “For All Except™ and write that nominege’s name In the
space provided below.

In their sole discretion, the proxies are authorized 1o vote upon such
other business as may come property before the Meeting or any
adjoumment thereof.

This Proxy, when properly cxecuted, will be voted In the manner
directed hereln by the undersigned stockhotder. if no diroction Is
made, this Proxy will be voted FOR clection of the above-named
nom'nees &3 directors and with discretionary authority on all other
maiters that may como properly before the Meeting.

Please sign exactly as your name appears on your stock certificate
and dale. Where shares are hekl jointly, each stockholder should sign.
When signing as execulor, administrotor, trustes, or guardian, please

give tull title as such. If a vorporation, please sign in full corperalé name

by president or other authorized officer. if a partnership, please =ign in
partnership name by authorized person.
THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE

CORPORATION'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MAY BE REVOKED
BY THE STOCKHOLDER{S) PRIOR TO ITS EXERCISE.

4 Detach above card, sign, date and mall in postage paid envelope provided. -#f-
UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA, INC.

PLEASE ACT PROMPTLY
SIGN, DATE & MAIL YOUR PROXY CARD TODAY

IF YOUR ADDRESS HAS CHANGED, PLEASE CORRECT THE ADDREESS IN THE SPACE PROVIDED BELOW AND RETURN THIS PORTION WITH

THE PROXY IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED.




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
' WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
[ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d} OF THE SECUR[TIES EXCHANGE ACI"@F 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31,2007 - aIS’:fE;"SSmQ
Commission File No. 2-78572 n

UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA, INC. APR 14 /009
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware L 63:0833573M8Shington, s
(State or other jurisdiction of . ' (L.R.S.Employer Identifi canon’ﬂo’)
incorporation or organization)

P.Q. Prawer 8, Atmore, Alabania 36504
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (251) 446-6000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None .
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Class A Common Stock, Par Value $.01 Per Share
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes ONo &
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 of Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes ONo &
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes @ No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to [tem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not
be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Pan [
of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, 2 non-accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company™ in Rule 12b-2
of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer [J Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes 0O No &

Aggregate market value of voting and noenvoting common equity held by non affiliates as of March 27, 2008 was $37,662,929
computed by reference to the price reported 10 the registrant at which the common equity was last sold on or prior to that date and
using beneficial ownership of stock rules adopted pursuant to Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to exclude voting
stock owned by directors and executive officers, some of whom might not be held to be affiliates upon judicial determination.

indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Commen Stock _Par Valve Owstanding g1 March 27, 2008
Class A $ .01 2,251,164 Shares*

Class B $ .01 0 Shares
. Excludes 133,007 shares held as treasury stock. '
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The Registrant’s Proxy Statement relating to the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated by reference in Part I11 of this
repon.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Forward-Looking Siatements

When used or incorporated by reference herein, the words “anticipate™, “estimate”, “expect”, “project”, “target”, “goal”, and
similar expressions, are intended to identify forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, Such forward-looking statements are subject 10 certain Tisks, uncertainties and assumptions, including those set forth elsewhere
herein, as well as the possibilities of (i) increases in competitive pressures in the banking industry, particularly with respect to
community banks; (i) costs or difficulties, relating 10 the planned increase in the number of Bank offices, which are greater than
expected based on prior experience; (iii) general economic conditions, either nationaily or regionally, that are less favorable than
expected, resulting in deterioration in loan demand, eredit quality and/or borrower liquidity, among other things; (iv) changes which
may occur in the regulatory environment; and (v) large and/or rapid changes in interest rates. These forward-looking statements speak
only as of the date they are made. The Corporation expressly disclaims any obligations or undertaking to publicly release any updates
or revisions 10 any forward-looking statement contained herein 10 reflect any change in the Bank’s expectations with regard to any
change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based. ' - i

, o
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Uaited Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc aad United Bank

United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. (the “Corporation™) is a one-bank financial holding compan'y, with headquarters in
Atmore, Alabama. The Corporation was incorporated under the laws of Delaware on March 8, 1982 for the purpose of acquiring all of
the issued and outsmnding capital stock of The Bank of Atmore, Atmore, Alabama (“Atmore™) and Peoples Bank, Frisco City,
Alabama (“Peoples™). Atmore was merged into United Bank of ‘Atmore, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, and Peoples
was merged into United Bank of Frisco City (“Frisco City™), also a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, in late 1982.
EfFective March 30, 1984, Frisco City merged into United Bank of Atmore, which had previously changed its name to simply “United
Bank.t’ )

The Corporation and its subsidiary, United Bank (herein “United Bank” or the “Bank”), operate primarily in one business segment,
commercial banking. United Bank contributes substantially all of the total operating revenues and consolidated assets of the
Corporation. The Bank serves its customers from sixteen full service banking offices located in Atmore (2 offices), Frisco City,
Monroeville, Flomaton, Foley, Lillian, Bay Minette (2 offices), Silverhill, Magnolia Springs, Spanish Fort and Summerdale, Alabama,
and in Jay, Pace and Milion, Florida. Additionally, 2 loan production office is located in Loxley, Alabama.

United Bank offers a broad range of banking services. Services to business customers include providing remote deposit
capabilities, checking and time deposit accounts and various types of lending services. Services provided to individual customers
include checking accounts, NOW accounts, money market deposit accounts, statement savings accounts, repurchase agreements and
various other time deposit savings programs and loans, including business, personal, automobile, home and home improvement loans.
United Bank offers securities brokerage services, Visa multi-purpose, and nationally recognized credit card service. The Bank also
offers internet banking, bill pay and access to online brokerage services at its web site, www.unitedbank.com. The Bank also owns an
insurance agency, United Insurance Services, Inc., which opened and began business in 2001.

Competition — The commercial banking business is highly competitive and United Bank competes actively with state and national
banks, savings and loan associations, insurance companies, brokerage houses, and credit unions in its market areas for deposits and
loans. In addition, United Bank competes with other financial institutions, including personal loan companies, leasing companies,
finance companies and certain governmental agencies, all of which engage in marketing various types of loans and other services. The
regulatory environment affects competition in the bank business as well,

Emplovees — The Corporation and its subsidiary had approximately 188 full-time equivalent employees at December 31, 2007. All of
the employees are engaged in the operations of United Bank, its subsidiary, or the Corporation. The Corporation considers its
employee relations good, and has not experienced and does not anticipate any work stoppage attributable to labor disputes.

Supervision, Regulation and Govemment Policy — Bank holding companies, banks and many of their non-bank affiliates are
extensively regulated under both federal and state law. The following brief summary of certain statutes, rules and regulations affecting
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the Corporation and the Bank is qualified in its entirety by reference to the particular statutory and regulatory provisions referred to
below, and is not intended to be an exhaustive description of the statutes or regulations applicable to the Corporation's business. Any
change in applicable law or regulations could have a material effect on the business of the Corporation and its subsidiary. Supervision,
regulation and examination of banks by bank regulatory agencies are intended primarily for the protection of depositors rather than
holders of Corporation common stock.

. The Corporation is registered as a financial holding company (“FHC”) with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

(the “Federal Reserve™) under the Bank Helding Company Act of 1956, as'amended (the “BHC Act”). As such, the Corporation is
subject 10 the supervision, examination, and reporting requirements in the BHC Act and the regulations of the Federal Reserve. The
Corporation is a “Financial Holding' Company (FHC). See discussion of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Financial Services Modemization
Act below. - ' ' . .

The BHC Act requires every bank holding company to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before it may acquire
substantially all of the assets of any bank or control of any voting shares of any bank, if, after such acquisition, it would own or
.control, directly or. indirectty, more than 5% of the voting shares of such.bank.. The BHC Act requires the Federal Reserve to consider,
among other things, anticompetitive effects, financial and managerial resources and community needs in reviewing such a transaction.
Under the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and.Branching Efficiency Act of 1994, enacted in September 1994, bank holding companies
:were permitted to-acquire banks located in any state without regard to whether the transaction is prohibited under any state law (except
that states may establish a minimum age of not more-than five years for local banks subject to interstate acquisitions by out- of—state
bank holding companies), and interstate branching was permitied beginning June 1, 1997 in certain circumstances.

With the prior approval of the Superintendent of the Alabama State Depanment of Banking (“Supenmendem“) and their pnmary
federal regulators, state banks are entitled to expand by branchmg

The Corporation is a legal entity separate and dlstmct from. the.Bank. Vanous legal limitations restrict the Bank from Icndmg or
otherwise supplymg funds to the Corporation. Such transactions, including extensions of credit, sales of securities or assets and
provision of services, also must be on terms and conditions .consistent with safe and sound bankmg practices, including credit
standards, that are substantially the same or at jeast as favorable to the Bank as prevailing at the time for transactions with unaffiliated
companies.’ Also, as a subsidiary of a bank holding company, the Bank is generally prohibited from conditioning the extension of
credit or other services, or conditioning the lease or sale of property, on the customer’s agreement to obtain or furnish some additional
credil, property or service from or to such subsidiary or an affiliate, .

The Bank is a state bank, subject to state banking laws and regulation, supervision and regular examination by the Alabama State
Department of Banking (the “Department”), and as 8 member of the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”) of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (the “FDIC™), is also subject to FDIC regulation and examination. The Bank is not a member of the Federal Reserve
System, Areas subject to federal and state regulation include dividend payments, reserves, investments, loans, interest rates, mergers
and acquisitions, issuance of securities, borrowings, establishment of branches and other aspects of operation, including compliance
with truth-in-lending and usury laws, and regulators have the right 10 prevent the development or continuance of unsafe or unsound
bankmg practices regardless of whether the practice is specifically proscribed or otherwise violates law.

Dividends ﬁ-om United Bank constitute the major source .of funds for the Corporation. United Bank ‘is subject to state law
restrictions on its ability 1o pay dividends, primarily that the prior written approval of the Superintenderit is required if the total of all
dividends declared in any calendar year exceeds the total of United Bank’s net earnings of that year combined with its retained net
eamnings of the preceding two years, less any required transfers to surplus. United Bank is subject to restrictions under Alabama law
which also prohibits any dividends from being made from surplus without the Superintendent’s prior written approval and the general
restriction that dividends in excess of 90% of United Bank's net earnings (as defined by slatute), may not be declared or paid unless
United Bank's surplus is at Jeast equal to 20% of its capital. United Bank’s surplus i$ significantly in excess of 20% of its capital.
Federal bank regulatory agencies also have the general authority to limit the dividends paid by insured banks and bank holding
companies if such payment is deemed to-constitute an urisafe and unsound practice. Federal law provides that no dividends may be
paid which would render the Bank undercapitalized. United Bank’s ability to make funds available to the Corporation also is subject
to restrictions imposed by federal law on the ability of a bank to extend credit to its parent company, to purchase the assets thereof, to
issue a guarantee, acceptance or letter of credit on behalf thereof or to invest'in the- stock or secumu:s thereof or to take such stock or
secunities as collateral for loans to any borrower.




The Bank is also subject to the requirements of the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (“CRA”). The CRA and the regulations
implementing the CRA are intended to encourage regulated financial institutions to help meet the credit needs of their local
community, including low and moderate-income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operation of financial institutions.
The regulatory agency’s assessment of the Bank's CRA record is made available to the public.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA¥) recapitalized the BIF and included numerous
revised statutory provisions. FDICIA .established five capital tiérs for insured depository institutions: “well capitalized”, “adequately
capitalized”, “undercapitalized”, “significantly undercapitalized”, and “critically undercapitalized”, as defined by regulations adopted
by the Federal Reserve, the FDIC and other federal depository institution.regulatory agencies. At December 31, 2007, the Bank was
“well capitalized” and was not subject to restrictions imposed for failure to-satisfy applicable capital requirements. BIF premiums for
cach member financial institution depend upon the risk assessment classification assigned to the institution by the FDIC.

Banking is a business that primarily depends on interest rate differentials. In.general, the difference between the interest rate paid by a
bank on its deposits and other borrowings and the interest rate received by the bank on its loans and securities holdings constitutes the
major portion of the bank’s eamings. As a result, the eamings and business of the Corporation are and will be affected by economic
conditions generally, both domestic and foreign, and also by the policies of various regulatory authorities having jurisdiction over the
Corporation and the Bank, especially the Federal Reserve. The Federal Reserve, among other functions, regulates the supply of credit
and deals with general economic conditions within the United States. The instruments of monetary policy employed by the Federal
Reserve for those purposes influence in various ways the overall-level -of investments; loans and other extensions of credit and
deposits and the interest rates paid on liabilities and received on assets. : : L

The enactment of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Financial -Services Modemization Act (the “GLB Act”) on November 12, 1999
represented an important development in the powers of banks and their competitors in the financial services industry by removing
many of the barriers between commercial banking, investment banking, securities brokerages and insurance. Inter-affiliation of many
of these formerly separated businesses is now common. The GLB Act includes significant provisions regarding the privacy of
financial information. These financial privacy provisions generally require a financial institution to adopt a privacy policy regarding
it practices for sharing nonpublic persenal information and to disclose such policy to their customers, both at the time the customer
relationship, is established and at Jeast annually during the relationship. These provisions also prohibit the Corporation from disclosing
nonpublic personal financial information to third parties unless customers have the opportunity to opt out-of the disclosure. The GLB
Act gives the Federal Reserve broad autherity o regulate FHCs, but provides for functional regulation of subsidiary activities by the
Securities Exchange Commission, Federal Trade Commission, state insurance and securities authorities and similar regulatory
agencies.

On October 26, 2001, President Bush signed into law the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools
Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “USA Patriot Act”). Among its provisions, the USA Patriot Act
requires each financial institution: (i) to establish an anti-money laundering program, (ii) to establish due diligence policies,
procedures and controls with respect to its private banking accounts and corvespondent banking accounts involving foreign individuals
and certain foreign banks and (iii) to avoid establishing, maintaining, administering, or managing correspondent accounts in the
United States for, or on behalf of, a foreign bank that does not have a physical presence in any country. In addition, the USA Patriot
Act contains a provision encouraging cooperation among financial institutions, regulatory authoritics and law enforcement authorities
with respect to, individuals, entities and organizations engaged in, or reasonably suspecied of engaging in, terrorist acts or money
laundering activities. The USA Patriot Act has not had a significant impact on the financial condition or results of operations of the
Corporation. R . .

In July 2002 the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “SOA™) was enacted. The SOA established many new operational and
disclosure requirements, with the stated goals of, among other things, increasing corporate responsibility and protecting investors by
improving corporate disclosures. The SOA applies generally to companies that file periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). As an Exchange Act reporting company, the
Corporation is subject 1o some SOA provisions, Other SOA requirements apply only 10 companies which, unlike the Corporation,
have stock traded on a national stock exchange or the NASDAQ. .

Selected Statistical Information — The following tables set forth certain selected statistical information concerning, the business and

operations of the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary, United Bank, as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. Averages
referred to in the following statistical information are generally average daily balances.
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Analysis of Net Interest Eamings: The foljowing table sets forth interest eamed and the average yield on the major categories of the
Corporation’s interest-earning asseis and interest-bearing liabilities.
(Dollars in Thousands)
Interest Income Average Rales
VETRRE Expenise j
. 2007 .
Loans, net (1) o $ 251,348 $ 21,195 8.43%
Taxable securities available for sale . 73,682 3,662 4.97%
Tax exempt sec available for sale (2) 35,750 2,163 6.05%
Federal funds sold and repurchase agreements. S 5,230 258 4.93%
Interest-bearing déposits with other financial institutions . - 12832 - 667 5.20%
Total interest-eaming assets $ 381137 $22.945 . Li8%
Saving deposits and demand deposits interest-bearing : $ 90,123 $ 2,052 228%
Time deposits - 174,009 8,407 4.83%
Repurchase agreements < ' 40,909 1,708 4.18%
Other borrowed funds 18318 1,396 762%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 5 323,359 513563 4,19%
Net interest income/net yield on interest eaming assets - 5. 14382 1.8%
Interest Income Averege Rales
Average Balance Expense i
. c.o 2006 . - ) -
Loans, net (1) . 5 242,431 $ 20,815 8.59%
Taxable securities available for sale 43,275 2,112 4.88%
Tax exempt sec available for sale (2) 31,870 1,912 6.00%
Federal funds sold and repurchase agreements 8,535 434 5.08%
Interest-bearing deposits with other financial institutions 10,369 427 4.12%
Total interest-earning assets . 3 336,480 § 25700 1.64%
Saving deposits and demand deposits interest-bearing £ 719,120 $ 1,197 1.51%
Time deposits 143,24] 5,846 4.08%
Repurchase agreements 41,745 1,661 3.98%
Other borrowed funds 16,380 1,052 6.42%
Total interest-bearing liabilities £ 280,486 $ 97956 3.48%
Net interest income/net yield on interest eamning assets . $ 15944 4.74%
~AverszeBalance _ Expense  _Eamed Paid
2005
Loans, net (1) - $ 213,311 $ 15,786 7.40%
Taxable securities available for sale . N 42,604 1,822 .4.28%
Tax exempt sec available for sale (2) . 26,117 1,575 6.03%
Federal funds sold and repurchase agreements i . 9,784 243 2.48%
interest-bearing deposits with other financial institutions 6847 204 2.98%
Total interest-earning assets g 298663 & & 19630 6.57%
Saving deposits and demand deposits interest-bearing $ 74,362 $ 893 1.20%
Time deposits 122,387 3,290 2.69%
Repurchase agreements 27,580 642 2.33%
Orher borrowed funds 13,500 678 5.02%
Total interest-bearing liabilities §.237.820 $ 5503 231%
Net interest income/net yield on interest eamning assets . - £ 14127 . 4.73%

(1) Loans on nonaccrual status have been included in the computation of average balances.

(2) Yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a full federal tax-equwalenl basis using an income tax rate of 34% for
2007, 2006, and 2005. o




Analysis of Changes in Interest Income and Interest Expense: The following is an analysis of the dollar amounts of changes in interest
income and interest expense due 10 changes in rates and volume for the periods indicated.’ -

(Do]lars in Thousands)

' Interest [ncome
Average Balances Expense
2007 2006 2007 2006 Variance Raie V
$ 251,348 $ 242,431 Loans(Net) $ 21,194 $ 20,815 $ 319 3 (368) ' 7
73,682 43,275 Taxable SecuriticsAFS (1) 3,692 2,112 1,580 22 1,458
o Tax Exempt Securities AFS o .
35,750 31,870 (2) 2,164 1,912 252 . - 20 . 232
5,230 8,535 Fed Funds Sold 258 T 434 (176) (12) (164} -
12,832 10,369 [Imterest Bearing Deposits 637 427 210 97 . 113
§ 378842 § 336480 Total Eaming Assets £27045 525700 $22¢5 § (4) 52386
; Savings and Interest : L
$ 90,123 $ 79,120 Bearing Demand Deposits $ 2,052 § 1,197 I 855 $-312- . § 543
174,009 143,241 Time Deposits 8,407 5,846 2,561 1,368 o L1193
40,909 41,745 Repurchase Agreements 1,708 1,661 47 18- - - (3))
18318 16,380 Other Borrowed Funds 1.396 1,052 344 138 . 205 -
Total Interest Bearing
$.321.359 £ 280486 Liabilities §£13563 § 975 $£3807  § 186  E1I910

The variance of i mtcrest due to both rate and volume has been allocated proportionately 10 the rate and the volume componems ba.sed
on the relationship of the absolute dollar-amounts of the change in each.

(1} Available for Sale (AFS)

(2) Yields on 1ax-exempt obligations have been computed on a full federal tax-equivalent basis using an income tax rate of 34% for
2007, 2006, and 2005.

Analysis of Changcs in Interest Income dnd Interest Expense: The following is an analysis of the dollar amounts of changes in interest
income and inerest expense due to changes in raies and volume for the periods indicated.

{Dollars in Thousands)

Interest Income
Avcrase Batances Expense .
2006 2008 . 2006 2005 w—Yfriance Rate Yolume .
§ 242,431 $ 213,311 Loans (Net) $ 20,815 § 15,786 $ 5,029 $ 2,684 '$ 2,345
43,275 42,604 Taxable SecuritiesAFS (1) 2,112 1,822 290 © 30 260
Tax Exempt Securities AFS
31,870 26,117 (2) 1,912 1,575 337 (15} - 352
8,535 9,784 Fed Funds Sold 434 243 191 - (52) 243
10,369 6.847 Interest Bearing Deposits 427 204 223 132 -9
§ 336480 § 298,663 Total Eaming Assets $ 19,630 £ 6,070 5 2779 $.3,29)
Savings and Interest
$ 719,120 $ 74,362 Bearing Demand Deposits £ 1,197 s 893 $ 304 $ 255 $ 49
143,241 122,387 Time Deposits 5,846 3,290 2,556 1,732 824
41,745 27,580 Repurchase Agreements 1,661 642 L0019 595 424
16,380 13.500 Other Borrowed Funds 1.052 678 374 130 244
Total Interest Bcanng . _ ) .
5 280486  § 232820 Liabilities § 9756 $.5503 §£4253 $ 2,712 3 1,541

The variance of interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated proportionately to the rate and the volumc componems based
on the relationship of the absotute dollar amounts of the change in each,




1)) Available for Sale (AFS) .

(2) Yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a full federa] lax-cquwalcm basis using an income tax rate of 34% for
. 2006 and 2005.

Investments — The investment policy of United Bank provides that-funds that are not otherwise needed to meet the loan demand of
United Bank’s market area can best be invested to earn maximum return for the Bank, yet still maintain sufficient liquidity to meet
fluctuations in the Bank’s loan demand and deposit structure. Since 2001 the Bank has moved all investments held to maturity to
available for sale. The Bank’s current |oan policy establishes the optimal ratio of total loans to the sum of deposits and repurchase
agreements as being 85%. This ratio as of December 31; 2007 was 65.14%. -Growth in the loan portfolio is driven by .general
economic conditions and the availability of loans meeting the Bank’s credit quality standards. Management expects that funding for
any growth in the loan portfolio would come from deposit growth, repurchase agreement growth, reallocation of maturing investments
and advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB). Management intends to make use of longer term Out of Market
CD’s and term FHLB ad\ ances to fund fixed rate, Ioans with matunhes in excess of one (1) year.

Securities Ponfoho — The Bank’s investment pohcy as- approved by the Board of Directors dictates approved types of securities and
the conditions under which they may be held. Attention is paid to the maturity and risks associated with each investment. The
distribution reflected in the tables below could vary with '¢conomic conditions, which could shorten or lengthén maturities.
Management believes the level of credit and interest rate risks inherent in the securities portfolio is low.

The follov»;ing table sets forth .thc distribution of maturities of investment securities available for sale:
Matur:ty Dlsmbutlon of Investment Securities: Avallable for Sale
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 . ,
(Dollars in Thousands)

. 2007 2006 2008
US Government Agencies excluding
Mortgage Backed securities Within one -
year ' ' £ 22,434 428% § 29,457 540% % — 0.00%
1-5 years . 14,236 4.73% 12,869 448% 172,103 4.06%
5-10 years 21,943° 5.49% 11,785 ' 5.48% 2,000 4.89%
After 10 years 1,002 '5.75% 1,000 5.75% — . 0.00%
Total 59615 4.86% §_ 55,111 321% $ 19,103 TOALYs
Mortgage Backed Secunties Within one year $ 728 3.60% § — 0.00% $ — 0.00%
1-5 years : 2,356 4.05% 3,980 4.02% 4292 3.83%
‘5-10 years - - 4,620 4.05% 6,000 4.05% 8,358 4.06%
After 10 years 9.208 - 474% ___11.435 . 4.66% _ 11423 4.98%
Total - 816912 444% 3 21413 437% § 23,713 443%
State & Municipal (1) Within one year 5 469 4.06% § 591 252% $ 1,000 3.13%
1-5 years 6,318 3.90% . 5,169 -3.88% 4,709 - 3.76%
5-10 years 14,160 4.02% . 12,407 40%% 10416 4.11%
After 10 years 14,471 4.02% 14,482 401% __ 12,769 4.01%
Total , § 35418 400% § 32640 222% 3 28,894 L21%
Totals $ 111,945 4.32% § 109,175 4.68% $ 71,770 4.18%

(1) Yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a full federsl tax-equivalent basis using an income tax rate of 34% for
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Relative Lending Risk — United Bank serves both rural and suburban markets. The rural market is composed primarily of lower to
middle income families. The rural market economy is influenced by timber and agricultural production. The suburban market is faster
growing, more commercial and is composed of a higher income mix than the rural market. The Bank’s loan portfolio mix is reflective
of these markets. The Bank’s ratio of loans to assets or deposits is comparable to its peer banks serving similar markets.




The risks associated with the Bank's lending are primarily interest rate risk and credit risks from economic conditions and
concentranons and/or quality of loans.

Interest rate risk is 2 function of the maturity of the loan and method of pricing. The Bank 5 Ioan matunl'y distribution reflects 6.22%
of the portfolio maturing in one year or less, In addition, 45.94% of all joans float with an mterest rale index. The maturity dlstnbutmn
and floating rate loans help protect the Bank from unexpected interest rate changes.

Loan concentrations present different risk profiles depending on the type of loan. The majority of all types nf Joans offered by the
Bank are collateralized. Regardless of the type of loan, repayment ability ‘of the borrower and collateralized lending is based upon an
evaluation of the collateral. Loan policy, as approved by the Board of' Directors of the Bank, establishes collateral guidelines for each
type of loan. . . .

Small banks located in one community experience a much higher nsk dueto the dependence on the economic viability of that smgle
community. United Bank is more geographically diverse than some of its local commumty banking competitors. With offices in
fifleen communities, risks associated with the effects of major economic disruptions in one commumty are somewhat mlttgated This
geographic diversity affects all types of loans and plays a part‘in the Bank’s nsk management

Each type of loan exhibits unique profi les of risk that could threaten repayment

Commercial lending requires an understanding of the customers’ business and financial performance. The Bank’s commercual
customers are pnmanly small to middle market enterpnses The larger commercial accounts ‘are managed by Senior Commercial
lenders. Risks in this category are primarily economic. Shifis in Iocal and regional conditions could have an effect on individual
borrowers; but as previously mentioned, the Bank attempts to' spread this nisk by serving multiple communities. As with the other
categories, these loans are typically collateralized by assets of the borrower. In most situations, the personal assets of the business
owners also collateralize the credit.

Agricultural lending is a specialized type of lending for the Bank. Due to the unique characteristics in this type of loan, the Bank has
loan officers dedicated to this market. Collateral valuation and the experience of the borrower play hzavily into the approval process.
This toan category includes financing equipment, crop production, timber, dairy operations and others. Given the broad range of loans
offered, it is difficult to generalize risks in agricultural lending. The area of greatest attention and nisk is crop production loans. Risks
associated with catastrophic crop losses are mitigated by crop insurance, government support programs, experience of the borrower,
collateral other than the crop and the borrower’s other financial resources. Routine visitations and contact with the borrower help
inform the Bank about crop conditions.

Real estate loans, whether they are construction or mortgage, historically have had lower delinquency rates than other types of Joans in
the portfolio. This is no longer the case with the change in the real estate market. The Bank makes very few Jong term, fixed rate
mortgage loans; however, it does offer loans with repayment terms based on amortization of up e 30 years with balloon features of
shtmer durations. The Bank also offers several different Iong—term mortgage programs provided by third party processors.

Installment loans are generally collateralized. Given the small dollar exposure 6n each loan, the risk of a significant loss on any one
credit is limited. Pricing and close moniloring of past due loans enhance the Bank’s returns from this type of loan and minimize risks.

An average loan in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2007 was approximately $65,219, an increase of $3,236 from the 2006 level.




LOAN PORTFOLIO MATURITIES

Maturities and loan re-pricing indices in the Corporation’s loan portfolio are as follows:

Remaining Maturity
December 31, 2007
(bd[lars in Thousands)
Onc year One - five After five
. orjess. __yeas __vears _ ___Toll
Real estate — construction $ 9,045 5 56,955 $§ 2699 $ 68,699
Real estate — mortgage 1-4 family ~ . ' 615 -27,264 13,860 41,739
Real estate —commercial - - - - 671 . 40611 13 28] . 54,563
Real estate — other 1,201 16,959 13,3 ) 31,537
Agricultural 490 7,719 1,045 9,254
Commercial . c 3,202 32,362 10,566 46,130
Cther loans . - 1412 Il494 ,gl . 15216
Totals £ 16636 § 193364 § 57038 § 262,138
Loans by Re-pricing Index
. (Dollars in Thousands) .

—Pome  LIBOR  Other __ Total

Real estate — construction $ 49275 $ 4517 § — § 53,792

Real estate — mortgage 14 family * 16,035 e 16,035

Real estate — commercial 19,723 707 20,430

Real estate — other 11,087 425 11,512

Agricultural 1,920 1,920

Commercial 18,369 _- - 18,369

Other loans 667 667

Totals £ 117076 Q.ZZ_i SAZS $£.122.725

For additional information regarding interes! rate sensitivity see INTEREST RATE RISK included in liem 1A below.

Non-performing Assets: Management considers a loan to be impaired when it is probable that the Corporation will be unable to collect
all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is considered impaired, the amount of
impairment is measured based on the net present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the note’s effective interest rate. If
the loan is collateral-dependent, the fair value of the collateral is used to determine the amount of impairment. Impaired loans are
covered by the allowance for loan losses through a charge to the provision for loan Josses. Subsequent recoveries are added to the
allowance,

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had impaired loans aggregating $11,710,174, compared with impaired loans totaling $1,766,960
as of December 31, 2006, The majority of this increase is due to seven commercial real estate loans comprising $10,959,402 which
were determnined to be impaired during 2007. Reserves in the amount'of $1,825, 820, or 16.65% of the aggregate outstanding balance
of these loans, have been established. In March of 2008, the Bank was granted summary judgment with respect to the enforceability of
the loan documents in- connection with one of these loans that accounts for 30% of the total impaired loans. Subject to continuing
litigation developments, management believes that this ruling will expedite the Bank’s efforts to collect on the loan. The remaining six
loans are predominantly commercial real estate loans ranging from approximately $100,000 10 apbmximalely $3,000,000. Because the
commercial real estate market both nationally and in the Bank’s specific market area is expenencmg unusual weakness, management

‘has focused addmonal anentlon on this segment of the porlfollo
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The following table sets forth the Corporation’s non-performing assets at December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005. Under the
Corporation’s nonaccruat policy, a loan is placed on nonaccrual status when the ability to collect the principal and interest is in doubt
or when principal and interest is 90 days or more past due, except for credit cards, which continue to-accrue interest.

Descriptions 7
A Loans accounted for on a nonaccrual basis $ 11,0798 1,570 $ 1,406
B  Loans which are contractually past due ninety days or more as to interest or principal payments
(excluding balances included in (A) above) ’ 26 9 4
C  Loans, the terms of which have been renegotiated to provide a reduction or deferral of interest or
principal because of a deterioration in the financial position of the borrower. 54 197 318
D Other non-performing assets 551 621 _ 1,131

Total ' £ 10,210 § 2397 § 2.839

If nonaccrual loans in (A) above had been current throughout their term, interest income would have been.incrcascd by $685,398,
$123,917 and $165,159 for 2007, 2006, and 2005 respectively. ‘All of the assets in (D) above at the end of 2007, 2006, and 2005 were
other real estate owned (ORE). . -

There may be additional loans in the Bank's portfolio that may become classified or impaired as conditions continue to change.
Regulatory examiners may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance based upon their judgments about information
available to them at the time of their examination. '

Loan Concentrations: On December 31, 2007, the Bank had $40,792,171 of agriculture related loans as compared to $36,937,617 and
$35,407,000 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Real estate construction and 1-4 family residential mongage toans were $68,699,154 and
$41,738,820 respectively in 2007 and $59,392,025 and $37,899,222 respectively in 2006 and 2005.

Summary of Loan Loss Experience

(Dollars in Thousands)
2007 2006 2008

Average amount of loans outstanding, net 8§ 251,348 § 243,546 S 213,311
Allowance for Joan losses beginning January | $§ 30]1 $_ 3028 $ 2562
Loans Charged off: Commercial, financial and agriculture _ {226) (960) (365)
Real estate — morngage : — — —_
Installment loans to individuals : {213) (95) {108)
Total Charged off . . (439) (1,055) {473)
Recoveries during the period Commercial, financial and agriculture 12 35 2
Real estate — mortgage —_ - —
Installment loans to individuals . ‘ 17 <45 57
Total Recoveries ) ) ' ) 29 "80 59
Loans Charged off, net . (410) (975) {414)
Other Adjustments : {102) —
Additions to the allowance charged to operations . 1,380 1.060 880

28
Ratio of net charge offs during the period to average loans outstanding 0.16% 0.40% 0.19%

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for Joan losses is maintained at a level which, in management's opinion, is appropriate 1o
provide for estimated losses in the portfolio at the balance sheet date. Factors considered in determining the adequacy of the allowance
include historical loan loss experience, the amount and .trend of past due loans, loans classified from the most recent regulatory
examinations and internal reviews, general economic conditions and the current portfolio mix. The amount charged 1o the provision is
that amount necessary to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level indicative of the associated risk, as determined by
management, of the current portfolio. - : '

The allowance for loan losses consists of two portions: the classified portion and the nonclassified portion. The classified portion is
based on identified problem loans and is determined based on an assessment of credit risk related to those loans. Specific loss estimate
amounis are included in the allowance based on an evaluation of the individual credits. Any loan categorized loss is charged off in the
period which the loan is so categorized.




The nonclassified portion of the allowance is for probable inherent losses which exist as of the evaluation date even though they may
not have been identified by the more objective processes for the classified portion of the allowance. This is due to the risk of error and
inherent imprecision in the process. This portion of the allowance is particularly subjective and requires judgments based upon
qualitative factors, which do not lend themselves 10 exact mathematical calculations. Some of the factors considered are changes in
credit concentrations, loan mix, historical loss experience, and general economic environment in the Corporation’s markelts.

While the total allowance is described as consisting of 3 classified-and a nonclassified portion, these terms are primarily used to
describe a process. Both portions are available to support inherent losses in the loan portfolio. Management realizes that general
economic trends greatly affect loan losses, and no assurances can be made that future charges 1o the allowance for loan losses will not
be significant in relation to the amount provided during a particular period, or that future evaluations of the loan portfolio based on
conditions then prevailing will not réquire sizable charges to incorhe. Management does, however, consider the atlowance for loan
losses 10 be appropriate for the reported periods. The Corporation has allocated propertionately the nonclassified portion of the
allowance to the'individual loan categoriés for purposes of the loan.loss allowance table below.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2007 is appropriate given past experience and the underlying
strength of the loan portfolio.

The table below reflects an allocation of the allowance for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005. The allocation
represents an estimate for each category of loans based upon historical experience and management’s judgment.

(Dollars In Thousands)

Percentage of Loans to
: - Allpwencg _Tota! Loans
’ . 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 2008
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 2964 § 2,173 § 2271 53.5% 542%  70.1%
Real estate — construction 336 - 116 91 25.7% 24.2% 8.5%
Real estate — mortgage 1-4 family 554 563 454 15.6% 15.4% 15.6%
Installment loans to individuals 127 - 159 212 5.2% 6.2% 5.8%
Total £3081 §301] §$3008| 1000% [000% I00.0%

Delinquent Loan Policy: Installment loans are placed on nonaccrual when the loan is three payments past due. Single-date maturity
notes are placed on nonaccrual status when such notes are delinquent for 90 days. Delinquent commercial loans are placed on
nonaccrual status when the loan is 90 days past due or when a loan is determined to be impaired. Exceptions may be made where there
are extenuating circumstances, but any exception is subject to review by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Loans are considered delinquent if payments of principal or interest have not been made by the end of periods ranging from one to ten
days after the due date, depending upon the type of loan involved. Instaliment loans are considered delinquent if payments of principal
and interest are past due for a period of ten days and commercial loans are considered delinquent if payments of principal and interest
are past due for a period of one day. Single-date maturity loans are considered delinquent if payments are not made by the day
following the due date of such loans.

Loans are reviewed for charge offs, as necessary, on a monthly basis. If necessary, loans can be charged off at any time with the
approval of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The loan officer responsible for the particular loan initiates the charge off request
which is reviewed by the Special Assets Officer and then recommended for approval by the CEO. All charged off loans are reviewed
by the Board of Directors of the Bank at the monthly board meeting.
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DEPOSITS
(Dollars in Thousands)

The following table sets forth the average amount of deposits for the years 2007, 2006, and 2005 by category.

- Average - - Average

Deposits Rme Psid
. 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 .. 2005
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 60446 % 63833 8 63211 | ___ 0% __0% __ 0%
Interest — bearing Demand 71,593 57,613 - 49350 -| 2.80% 198% 1.38%
Savings 18,530 7 21,507 25,012 0.25% 025%- 0.25%
Time . ' : 174,009 *_ 143.241._122 387 483% 4.08% 2.68%

$ 264,132 % 222361 $£]196.749 3.96% 3.17% 2.05%

The following shows the amount of time deposits outstanding at December 3 1; 2007; classified by time remaining until maturity.

-+ $100,000 or Greater

Cenificatesof ~ Other Time
Deposit Deposits
Maturity

Three months or less ' =" % 31,338 $:28895 ‘ .
Three to six months 14,496 23,163. - - .
Six to twelve months 27,995 26,611
Twelve months or moré ._ 13,565 20,242
Totals 3 87424 £28911

The following table shows various amounts of repurchase agreements and other short term borrowings and their respective rates,

(Dollars in Thousands)

Maximum Outstanding Averege Average interest Ending . Average interest
a1 any month end balance " e _balance  __memvesrond

2007
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 60,504 $ 40,909 4.18% $ 41,204 3.34%
Other short term borrowings ' $ 1,044 s 422 6.09% $ 692 - 1.02%
2006 ’ -t ’
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase - $ 47,133 $ 41,743 3.98% $ 44410 . 4.17%
Other short term borrowings + - - -8 872 3 362 5.25% 5 857 3.49%
2008
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase - 35 34429 $ 27,580 2.30% $ 34,429 3.14%
Other short term borrowings . . $ 1,001 $. 346 345% $ 1,00 345%

Return on Equity and Assets: The following tabie_shows the perccntége return on equity and assets of the Corporation for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.

2007 2006 2008

" Retum on average assets 0.23% 0.84% 0.88%
Return on average equity - 328% 11.08% 10.93%
Dividend pay-out ratio 65.22% 21.43% 23.08%
Ratio of average equity to '

average assets 7.12% 7.55% 8.02%

ITEM A, RISK FACTORS

The following discusses risks that management believes could have a negative impact on the Corporation’s financial performance.
When analyzing an investment in the Corporation, the risks and uncertainties described below, together with all of the other
information included or incorporated by reference in this report should be carefully considered. The risk factors relate primarily to the
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commercial banking operations of the Bank. This list should not be viewed as comprehensive and may not include all risks that may
affect the financial performance of the Corporation:

Capital Risk

The Corporation is required by federal and state regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support its operations.
The Corporation anticipates that capital resources will satisfy these requirements in the near term. However, the Corporation may need
to raise additional capitd] to support growth er for other needs. The ability to raise additional capital, if needed, will depend on
conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are beyond the Corporation’s controf, as well as on the Corporation current and
anticipated financial performance. Accordingly, there can be no assurances as to the Corporation’s ability to raise additional capital, if

‘needed, on favorable terms or at all. In the event the Corporation is unable to raise capital when needed, its ability to further expand

operations through mtemal capnal generation (net eammgs) and acqu:smons could be impeded.
Interest Rate RisK -

The Bank’s profitability is largely a’ funcmn of the Spread between the mleresl rates eamed on eaming assets and thc interest rates
paid on deposits and other interesi-bearing liabilities. Like most financial institutions, the Bank’s net interest income and margin will
be affected by general economic conditions, fiscal and monetary policies of the Federal govemnment that influence market interest
rates, the Bank’s ability to respond to changes in such rates and other factors that determine the level and direction of movement of
interest rates: Al any given time, the Bank’s assets and liabilities may be so positioned that they are affected differently by a change in
the level or direction of interest rates. As a result, an increase or decrease in rates, loan terms, the mix of adjustable- and fixed-rate
loans or investment securities in the Bank’s portfolio or the shape of the yield curve could have a positive or negative effect on its net
income, capital and liquidity. Akhough management believes it has implemented strategies and guidelines to reduce the potential
effects of changes in interest rates on results of operations, any precipitous, substantial and/or prolonged change in market interest
rates could adversely affect operating results.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY*
Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
Year Ended December 31, 2007

Ending Balances Down 200 Up 200
. as of 12/31/07 _—Basis Points is Poi
Earning Assets:
Cash & Short-term Investments $ 36547422 -5721% 8.34%
Investment securities, taxable 78,072,734 -1.96% 7.47%
Investment securities, tax-exempt 35,418,999 -6.16% 0.11%
 Loans ‘ . ' ’ __267.137.723 -18.58% 18.28%
Total Assets ' § 417176878 -16.80% 16.00%
Interest Bearing Liabilities: o ’ . ' ’
Interest Bearing Deposits . ‘$ 119,740,850 - -39.74% 38.70%
Centificates of Deposit less than $100,000 T 03,890,301 = -24.84% 24.84%
Centificates of Deposit greater than $100,000 - S 92,424,525 -24.97% 24.97%
Total nterest Bearing Deposits ’ ; 306,055,676 - -27.86% 27.65%
Other short term bormowings & securities sold under agreements o . v
repurchase : 41,895,519 -85.78% .114.88%
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings 1,774,700 0.68% -0.68%
Total Purchased Funds 43670.219 -74.64% 99.98%
Total Liabilities $ 349,725,895 -31.69%  33.58%

Net Interest Income . - .o .. o -1.55% 5.08%

* Information pertains to the Bank only

As shown in the table above,.the Corporation is interest rate sensitive, especially.in a.downward rate environment. A-200 basis point
declin® in interest rates would cause a 7.55% decline in net interest income; while a similar increase in interest rates would yield a

-5.08% increase in net interest income, The comparable sensitivities at the end of 2006 were a decline in net interest income of 13.70%
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in a 200 basis point decline and an increase of 12.00% in a similar increase of rates. This effect is due to the Corporation’s mix of
variable and fixed rate loans, interest bearing deposits, and borrowed funds. The Corporation took steps during 2007 to reduce the
Corporation’s interest rate sensitivity,

The Corporation’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates in conjunction with the structure of interest rate spreads determines the
impact of change in interest rates on the Bank's performance. -

Credit Risk . '
As a lender, the Bank is exposed to the risk that its borrowers may be unable to repay their loans and that any collateral securing the
payment of their Joans may not be sufficient to assure repayment in full. Credit losses are inherent in the lending business and could
have a material adverse effect on the operating results of the Bank. Adverse changes in the economy or business conditions, either
nationally or in the Bank’s market areas, could increase credit related losses or related expenses and/or limit growth. Substantially all
of the Bank’s Joans are to businesses and individuals in a limited geographic area and any economice decline in this local market could
impact the Bank adversely. The Bank makes various assumptions and judgments about the collectibility of its loan portfolio and
provides an allowance for loan losses based on a number of factors. If these assumptions are incorrect, the allowance for loan losses
may not be sufficient to cover losses, thereby having an adverse effect on operating results, and may cause the Bank to increase the
allowance in the future by increasing the provision for loan losses. The Bank has adopted credit policies which when combined with
underwriting and credit monitoring procedures produce a process that management believes is appropniate to control these risks. Such
policies and procedures may not prevent unexpected losses that could have a material adverse affect on the Bank’s-financial condition
and/or results of operations. See “PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES” in Item 7 and. “Surnmary of Loan Loss Expenence" and
“Allowance for Loan Losses” in Item |.

Competition | - ' - S

The financial services industry is highly competitive. Competition for atracting and retaining deposits and attracting desirable loans
comes from a wide array of financial companies, such as cther banks, savings institutions, credit unions, mutual fund companies,
insurance companies and, increasingly, other non-bank businesses. Some of the Bank’s competitors are much larger in terms of total
assets and market capitalization, have a higher lending limit, and have greater access to capital and funding. The presence of one or
more aggressive competitors in the Bank’s market area could have an adverse affect on the Bank's financial condition and/or results of
operations by increasing the cost of deposits, reducing the rates on loans or limiting access to quality borrowers. See “Competition” in
Item 1,

Government Regulation and Supervision ’

The banking industry is heavily regulated under both federal and state law. Banking regulations, designed primarily for the safety of
depositors, may limit a financial institution’s growth and the retum to its investors, by restricting such activities as the payment of
dividends, mergers with or acquisitions by other institutions, expansion of branch offices and the offering of securities. The Bank is
also subject to capitalization guidelines established by federal law and could be subject to enforcement actions to the extent that its
subsidiary bank is found, by regulatory examiners, to be undercapitalized. It is not possible to predict what changes, if any, will be
made 1o existing federal and state legislation and regulations or the effect that such changes may have on the Bank's future business
and eamings prospects. Any substantial changes to applicable laws or regulations could also subject the Bank to-additional costs, limit
the types of financial services and products it may offer, and inhibit its ability to compete with other financial service providers. See
“Supervision, Regulation and Gevernment Policy” in Item 1.

Attracting and Rctail:ling Skilled Personnel

Attracting and retaining key personnel.is critical to the Bank’s success, and difficulty finding qualified .personnel could-have a
significant impact on the Bank's business due to the lack of required skill sets and years of industry experience.

Local Economic Conditions

The Bank’s success depends primarily on the_general economic conditions of the specific local markets in which the Bank operates,
Unlike larger national or other regional banks that are more geographically diversified, the Bank provides banking and financjal
services to customers primarily in Escambia,, Monroe, and Baldwin County, Alabama, and Santa Rosa County, Florida, The Jocal
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economic conditions in these areas have a significant impact on the demand for the Bank’s products and services as well as the ability
of the Bank’s customers to repay loans, the valug of the collateral securing loans and the stability of the Bank’s deposit funding
sources. A significant decline in general economic conditions, caused by inflation, recession, acls of terrorism, cutbreak of hostilities
or other international or domestic occurrences, unemployment, changes in securities markets or other factors could impact those local
economic conditions and, in tum, have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s financial condition and results of operations. See
“Relative Lending Risk™ in Item 1. '

Growth Strate-gy :

The Bank intends to continug pursuing a profitable growth strategy. Growth prospects must be considered in light of the risks,
expenses and difficulties associated with expansion of the Bank’s operation. There can be no assurance that the Bank will be able to
expand its market presence in existing markets or successfully enter new markets or thal any such expansion will not adversely affect
lhe Bank’s busmess ﬁ.:ture prospects, ﬁnanma] condmon or results of operations.

Severt Wea!her, Natural Disasters, Acts of War.or Terrorism And Olher External Events Could Significantly Impact The
Corporallons Business . .
Severc wealher, natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism and other adverse external events could have a significant impact on the
Bank's ability to conduct business. Such events could affect the stability of the Bank’s deposit base, restrict the ability of borrowers to
repay outstanding loans, impair the value of collateral securing loans, cause significant propesty damage, result in loss of revenue
and/or cause the Bank to incur additional expenses. Although management has established disaster recovery policies and procedures,
the occurrence of any such event could have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s busmess which, in tun, could have a material
adverse effect on the Bank’s financial condition and results of operations.

Information Systems Inlegnty

The Bank relies on modem data, communication, and network systems to conduct ongoing operations. These systems could be
vulnerable to internal and external attacks to the physical equipment or the raw data stored within these systems. Failures to maintain
the integrity of one or more of these systems could threaten the Bank’s ability to serve customers in an effective and timely manner.
The Bank maintains policies and procedures goveming the access to and use of these systems in order to insulate the systems from any
sort of security breach. However, any breach could have a matertal adverse effect on the financial position and future earnings of the
Bank.

r

Technological Advancement and Implementation

The future success of the Bank is directly related to the successful implementation of new technological advancements pertaining to
the banking industry, Technology continues to offer the Bank new avenues to add products for customers, as well as increase the
efficiency of the Bank’s internal operations. Failure to effectively manage the implementation of emerging technology could result in
the loss of existing customers or limit the Bank’s ability~to attract new customers, thus putting pressure on the Bank’s financial
position and future eamnings.

Internal Audit and Control Risk

The Bank incorporates the use of various intemal audit review and internal controls to minimize the Bank’s exposure to material
financial misstatement or fraudulent activity. Despite the presence of these systems, the Bank is exposed to the inherent risks that are
present in any similar environment, including risks that a control, or controls, could be circumvented. The Bank attemypts to revise its
internal audit procedures and controls as its eperations evolve, However rigorously the Bank undertakes its pursuit of internal controls,
this process can only provide reasonable assurance that the Bank’s financial reporting doesn’t include material misstatement.

ITEM I1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS .

Not applicable. - ) o - ;
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
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The Corporation’s bank subsidiary operatés sixteen full service branchies and one loan production office, which the subsidiary owns or
leases. The offices are located in Escambia County, ‘Alabama (cities of Atmore. (two offices) and Flomaton); Monroe County,
Alabama (cities of Monroeville.and Frisco City); Baldwin County, Alabama (cities of-Foley, Lillian, Bay Minette {two offices),
Magnolia Springs, Silverhill, Spanish Fort, Summerdale, and a loan production office in Loxiey); and Santa Rosa County, Florida
(cities of Jay, Pace and Milton}, with the principal office located in Atmore, Alabama. All land, buildings, and fixed assets owned by
the Corporation were transferred as an investment of capital to the Bank during 2006. The office in Atmore is a modem, three story
building. This building and the adjacent AgriFinance Office and the Bank’s Information Systems Department facility were completely
remodeled and updated following damage from Hurricanes Ivan and Dennis in 2004 and 2005. Following Hurricane Ivan in 2004, the
Monroeville office received extensive remodeling and upgrades. The Bank completed construction of a full service office to replace
the limited drive-thru location on the south side of Atmore.during 2005.-The Foley office was purchased in October of 2002. The
office in Lillian is a modem two-story brick building. The Bank also owns a two story brick building in Bay Minette. The second
office in Bay Minette was built in 2003 on Highway 59. The office in Silverhill is-the original post office built in 1902, and is a two
story wooden structure owned by the Bank. Construction was completed a new office located in Magnolia Springs on the corner of US
Highway 98 and County Road 49 during the summer of 2006. The Bank has opened two new branches in Santa Rosa County, Florida.
Currently, these facilities are located in rented offices in strip shopping centers, offering limited services. The Bank purchased, for use
as a branch office in Pace, Florida, land and a building which was surplus in the merger of two larger banks. This office was place in
service in late 2007. The Bank is currently planning the construction of‘two or three. branches to be placed in service in late 2008 and

early 2009.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are presently no pendinlg legal proceedings to which the Corpbration or-its subsidiary, United Bank, is a pény orto which any of
their property is subject, which management of the Corporation based upon consultation with legal counsel believes are likely to have
a material adverse effect upon the financial position of the Corporation. . : :

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
N.o matters were submitted to a ;rote of the shareholders of the Cotporation during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES :

The Corporation’s authorized common shares consist of the following:

(1) 5,000,000 shares of Class A comimon.stock; $.01 par value per share, of which 2,384,171 shares ar¢ issued and 2,251,164 are
outstanding and held by approximately.820 shareholders of record, as of March 27, 2008.

{(2) 250,000 shares of Class B common stock, $.01 par value per share, none of which were issued, as of March 27, 2008.

The Corporation in 2007 became aware that its common stock is quoted on the Over-the-Counter-Bulletin Board, or OTCBB, a
regulated quotation service that is administered and regulated by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or NASD, under
the trading symbol “UBAB.” The Corporation has neither applied for nor had contact with NASD with respect to the OTCBB or any
other quotation service. The Corporation’s common stock is not listed on any exchange.

The Corporation is informed that over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-ups, markdowns,
or commissions and may not necessarily reflect actual transactions. Although bid prices have apparently been posted on the OTCBB
during 2007 and 2006, the Corporation believes that no transactions occurred in 2006. In 2007 there were 23 days having transactions
at prices ranging from $14.05 to $17.50 per share. Because a limited number of transactions involving the Corporation’s common
stock have been reported on the OTCBB, the Corporation believes that any reported bid or asked price may not reflect a fair-valuation
of its common stock.
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The Corporation dectared total cash- dividends per common share of $0.30 per commen share in 2007 and 2006. The Corporation
expects to continue to pay cash dividends, subject to the earnings and financial condition of the Corporation and other relevant factors;
however, dividends on.the Corporation's common stock are declared and paid based on a variety of considerations by the'
Corporation’s Board of Directors and there can be no assurance that the Corporation will continue to pay regular dividends or as to the
amount of dividends if any. Payment of future dividends will depend upon business conditions, operating results, capital and reserve
requirements and the Board’s consideration of other relevant factors. In addition, the ability of the Corporation to pay dividends is
totally dependent on dividends received from its banking subsidiary (see Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements) and is
subject to statutory restrictions on dividends -applicable to Delaware corporations, including the restrictions that dividends generally
may be paid only from a corporation’s surplus or from its net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and the
preceding year. . .

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS]S QF FINANCIAL CONDITION.AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
INTRODUCTION

The following financial review is presented to provide an analysis of the consolidated results of operations of the Corporation and its
subsidiary. This review should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements included under Item 8.

e . OVERVIEW .

This overviewis a broad hlgh -level dlSCIlSSlOn of various fi nanmal measures, addressed in detail in the following discussion and
analysis. The items addressed, as such, do not have any more or less significance than the detailed discussion to follow.

United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. is g one-bank holding company that competes in the commercial banking industry within the
primary markets of Southwest Alabama and Northwest Florida. As a community bank, the Bank.strives to serve the needs of the total
market including, but not limited to, consumer and business bankmg needs,’ ag-nculrural fi nancmg, mortgage products, and various
insurance and investment needs.

At December 31, 2007 the Corporation had-S457,30|,960 of total assets, compared to $426,170,974 at December 31, 2006. The
growth of loans and investment securities were the primary components of the increase from year to year. Total deposits increased
$42.067.102 (12.87%) to $368,902,565, as compared to $326,835,463 at the end of 2006. The growth in deposits was the primary
source of funding for the growth in both loans and investments. A portion of the growth was attributable to an increase in a seasonal
deposit by a local government which added $10,000,000 in balances at year end 2007 over year end 2006. In building and adding new
branches, the Corporation increased its investment in prem|scs and oqu1pment at the end of 2007 by SS 012,403 (42.49%) to
$16,808,578 from SI 1,796,175 at the end of 2006.

Net interest income after provision for loan losses was $12,267,239 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared with
$14,334,337 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease of $2,067,098 was'the result of several factors: 1) interest expense
on deposits increased as the rate paid on the renewal of matunng time deposits was higher that the maturing rate; 2) interest expense
on trust preferred securities increased as the Corporation, in anticipation of the growth in new branches, issued $10,000,000 of trust
preferred securities in September of 2006; 3) the number and amount of non accrual loans grew throughout the year (had these loans
been accruing interest throughout the entire year, an additional $685,398 would have been recorded in interest income in 2007); and 4)
the Bank added an additional $510,000 to the loan Joss provision to reflect the Ievel of non performing and potential problem loans.
Trust Preferred Securities in the amount of $10,000,000 were issued in’late 2006 to provide capital to support the growth of loans and
deposils that the Corporation annc:pated from the expansion of the branch network: Additionally, the issuance was used lo redeem the
$4,000,000 of similar securities issued in 2002 at a much higher rate. The $4,000,000 outstanding at thc end of 2006 from the 2002
issuance were redeemed on September 30, 2007

Noninterest income lotaled $3,992,572 for 2007 as compared to $3, 912 213 in 2006 an increase of 580.359 Service charges and fees
on deposn accounts accounted for the majority of the increase as charges-were reviewed-and selectively increased so that they were
more in line with market rates.

Noninterest expense was $15,453,384 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to $14,088,598 for the year ended
December 31, 2006, an increase of $1,364,786 or 9.69%. Salaries and benefts rose by $961,369 to $8,315,265 as additiona! personne!
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were employed to staff the new facilities and additional support personne] were added to properly suppon growth: Occupancy expense
rose by $228,774 reflecting the added cost of placing the new facilities in to service. Other expenses rose by $174,643 as marketing
and advcmsmg expenses were increased in support of the increased operations and there was a valuat:on write down of an ORE
property in the amount of $90, 000 Several other categones experienced small increases in cost.

Net Eamnings for the year ended December 31, 2007 decreased 67.09% to $1,031,758, as compared to $3,135,070, for the year ended
December 31 2006. The effective tax rates for 2007 and 2006 reflect tax benefits of 27.94% and tax expense of 24.60%, respectively.
Diluted eamings per share were $0.46 and $1.40 for the periods ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 respectively.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
and with general practices within the banking industry, which require managemcnl to make estimates and assumptions (see Note | to
Consolidated Financial Staternents). ..

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Management believes that its determination of the allowance for loan losses involves a higher degree of judgment and complexity than
the Bank’s other significant accounting policies. Further, these estimates can be materially impacted by changes in market conditions
or the actual or perceived financial condition of the Bank's borrowers, subjecting the Bank to significant volatility of eamings. The
allowance for credit losses is established through a provision for loan losses, which is a charge against eamings. Provnsuons for Ioan
losses are made to reserve for estimated probable losses on loans. S e el e e

The allowance for loan losses.is a significant estimate and is regularly evaluated by management for accuracy by taking .into
“consideration factors such as changes in the natre and volume of the loan portfolio; trends in actual and forecasted portfolio credit
quality, including delinquency, charge-off and bankruptcy rates; and current economic conditions that may affect borrowers’ ability to
pay. The use of different estimates or assumptions could produce different provisions for loan losses. Because current economic
conditions ¢an change and future events are inherently difficult to predict, the anticipated amount of estimated loan losses, and
therefore the adequacy of the allowance, could change. Management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate and properly
recorded in the financial statements. For further discussion of the allowance for loan losses, see “PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES”
below, and “Summary of Loan Loss E*(penencc" and “Allowance for Loan Losses” under “BUSINESS™ above.

‘ESTIMATES OF FA]R VALUE

The estimation of fair value is significant to a number of the Corporation's assets, including, but not limited to, investment securities,
derivatives, other real estate owned, intangible assets and other repossessed assels. Derivatives and investment securities are recorded
at fair value while other real estate owned, -intangible assets and other repossessed assets are recorded at. either cost or fair value,
whichever is lower. Fair values for investment securities and derivatives are based on quoted market prices, and if not available,
quoted prices on similar instruments. The fair values of other real estate owned and repossessions are typically determined based on
third-party appraisals less estimated costs to sell. Intangible assets, such as the chaner cost, are penod:ca]ly cvaluated to determine if
any impairment might exist.

The estimation of fair value and subsequent changes of fair value of investment securities, derivatives, other rea) estate owned,
repossessions and intangible assets can have a significant impact on the value of the Corporation, as well as have an impact on the
recorded values and subsequently reported net income. -

Changes in interest rates is the primary determining factor in the fair value of investment securities, derivatives, and the value at which
these assets are reported in the Corporation’s financial statements. Local economic conditions are often the key factor in the valuation
of other real estate owned and repossessed assets. Changes in these factors can cause assets to be written down and have an impact on
the financial results. The overal! financial condition and results of operations of the banking unit is the pnma:y determinant as to the
value of recorded intangible assets. .




NET INTEREST INCOME
(Dollars in Thousands)

. . e 2007 2006

Interest income (1) $ 27,945 § 25,700
Interest expense . 13,563 9,756

Net interest income R .. 14,382 15,944
Provision for loan losses —1.380
Net interest income after provision for ]oan losses on a tax equwalenl basns 13,002 14,984
Less: tax equwalcm ad_lusn'nem . 735 650
Net interest income afier provision for loan Iosses $ 12267 § 14334

(1) Income on tax-exempt obligations has been-computed on a full federal tax-equivalent (FTE) basis using an income tax rate of 34%
for 2007 and 2006.

Tolal interest income (on an FTE ba51s) mcreased 10 $27 945 650 in 2007, from $25,700,192 in 2006, an increase of $2,245,458, or
8.74%. This increase is a function of the change in average earning assets along with the rising interest rate environment that prevailed
during the first seven months of 2006. The Bank expects this growth rate to slow as the Federal Reserve has and continues to reduce
interest rates. Average Joans increased $8,988.468 while the average rate eamed decreased 26 basis points causing an overall increase
in interest eamed on loans of $487,925. The average interest rate (FTE) eamed on all eaming assets in 2007 decreased to 7.38% from
7.64% in 2006. The interest margin decreased.to 3.80% in 2007 from 4.74% in 2006. Average taxable investment securities for 2007
were $73,682,029, as compared to $44,501,957 for 2006, an increase of $29,180,072, or 6.56%. Average tax-exempt investment
securities increased $3,879,867, or 12.17%, to $35,749,510 in 2007 from $31,869,643 in 2006. The average volume of federal funds
sold and interest bearing deposits in othcr banks decreased 10 $18,062,54) in 2007 from $18,904,043 in 2006, a decrease of $841,502
or 4.45%,

Total interest expense increased $3,806,771 or 38.88%, to $13,562,662 in 2007, from $9,755,891 in 2006. This increase was a
function of an 18.78% increase in the volume of interest bearing deposits and the interest payments related to the Corporation’s Trust
Preferred Securities. The Corporalion expects interest expénse to remain on a relatively high growth rate as the balance of time
deposits continue to grow as customers move their lower interest beanng demand accounts into hlgher interest bearing time deposits.
The average rate paid on interest-bearing lizbilities in 2007 was 4.19% as compared 10 3.48% in 2006. Average interest-bearing
liabilities increased to $323,359,653 in 2007, from $280,486,011 in 2006, an increase of $42,873,641, or 15.28%. Average savings
and interest- bearmg demand deposits increased $11,001,843 or 13.91% to $90,122,758 in 2007, Average time deposils increased to
$174,009,411 in 2007, from $143,240,750 in 2006, an increase of $30,768,661, or 21.48%,. The average rate paid on time deposits
increased 10 4.83% in 2007 from 4.08% in 2006. The Corporation issued $4,124,000 of subordinated debentures in June of 2002 at an
interest rate of three month LIBOR plus 3.65%. The Corporation also issued $10,310,000 of subordinated debentures in September of
2006 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.68%. The 2002 issue was redeemed in September, 2007 as planned. The interest rate paid on
the subordinated debentures was 7.53% in 2007, a reduction from the 8.21% paid in 2006.

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

The provision for Joan losses is that amount necessary to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level appropriate for the
associated credit risk, as detérmined by management in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), in the
current portfolio. The provision for loan losses increased 43.75% for the year ended December 31, 2007 to $1,380,000 as compared to
$960,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The change in the provision maintains the allowance at a leve) that is determined to
be appropriate by management and the board of directors of the Bank.

The allowance for loan Iosses at December 31, 2007 rcpresents 1.49% of gross loans, as compared 1o 1.23% at December 31, 2006.

While it is the Bank’s policy to charge of‘f loans when a loss is consndcrcd pmbable there exlsts the risk of losses which cannot be
quantified precisely or attiibuted to particular loans or classes of loans. Because this-risk is continually changing in response to factors
beyond the control of t.he Bank, fmanagement’s judgment as to the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses is necessarily
approximate and imprecise. Adjustments to the allowance for loan losses may also be reguired by the FDIC or the Alabama
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Superintendent of Banks in the course of their examinations of the Bank. Accordingly, no assurances can be given that continued
evaluations of the loan portfolio in light of economic conditions then prevailing, results of upcoming examinations, or other factors
will not require significant changes to the allowance.

NONINTEREST INCOME

2007 2006

Service Charge Income $ 1,035,779 $§ 907,655
Nonsufficient Fund Charges, net 1,978,692 1,833,652
Mortgage Origination Fees - 213,07 261,473 .
Investment Securities Gains, (net) (3,780) (4,879)
Other 768.810 914.312

$. 2992572 £3.912.213
Total noninterest income increased $80,359 or 2.05%, to $3,992,572 in 2007, as compared to $3,912,213 in 2006

Income from service charges on deposits and non sufficient funds increased to $3,014,471 in 2007, from $2,741,307 in 2006, an
increase of $273,164, or 9.96% as the Bank added new locations, deposits increased, and a review of account fees c0nducled durmg
the year resulted in fees being adjusted to more closely reflect lhose customarily charged in the local markat.

N

NON!NTEREST EXPENSE

: 2007 2006 e
Salaries and benefits $ 8315265 § 7,3538% . | .

Net occupancy ' 2,596,804 2,368,030
Other. . . 4.541.315 4.366,672
Total £ 15453384 § 14,088,598

Total noninterest expense increased $1,364,786, or 9.69%, to $15,453,384 in 2007 from $14,088,598 in 2006. Salaries and other
c0mpensation expense mncreased $961,369, or 13.07%. Occupancy expenses increased to $2,596,804 in 2007 from $2,368,030 in
2006, an increase of $228,774 or 9.66%. The Bank expects its current growth strategy, which incorporates the construction or
acquisition of approximately two to three locations per year, to continue into 2009 and to contribute to increases in noninterest
expense. The impact of the growth strategy is evident in increased salarics and benefits, as new ‘officers and staff mémbers are
required to be hired and traihed in order to adequately open new locations and provide necessary support functions. Occupancy
expense increased as the depreciation expense and the costs to operate these locations were incurred. The growth model, along with
the Bank's commitment to maximize current lcchnology. also impacts other expense. Othér expense increased to $4,541,315 in 2007,
from $4,366,672 in 2006, an increase of $174, 643, or 4.00%. Advertising and marketing expenses lo promote new locations and
services increased by $146,248. The cost of accounting, audit and other fees (including compliance with Sarbanes Oxley) increased by
$232,112. Reductions in data processing expense of $41,646 and printing and supplies of $48,525 were experienced throigh expense
control efforts. Additionally, write downs of ORE property were $188,000 less in 2007 than in 2006. The effective tax rate in 2007
was negative 27.94% as compared to 24.60% in 2006,

Basic earnings per share in 2007 were $0.46, as compared 1o basic earnings per share of $1.41 in 2006. Diluted carnings per share
were $0.46 in 2007 and $1.40 in 2006. Retun on average assets was 0.23% in 2007, as compared to 0.84% in 2006. Return on
average equity was 3.28% in 2007, as compared to 11.08% in 2006. As the Bank continues 10 lmplcmem its growth strategy over the
next few years these ratios may decline if the expenses from the growth strategy are realized prior to the realization of the expected
increases in revenue.

LOANS AT DECEMBER 31
C 2007 2006
Commercial, financial and agriculture $ 142,857,221 § 133,174,048
Real estate — construction - 68,699,154 - 59,392,025
Real estate — mortgage ° : . 41,738,820 37,899,222
Installment loans to |ndwnuals ) 13,842,528 15.173.427
Toals - | c - $ 267,137,723 § 245638722
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Total loans increased to $267,137,723 at December 31, 2007, from $245,638,722 at year end 2006, an increase of $21,499,001, or
8.75%. Al categories of loans.increased, “except installment loans, as the Bank entered new markets and increased the size of the
lending staff during 2007. The ratio of loans to deposits plus repurchase agreements is 65.14% at December 31, 2007 vs. 66.17% at
the same date in 2006. Bank Management believes that this ratio will increase as the Bank’s loan portfolio expands with the additions
of new markets and other cyclical fluctuations of agricultural loans and public deposits.

. LIQUIDITY -

One of the Bank’s goals is to provide adequate funds to meet changes in loan demand or any potential increase in the normal level of
deposit withdrawals. This goal .is accomplished primarily by generating cash from operaling activities and maintaining sufficient
shori-term assets. These sources, coupled with a stable deposit base, allow the Bank to fund eaming assets and maintain the
availability of funds. Management believes that the Bank's traditional sources of maturing loans and investment securities, cash from
operating activities and a strong base of core dcposnts are adequate to meet the Bank’s liquidity needs for normal operations. Should
the Bank’s traditional sources of liquidiry be constrained, forcing the Bank to pursue avenues of fundmg not typically used, the Bank's
net interest margin could be unpacted negatively. Additionally, the Corporation requnrcs cash for various operating needs mcludmg
dividends to sharcholders, the servicing of debt and general corporate expenses. The primary source of liquidity for the Corporation is
dividends from the Bank.

Asset and liability management functions not only serve to assure adequate liquidity in order to meet the needs of the Bank’s
customers, but also to maintain an appropriate balance between interest-sensitive assets and interest-sensitive liabilities so that the
Corporation can earn a return that meets the investment requirements of its shareholders. Daily monitoring of the sources and uses of
funds is necessary to maintain an acceptable cash position that meets both requirements.

The asset portion of the balance sheet provides liquidity primarily through lean principal repayments, maturities of investment
securities available for sale and, to a lesser extent, sales of investment securities available for sale. Other short-term investments such
as federal funds sold, interest bearing deposits in other banks and securities purchased under agreements to resell, are additional
sources of liquidity funding. ' )

The liability portion of the balance sheet provides liquidity through various customers’ interest bearing and noninterest bearing deposit
accounts. Federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase, out of market CD's and other short-term
borrowings are additional sources of liquidity. The Bank utilizes this short-term financing and maintains a borrowing relationship with
the Federal Home Loan Bank to provide liquidity. These sources of liquidity are short-term in nature and are used as necessary to fund
asset growth and meet shorn-term liquidity needs.

The Corponition’s bank subsidiary has an Asset Liability Committee, which has as its lprimary objective the maintenance of specific
funding and investment strategies to achieve short-term and long-term financial goals.

The Corporation generates the majority of its cash flow from financing activities. Financing activities provided $28,873,471 in cash
flow in 2007, as the result of an increase in deposits. The investing activities of the Corporation used $29,831,317 of cash flow, to
fund the investment portfolio, loan portfolios, and the purchases of premises and equipment of the Bank. Operations provided
$3,872,916 in cash flow for the year ended Dccember 31, 2007 .

CAP]TAL RESOURCES

The Corporation has historically relied primarily on intemally generated capital growth to maintain capital adequacy. The average
cquity to average assets ratio during 2007 was 7.12% as compared to 7.55% in 2006. Total stockholders’ equity on December 31,
2007 was $31,921,390, an increase of $1,196,670, or 3.89%, from $30,724,720 at year end 2006. This increase is the result of the
Corporation’s net earnings during 2007, decreased by dividends declared to stockholders of $672,379, and increased by another
comprehensive gain of $597,583 as reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income. The
Corporation’s risk based capital of $44,846,444, or 14.35%, of risk adjusted assets at December 31, 2007, was well above the
Corporation’s minimum risk based capital requirement of $25,003,490 or 8.0% of risk weighted assets. Based on management’s
projections, internally generated capital should be sufficient to satisfy capital requirements for existing operations into the foreseeable
future; however, continued growth into new markets may require the Bank to access external funding sources.
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In March of 2005, the Federal Reserve issued a final rule providing for the inclusion of Trust Preferred securities in Tier 1 risk
weighted capital, up to a limit of 25% of tota! Tier | capital. These securities comprised 24.47% of the Corporation’s Tier | Capital as
of December 31, 2007. . N .. . .

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Corporation’s consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and for the years thus ended are included in
the following pages shown in the index below.

Index 10 Financial Statcments . - : . Pasels)

Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . FI
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 ) . - F2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 . . L F3
Consolidated Statements of Stockholdérs’ Equity and Other Comprehensive Income for the years ended Decembér 31, 2007 ,
and 2006 ' ' D ", F4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 . . F5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — December 31, 2007 and 2006 . F6

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE b .

Not applicable
ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Based on evaluation of the Corporation’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and ) 5d-
15(¢) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as of the end of the period covered by this'annual
report, the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer of the Corporation have concluded that as of such date the
Corporation’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information the Corporation is required to disclose in its
filings under the Exchange Act is'recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Corporation in the reports
that it files under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Corporation’s management, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) There were no significant changes in the Corporation’s intemal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these
controls subsequent to the date of the evaluation referred to in (a) above.

(c) This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Corporation’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission thal permits the Corporation to provide only management’s report in this
annual report. - :

.t

(d) The Corporation’s management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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. PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Corporation has ‘determined that Dale M. Ash and Michael R. Andreoli are the Audit Committee
Financial Experts. Mrs. Ash and Mr. Andreoli are independent as defined in the listing standards of the National Asseciation of
Security Dealers. Additional information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Corporation’s definitive
Proxy Statement relating to the Corporation’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed not later than 120 days after the year
ended Decen}b'er 31, 2007 pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

ITEM 11, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION .

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to
the Corporation’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed not later than 120 days after the year ended December 31, 2007
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS ) :
_The information required by this item is incorporated herein by ;l.‘;fel'el’lce to the Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to
the Corporation’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders td be filed not later than 120 days afier the year ended December 31, 2007
pursuant to.Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information fcqﬁired by this item is incorporated herein by r;:fercnce to the Coiporation’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to
the Corporation’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed not later than 120 days afier the year ended December 31, 2007
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. .

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES-

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Corporation’s definitive Proxy Statement relating to
the Corporation’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockhg]ders to be filed not later than 120 days afier the year ended December 31, 2007
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) (1) The financiat statements listed in the Ii-!dex to Financial Statements contained in ltem 8 hereof are filed as part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K,
(2) Financial statement schedules have been omitted as inapplicable.
(3) The Exhibits jisted below are filed as part of this Report. Management contracts and compensatory plans and
arrangements required to be filed pursuant to ltem 15(b) are identified by an asterisk (*).
1.1 Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2006, among the Registrant, United Bancorp Capital Trust If and
TWE, Ltd., as Purchaser (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhibit 1.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2006). .
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhibit 3a to the
Registrant’s Annual Repont on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1988).
3.1.) Centificate of Amendment to Restated Centificate of Incorporation Of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference herein
from Exhibit 3.1.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q-for the Quanter Ended March 31, 1999).
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992).
4.1 Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of September 27, 2006, by and between the Registrant and Wilmington Trust
Company, as Trustee (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

10.1
10.2

10.3
10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12
21
23

311
31.2
321
32.2

Q for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2006). .

United Bancorp Capital Trust II Amended and Restated Trust Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2006, among the
Registrant, as Depositor, Wilmington Trust Company, as Property Trustee, Wilmington Trust Company,.as Delaware
Trustee and Robert R. Jones, 111 and Allen Q. Jones, as Administrative Trustees (Incorporated by reference herein from
Exhibit 4.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2006).

United Bancorp Capital Trust.1! Guarantee Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2006, by and between the
Registrant, as Guarantor and Wilmington Trust Company, .as Guarantee Trustee (Incorporated by reference herein
from Exhibit 4.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2006).

Common Securities Subscription Agreemeni, dated as of September 27, 2006, by and between United Bancorp Capital
Trust 11 and the Regisirant (Incorporated by reference herein from Exh:bn 4.4 1o Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2006).

Junior Subordinated Note Subscription Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2006, by and betweén United Bancorp
Capital Trust 11 and the Registrant (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhlblt 4.510 Reglstrant 5 Quarterly Repont
on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2006).

Form of Employment Agreement between United Bank and Robert R. Jones, lIl(]ncorporaled by teference hcrcm from
Exhibit 10.] to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997).*
Supplemental Agreement between United Bank, the Registrant, and Robert R. Jones, II] (Incorporated by reference
herein from Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1998)*.

1998 Stock Option Plan of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. (Incorporated by reference hcrem &om Exhibit
3.1.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quaner Ended March 31, 1999). |
1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. (mcorporated herem by refcrence
from Appendix A to the Registrants definitivé proxy statement dated Apnl 10, 2000)%."

Supplemental Compensation and Amendment Agreemem between United Bank and Robert R. Jones, 111 (Incorporated
by reference herein from Exhlbn 10.4 1o the Registrant’s Quanerly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quaner Endcd June
30, 2001).*

Placement Agreement for Floating Rate Cumulative Trust Preferred Securities of United Bancorp Capital Trust 1
effective as of June 27, 2002 among the Registrant, United Bancorp Capital Trust 1 and SAMCO Capital Markets, a
division of Service Asset Management Company (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhibit 1.1 to the Registrant’s
report on Forn 8-K dated June 27, 2002).

Indenture effective as of June 27, 2002 by and between the Reglstrant and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
Trustee (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhibit 4.1 10 the Registrant’s report on- Form 8-K dated June 27,
2002).

United Bancorp Capital Trust 1’ Amended and Restated Trust Agreement effective as of June 27, 2002, among the
Registrant as Depositor, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Property Trustee, Wells Fargo Delaware Trust
Company, as Resident Trustee and Robert R. Jones, 111, Mitcheli D. Staples and Charles E. Karrick, as Administrative
Trustees (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhibit 4.2 fo the Registrant’s report on Form 8-K dated June 27,
2002).

Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreemenmt effective as of June 27, 2002, by and between the Registrant and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Incorporated by referenoe herein from Exhibn 4.3.to the Registrant’s report
on Form 8-K dated June 27, 2002).

United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A 10 the
Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April
9,2007.*

First Amendment to Supplemental Compensation and Amendment Agreement between the Registrant and Robert R.
Jones, 111, dated as of December 12, 2007 and effective January 1, 2008 (Incorporated by reference herein from Exhibit
10.12to the Registrant’s report on Form §-K dated December 12, 2007).*

Employment Agreement between United Bank and Allen O. Jones, .lr (filed herewith).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Mauldm & Jenkins, LLC)

Centification of Chief Executive Officer under Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d- 15(¢)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer under Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and ]5d 15(e)

Certificate pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 -

Certificate pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 . -
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requimmems.of section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

26

UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA,
INC.(Registrant)

BY: /s/ Robert R. Jones, 111
Robert R, Jones, 111

.President and Chief Executive Officer

March 27, 2008




Pursuant to the requlremcms of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been 51gned below by the foowing persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES CAPACITY IN WHICH SIGNED DATE

{s/ Robert R. Jones, JIt President, Chief Executive Officer, and Direcior March 27, 2008
Robert R, Jones, 111

1/ Allen O. Jones. Jr. - Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer (Principal March 27, 2008
Allen O, Jones, Ir. . Financial and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ William J. Justice Director March 27, 2008
William J. Justice

/s/ David D. Swift Director March 27, 2008
David D. Swift

{s/ Dale M. Ash Director March 27, 2008
Dale M. Ash

/sf Michael Andreoli Director March 27, 2008
Michael Andreoli

s/ L. Walter Crim Director March 27, 2008
L. Walter Crim

/5! ), W, Trawick Director March 27, 2008
J. W. Trawick
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
United Bancorporation of Alabama, luc.
Atmore, Alabama

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these finanéial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that:we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit incjudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the years thén ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We were not engaged 1o examine management’s assertion about the effectiveness of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 included in the accompanying ltem 9A (T), “Controls and
Procedures” and,.accordingly, we do not express an opinion thercon.

fs/ Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Birmingham, Alabama
March 27, 2008
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UNITED BANCORPORAT]ON OF ALABAMA INC

AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Assels

Cash and due from banks -

Interest bearing deposits in banks

Federal funds sold

Cash dnd short-term investments

Interest bearing deposits with other Securities available for sale, at fair
value (amortized cost of $111,718,759 and $I09 175,484 at Dcccmbcr
31, 2007 and 2006, respecnvely)

Loans

Less: Allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Premises and equipment, net

Interest receivable

Intangible assets

. Other assets

Total assets
Liabilitles and Stuckholders Equity
Deposits:
Non-interest bcanng
Interest bearing
Total deposits

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta

Treasury, tax, and loan account

Interest Payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Notes payable to Trusts, net of debt issuance costs of $111,147 in 2006

Total habilities

Stockholders’ equity:

Class A cemmon stock, $0.01 par value. Authorized 5,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding, 2,383,097 and 2,375,471 shares in 2007 and
2006, respectively

Class B common stock, $0.0) par value. Authorized 250,000 shares; no
shares issued or outstanding

Preferred stock of $.01 par value. Authorized 250,000 shares; no shares
issued or outstanding

Additional paid in capital

Uneamned stock based compensation

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Retained earnings

Less: 134,654 and 142,789 treasury shares, at cost, respectively
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

1007 2006

$ 17,571,893 § 19,558,529

31,547,422 31,645,717
5000000 0 -

54,119,315 51,204,246

111,945,701 108,410,473
267,137,723 245,638,722 -

3,981,922 3.011.731
- 263,155,801 242,626,991

16,808,578 11,796,175

3,952,077 3,579,922

934,763 . 917,263 . _ .
6,385725 _ - 7.635904 . .

. § 457,301,960 § 476,170,974

5. 62,854,927 5 64,993,029
306,047,638 261,842 434
368,902,565 326,835,463

41,203,851 44,410,101

1,774,700 6,939,500

691,668 857,015
1,161,362 937,314
1,336,424 1,144,008

10,310,000 14,322 853
425,380,570 395,446,254

23,831 23,755

0 0

0 0
5,916,367 5,673,088
(51,403) 0
122,105 (475,478)

26,700,500 26,341,116
32,711,400 31,562,481

790.010 837,761
31,921,390 30,724,720

£ 457,301,960 § 426,170,974

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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UNITED BANCORPORAT]ON OF ALABAMA, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

COnsohdated Statements of Operations

Years ended December 3t, 2007 and 2006

Interest income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on investment securities available for sale:
Taxable
Nontaxable
Total investment income
Other interest income
Total interest income
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits
Interest on other borrowed funds
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for Joan losses
‘Net interest income afler provision for lean losses
Noeninterest income:
Service charge on deposits
Commission on credit life
Investment securities losses, net
Other
Total noninterest income
Noninterest expense: .
Salaries and benefits
Net occupancy expense
Other
Total noninterest expense
Eamings before income tax expense (benefits)
[ncome tax expense (benefits)
Net earnings

" Basic earnings per share
. Basic weighted average shares outstanding

Diluted earnings per share

. Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

2007

2006

$ 21,194,540 § 20,814,959

3,661,508 2,095,191
1.428.219 1.261.694
5,089,727 3,356,385
925,634 £78.384
27209901 __25050,228
10,458,704  7,042,42)
3.103,958 __ 2713470
_ 13562662 __ 9.755.891
13,647239 15294337
1,380,000 960,000
12267239 __14,334.337
3,014,471 2,741,307
57,499 45,666
(3,780) (4.879)
924382 __ 1.130.119
-3.992.572 __ 39]22}j3
8,315,265 7,353,896
2,596,804 2,368,030
454]1315 _ 4,366,672
15.453.384 __14.088.598
806427 4,157,952

225 1.022.882

3 0.46 S 1.4]
2240010 2,225,269

$ 0.46 1.40
2,251,838 2,232,279

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Balance December
31,2005
Net eamnings
Onther
comprehensive
ncome (Note 18)
Comprehensive
income
Cash dividends
declared ($.30
per share)
Exercise of stock
options
Tax bene fit from
exercise of stock
options
Purchase of
uTcasury shares
Treaswy shares
issucd 10
dividend
reinvestment
plan
Swock-based
compensation
Balance December
31, 2006
Net camings
Other
comprehensive
income (Note 18)
Comprehensive
income
Cash dividends
declared ($.30
per share)
Exercisc of stock
oplions
Tax benefit from
exercise of stock
options
Treasury shares
issued to
dividend
reinvestment
plen
Trensury shares
issued 10
employee stock
purchase plan
Restricted Stock
Grants
Stock-based
compensation
Balance December
31,2007

UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA INC.
" AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity and Comprchcnswe Income
Years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Accumaated Uncarmed
Addiriona other Stock Total
paid in Retained comprehensive Based Treasury stockholders”
—barey _sgsk_ —Copitl  _ epomes  _ incomefloss)  _ Compepsation. Siock —Eguity —lncome
2366871 § 23669 § 5445822 $ 23,874,164 S (512299 § 0§ (805,711) § 28,025,643
3135070 . . .. 3135070
3,821 L 36,821
(668,118) - (668,118)
8,600 86 135,304 . < 135390
8,701 " R ¥ [
(63,750) (63,750
64,864 3,700 ¢ T 96,564
15,397 o 18,397
2395471 § 3755 S S6T3.088 § 26341116  §  (475478) S 0 S (837.761) 5 30,724,720
- 1,031,758 1.031,758
597.583 597,583
(672,314) (672,374)
2,000 20 . 22,380 o 22,400
5313 : - T 5313
96,425 41411 137,836
10,649 6,340 16,989
5,626 56 101,212 1101,268) 0
7300 49.865 57,165
2381007 23831 S S9I6367 § 26700800  &_122105 S_(5140h) S (090010) § 31621390

See accompanying notes to conslidated financial statements
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$ 3,135,070

— 3882
43471891

$ 1,031,758

— 397583
11629341



United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc.

And Subsidiary .
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities L .
Net earnings ’ : : $ 1,031,758 & 3,135,070
Adjustments 1o reconcile net eamings to net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for loan losses 1,380,000 960,000
Depreciation of premises and equipment 1,183,299 1,217,193
Net amortization of premium on investment securities 206,900 72,812
Loss on sales of investment securities available for sale, net 3,780 4,879
Gain on sale of other real estate ' (28,516) (12,501)
Stock-based compensation 57,165 18,397
Gain on disposal of equipment (3,786) (3,987)
Deferred income taxes (471,729) 238,646
Writedown of other real estate 90,000 278,100
Increase in interest receivable oo _ (372,15%) (506,390)
(lncrease) decréase in other assets . L o 334,530 (871,072)
Increase in interest payable - ' ‘ 224,048 341,684
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other llabllmes 237,621 {719.149)
Net cash provided by operating acl:vmes 3.872915 4,147,682
Cash flows from investing activities -
Proceeds from maturities, calls, and principal repayments of i mvestment securities
available for sale . 114,141,651 8,615,708
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale 18,055,198 1,743,150
Purchases of investment securities available forsale . - ) (134,974,231}  (47,832,178)
Net increase in loans o (22,113,810)  (16,544,981)
Purchases of premises and equ:pmenl net (6,176,578) (3,192,253)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipmet . 24,662 24,832
Insurance claim received . ] _ ] 1,038,775 —_
Proceeds from sale of other real estate : : ' ~ 173.016 484.901
Net cash used in investing activities __(29.831,317) _ (56,700.821)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in deposits : " 42,067,102 35,814,992
Net increase (decrease) in secunhes sold under agr:emcnrs to repurchase (3,206,250) 9,980,727
Cash dividends ‘ (701,936) (668,118)
Exercise of stock options ' . ' 22,400 135,390
Tax benefit from exercise of common stock 5,313 8,701
Purchase of treasury stock . - ) — (63,750)
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock S T : 16,989 -
Advances from FHLB Atlanta . ) . — 5,000,000
Repayments of advances from FHLB Allanta L S . (5,164,800) (7,173,415)
Proceeds from Trust Preferred Issuance - —_ 10,000,000
Redempuon of Trust Preferred (net unamortized issuance costs) (4,000,000) —
Decrease in other borrowed funds (165.347) (143.985)
Net cash provided by financing activities 28873471 52,890,542
_Net increase in cash and short-term investments 2,915,069 337,403
Cash and short-term investments, beginning of period N 51,204 246 50.866,843
Cash and short-term investments, end of permd § 54119315 § 351,204,246
Supplemental disclosures '
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest ! ' - S $ 13338614 § 9,414,207
Income taxes - - o S - S ' 94,454 1,564,073
Noncash transactions
Transfer of loans to other real estate through foreclosure b 205,000 $ 240,000

See Notes to conslidated financial statements
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of United Bancorporation of Alabama,
Inc. (the Corporation) and its wholly owned subsidiary United Bank (the Bank), collectively referrcd to as the Corporauon
Significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b) Market Concentrations

The Corporation operates primarily in one business segment, commercial bankKing, in Southwest Alabama and Northwest
Florida. ‘ ‘ '

{c) Basis of Presentation

. . 1 - L3

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles gér'lelja[ly accepted in the
United States of America. In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions
that affect 1he reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of
the balance sheet and revenues and expenses for the period. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of.the
allowance for loan losses. In connection with the determination of the allowance for loan losses, management’ obtains
independent appraisals for significant properties. '

Managemem believes the allowance for losses on loans is appropriate. While managemem uses available information to
recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions,
pamcularly in Southwest Alabama and Northwest Florida, In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an mtegml part of their
examination process, periodically review the Corporation’s allowance for losses on loans. Such agencies may rcqu:re the
Corporatien to n:cogmze additions to 1he allowance based on their judgments about mfon'natlon available fo them at the time
of their examination.

(d) Cash and Shori-Termn Investments

The Corporation considers due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in banks, and federal funds sold to be cash.and short-term
investments. Federa) funds are generally sold for one-day periods.

(e) Investment Securities Investment securities are classified in one of three portfolios: (i) trading account securities, (ii) held to
maturity securities, and (iii) securities available for sale. Trading account securities are stated at fair value. Investment
securities held to maturity are stated at cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and-accretion of discounts. Investment
securities available for sate are stated at fair value with any unrealized gains and losses reported in a separate componen of
stockholders’ equity, net of wax effect, until realized. Once realized, gains and losses on investment securities available for sale
are reflected in current period eamings. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006 all investment securities were classified 2s
available for sale.

Net gains and losses on the sale of investment securities available for sale, computed on the specific identification method, are
shown separate]y it noninterest income in the consolidated statements of' operations. Accretion of discourits and amortization
of premiums are calculated on the effective interest method over the anticipated life of the security.

A decline in_the fair value of any security below amortized cost that is deemed other than temporary is charged to income
resulting in the establishment of a new cost basis for the security or the securities call date, whichever comes first.
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(0 Loans

Interest income on loans is credited to eamnings based on the principal amount outstanding at the respective rate of interest.
Accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when a loan becomes contractually past due by 90 days or more with respect to
interest or principal. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued, but not collected, is charged
against current period interest income. Income on such loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash is received and
where the future collection of principal is probable. Interest accruals are recorded on such loans only when they are brought
fully current with respect to interest and principal and when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated to be
fully collectible as to both principal and interest. e

As of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, approximately 64% and 61%, respectively, of the Corporation’s Joans were

commerciat loans. The Corporation’s commercial customers are primarily small to middle market enterprises. The Corporation

slso specializes in agricultural loans, which represented approxmately 15% of the Corporation’s total loans at both December
31,2007 and December 31, 2006, respectwely e e

® Allowance Jor Laan Losses

Managcmem COI’ISIdCI‘S a loan to be impaired when itis probable that the Corporanon will be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is considered impaired, the amount of impairment is
measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate. If the loan is
collatera|—dependem the fair value of the collateral is used to determine the amount of impairment. lmpairment losses are
included in the allowance for loan losses through a charge to the provision for loan losses. Impaired loans are charged off
| . . against the allowance when such loans are deemed to be uncollectible. Subsequent recoveries are added to the allowance.

' When a loan is considered impaired, cash receipls arc applied under the contractual terms of the loan agreement, first to
principal and then to interest income. Once the recorded principal balance has been reduced to zero, future cash receipts are
recogmzed as interest income, to the extent that any interest has not been recognized. Any further cash receipts are recorded as
recoveries of any amount previously charged ofY.

A loan is also considered impaired if its terms are modified in a troubled debt restructuring. For those accruing impaired loans,
cash receipts are typically applied to principal and interest receivable in accordance with the terms of the restructured loan
agreement. Interest income is recognized on these loans using the accrual method of accounting.

The ultimate ability to collect a substantial portion of the Corporation’s loan portfolio is susceptible to changes in economic
and market conditions in the gcographnc area served by the Corporstion and various other factors.

Additions to the allowance for loan losses are based on management's evaluation of the loan portfolio under current economic
conditions, past Joan loss experience and such other factors, which, in management’s judgment, deserve recognition in
estimating loan losses. Loans are charged-off when, in the opinion of management, such loans are deemed to be uncollectible.
Subsequent recoveries are added to the allowance. .

(k) Premises and Equipment ‘

Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

(i) Other Real Estate . .

Other real estate represents property acquired through foreclosure or deeded to the Corporation in 1 lieu of foreclosure on real

estate morigage loans on which borrowers have defaulted. Other real estate js carried in other assets at the lower of cost or fair
' value, adjusted for estimated selling costs. Reductions in the balance of other real estate at the date of foreclosure are charged

to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent valuation decreases in the carrying value of other real estate as well as costs to

carry other real estate are recognized as charges to noninterest expense. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation
" had $550,776 and $620,776, respectively, in other real estate.
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(i) Intangible Assets.

Intangible assets represent purchased assets that lack ‘physical substance but can be identified because of contractual or other
legal rights. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but instead
are tested for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets that have finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful
lives and are also subject to impairment testing. The Corporation’s intangible assets have indefinite useful lives and are not
subject to amortization. See Note 6 for summaries of the Corporation’s inllangible assets.

(k) Income Taxes

The Corporation accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expeclcd 1o be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and habllmes ofa change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that mcludes the enactment date

(1) Stock Based Compensation

At December 31, 2007, the Corporation had options and other equity awards outstanding under two stock-based -employee
compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 12. Effective, January 1, 2006, the Corporation adopted FASB
No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, whereby compensatlon cost is recogmzed for all stock- bascd payments based upon the
grant-date fair value.

(m) Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted eamings per share are computed on the weighted average number of shares outstanding in accordance with
SFAS No. 128, Eamings Per Share. Note 13 provides additional disclosure information regarding eamings per share.

(n) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measuréments. The Statement provides guidance for
using fair value 1o measure assets and liabilities. It defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under
generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurement. Under the Statement, fair
value refers to the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the market in which the reporting entity transacts. It clarifies the principle that fair value should be based
on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability. In support of this principle, the Statement
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. Under the Statement, fair
value measurements would be separately disclosed by level within the fair value hierarchy. Statement No. 157 is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after Nevember 15, 2007 and is not expected to have a matenal impact
on the Corporation’s financial condition or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
— Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. The Statement permits an entity to choose to measure many fipancial
instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates, A business entity will report unrealized gains and
losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value
option may be applied instrument by instrument (with a few exceptions), is irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs) and
is applied only to entire instruménts and mot fo portions of instruments. Most of the provisions in Statement 159 are elective;
however, the amendment to FASB Statement No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investmenis' in Debt and Equity Securities,
applies to all entities with available-for-sale and trading securities. Statement No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of an
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entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007 and is not expected to have a material impact on the Corporation’s
financial condition or results of operations.

In.December 2007, the FASB ‘issued Statement No. 141 (Revised 2007), Business Combinations. The Statement will
significantly change the accounting for business combinations, as an acquiring entity will be required to recognize all the
.assets and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions. The Statement changes
the accounting treatment for several specific items, such as acquisition costs, noncontrolling interests (formerly referred to as
minority interests), contingent liabilities, restructuring costs and changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances. The
Statement also includes a substantial number of new disclosure requirements. Statement No. 141R applies prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting peried beginning
.on or after December 15, 2008. Early adoption is prohibited. The Corporation is currently evaluating the impact the adoption
of this statement will have on the accouming for fumre acquisilions and business combinaticns.

In December 2007, the FASB |ssued Stalemem No. 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financiol Statements — An

" Amendment of ARB No. 51. The Statement establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest
{formerly referred to as minority interests) in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Statement No. 160 is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on our after December 15, 2008 and early
adoption is prohibited. The Corporation currently.does not have any noncontrolling interests and is evaluvating the impact the
adoption of this statement will have on the accounting for future business combinations and ventures.

{0) Reclassifications

" Ceitain items on the consolidated balance sheets for the year ended December 31, 2006 have been reclassified, with no effect
on total assets, 1o be consistenl with the classifications adopted for the year ended December 31, 2007

(2) Cash and Due From Banks

The Bank is required by the Federal RcScrvc Bank to maintain dally cash balances. These balances were $2,048,000 and
$2,984,000 at December 31,2007 and 2006, respectively.

(3) Tavestment Securities

_ The amortized cost and fair Value of investment securities available fér sale at December 31,2007 and 2006 were as follows:

* Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
cost gainy losses value
2007:
U.S. govemnment sponsored agencues. excludmg mortgage-backed . . .
securities $ 59297311 $ 349616 S (32,722) § 59614208
State and political subdivisions - 35,446,149 - 223,688 (250,838) 35,418,999
Mortgage-backed securities - 16975299 - 81329 (144.131) 16912.497
2006: .
U.S. government sponsored agencies, excluding mongagc—backcd
securities $ 55111,730 $ 49238 § (268,097) $ 54,892,87I
State and political subdivisions 32,648,697 232,723 {230,686) 32,650,734
Mortgage-backed securities . 21415057 14215 (562.404) 20.866 868

£.109,175,484 § 296,176 S (L061,187) § 108,410,473

The FASB Emerging lssues Task Force Issue 03-01, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and lis Application to
Certain Investments tequires disclosure. of certain information about other than temporary .impairments-in the market value of
securities. Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and mere frequently
when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation, Consideration is given to (1) the length of 1ime and the extent 1o
which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and
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ability of the Corporation to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery
in fair value. e

Those invesiment securities which have an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2007 and 2006, are detailed below:

2007 o lessthani2momths 12 months or more . Total
Description of Unreatized Unrealized ' Unrealized

Sceuritics Fair Value Josses Fair Vlue lgssés Fair Value
U.S. Government ' .
sponsored agencies &
mortgage-backed

securnities $ 21,639,799 $ 33,336 § 14,]88,655 $ 143,517 8 35828454 S 176,853
State and political . . . : .
subdivdisions 7.418.877 127,547 9.069.492 123.291 16,488.369 250,838
Total temporarily ’ - Coe L
. impaired securities £ 20058676 § 160883 § 23258147 § 266808 § 52316823 § 421,691
2006 Lcss than 12 months 12 mooths ot more T
Description of Unrealized Unrealized ©° Unrealized

Securities _ FairVelwe . josses . FairVale  _ losses . Fair Value .. losscs
U.S. Government sponsored . . -
agencies & mortgage-

backed securities $ 11,416,997 § 100,759 § 32,802,651 S 729,742 § 44,219,648 § 830,501
State and political

subdivdisions 6,115,311 57,643 . 10235173 173,043 16,350,484 . 230,686
Total temporarily impaired .

securities $17532308 S$.1584027 § 43037824 § 902785 $ 60570132 § LOGLIRZ

In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, management considers whether the securities are issued by the federal govemment or
its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies has occurred, and industry analysts’ reports. As management has the
ability to hold debi securities unti] maturity, or for the foreseeable future if clagsified as available for sale, no declines are deemed
10 be other than temporary. ' '

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2007, categorized by contractual
maturity are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities for morgage-backed securities because
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties. Therefore, these securities are not
presented by maturity class in the following table.

Amortized Fair
cost yalu¢
Investment securities available for sale:
Due in one year or less : $ 22928317 § 22902542
Due after one year through five ye 20,379,868 20,554,022
Due after five years through ten years 35,825,067 36,103,296 .
Due after ten years : 15.610.208 15.473.344
Subtetal 94,743,460 95,031,204
Mortgage-backed securities 16.975,299 16,912,497
Total $ 111718759 $ 111945701

Gross gains of $139 and gross losses of $3,919 were realized on sales of investment securities available-for sale in 2007. Gross
gains of $3,886 and gross losses 0f $8,765 were realized on sales of investment securities available for sale in 2006,

Securities with carrying values of approximately $102,745,000 and $69,210,000 a1 December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
were pledged to secure public' and trust deposits as required by law and for other purposes. . :
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(4) Loans and Allowaace for Loan Losses

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the composition of the loan portfolic was as follows:

2007 2006
Rea) estate — construction $ 68,699,154 § 59,392,025
Real estate — 1- 4 family residential mortgage 41,738,820 37,899,222
Real estate — commercial . 54,562,891 $6,294,859
Real estaté — other : o 31,537,613 23,699,403
" Agricultural e 9,254,558 13,238,214
- Commercial ’ ) - 46,129,553 38,653,631
Other loans * S ~ 15215134 16,461,368
" Total e C - §2611317)
A summary of the transactions in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 follows:
. . * Al . " ) 2007 - ZWG
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,011,731 § 3,028,847
) Provision charged to earnings o 1,380,000 960,000
. Less loans charged-off Coe (439,297 - (1,157,350)
Plus loan recoveries 29 488 80.185
Net charge-offs (409,800)  (},077,165)
Other adjustments — 100,050
Balance, end of year 3 3981922 & _301L731

Impaired loans, which consist of loans on which the accrual of interest had been discontinued or reduced totaled $11,710,174 and
$1,766,960 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The majority of the impaired loans is comprised of 7 loans totaling
$10,959,402 against which specific reserves in the amount of $1,825,820, 16.65% of the balance, have been provided.

The average amount of impaired Joans for the year 2007 and 2006, totaled approximately, $5,212,000 and $2,477,000,
respectively. If these loans had been current throughout their terms, interest income would have been increased by $685,398 and
$123,917, for 2007 and 2006, respectively. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation had no other significant impaired
loans. There was no significant amount of interest income recognized from impaired loans for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006. ’ C

During 2007, certain executive officers and directors of the Corporation, including their iinmediate families and companies with
which they are associated, were loan customers of the Bank. Total loans outstanding and available lines of credit to these related
parties at December 31, 2007 and 2006, totaled $7,854,404 and $6,583,666, respectively. Such Joans are made in the ordinary
course of business at nommal credit temms, including interest rate and collateral requirements, and do not represent more than a
normal eredit risk.

(5) Premises and Equipment .

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, prcmi_scs and equipment were as follows:

2007 2006
$ 5042293 § 3,341.23]

Land .

Buildings and Jeasehold improvements (depreciated over 5 to 50 years) 12,787,606 9,341,067

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment {depreciated over 3 to 10 years) . 7471361 . 6,727,116

Automobiles (depreciated over 3 years) 113,081 106,024

Censtruction in process .. , 364,391 88,986
. P ... 25,784,732 19,604,424

Less accumulated depreciation . ce o e uta o 8976154 1.808.249
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The balance of construction in process associated with building projects that are in process,-but are not complete, are anticipated to
cost approximately $5,370,000.

|
|
Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $1,183,299 and S‘I ,21 7,I93, respcclivel-y.
(6) Intangible Assets

Florida Charter - On July 2, 2004, the Corporation acquired a State of Florida banking charter from a financial institution.
Subseguent to the purchase, the charter was terminated but the Corporation retained the legal right to branch into Florida through
its existing Alabama bank charter. The Corporation accounts for the charter cost as an indefinite lived intangible asset because the
legal right acquired does not have an expiration date under Florida banking laws and there is no renewal process to keep the
branching rights. The Corporation tests the intangible asset each September 30 for impairment. A1 December 31, 2007, the
Corporation operates two branch offices in Florida.

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, no impairment was recorded related to the intangible asset. As of December 3 I,
2007 and 2006, the Corporation had recorded $917,263 in intangible assets related to the cost of the charter,

Internet Domain Address - On March 21, 2007, the Bank purchased the rights to the intemet domain name www.unitedbank.com
for $17,500. This interne1 domain is dcﬁned as an intangible asset with an 1ndeﬁmle l1fe under FAS 142 and, as such, is not
required to be amortized over any period of time. - -

{7) Deposits

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, deposits were as follows:

. 2007 2006 -
Noninterest bearing accounts § 62,854927 $ 64,993,029
NOW accounts . 84,770,810 68,550,299
Money market invesiment accounts : 17,692,439 19,554,738
Savings account o 17,248,660 - . 18,626,579
Time deposits: . ) .

Time deposits less than £100,000 98,911,207 86,467,042

Time deposits greater than $100,000 87,424,522 68.643.776

Total deposits § 368.902.565 § 326835463

At December 31, 2007 and 2006 imeresl‘expense on deposits was as {"olloiys:

2007 2006

NOW accounts § 1334097 § 704,904
Money market investment accounts 671,496 438237 .
Savings accounts 45,980 53,401
i Time deposits: . .
! Time deposit less than $100 000 6,634,034 4,109,442
Time deposit greater than 5100 000 1,773,097 1,741,437
- Total interst expense on deposits g 10458704 5 7,042,421
Al December 31, 2007, the contractual maturities of time deposits are as follows:
_ Due in one year $ 152,675,496
- Due in one to two years 18,746,976
Due in two to three years 4,946,662
Due in three to four years 4,819,290
Due in four 1o five years 5147305
5 186,335,729
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During 2007, certain executive officers. and directors of the Corporation were deposit customers of the Bank. Total deposits
outstanding to these related. parties at December 31, 2007, amoumed 10 $3,035,330.

{8) Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repunha§
- The maximum amount of outstanding securities sold under agreements to repurchase during 2007 and 2006 was $83,228,977 and
349,918,476, respectively. The weighted average borrowing rate a1 December 31, 2007 and 2006 was 3.34% and 4.17%,
. respectively. The average amount of outstanding securities .sold under. agreements to repurchase during 2007 and 2006 was
$40,908,908 and $41,745,119 respectively. The weighted average borrowing rate during the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006, and 2004 was 4. 18% and 3.98% respecuvely Sccurmes undarlymg these agreements are under the Corporation’s control.
)] Borroued Funds ' -

The Corporanon owed the Federa] Home Loan Bank of At]anta the followmg advances a1 December 31, 2007 and 2006.

2007
C * Matarify date _ " _lnterestrate
May 2012 7.41% 52,801
July 2017 6.93% 650,000
August 2017 6.84% 106,275
June 2020 - 4.62% §08,333
July 2020 7.54% 157.291
Total (welghted average rate of 5.94%) $_1.774 700
2006
: C Matngity date Interest rale
May 2012 o 7.41% 64,534
Apnl 2013 ] 4.53% 5,000,000
July 2017 . 6.93% 715,000
Augist 2017 6.84% 117,175
June 2020 . o . 4.62% 873,000
July 2020 7.54% 169791
Total (weighted average rate of 4.92%) $ 6,939,500

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the advances were collateralized by a blanker pledge of firss—morigage residential loans with
available collateral amounts of $7,447,206 and $5,047,238, respectively. At December 31, 2007 the Corporation’s advances were
also collateralized by Commercial Real Estate loans and Muhi Family Real Estate Ioans with available collateral amoums of
$1,479,210 and $241,780 respectwely

As of December 31,.2007, the Corporation had additional oulstandmg credit facilities with the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta totaling $30,000,000 in the form of letters of credit that mature in 2007. The letters of credit are collateralized by
$30,000,000 in deposits at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. N6 amounts have been drawn on these letters of credit during
2007.

(10) Notes Payable to Trust

United_Bancorp Capital Trﬁs_l. The trust preferred securities and related debentures were redeemed by the Corporation on
September 30, 2007.

United Bancorp Capita) Trust 11, In 2007, the Corporation formed a wholly-owned grantor trust to issue cumulative trust preferred
securities, The grantor trust has invested the proceeds of the trust preferred securities in junior subordinated debentures of the
Corporation. The junior subordinated debentures can be redeemed prior to maturity at the option of the Corporation on or after
September 30, 2011. The sole assets of the guarantor trust are the Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures of the
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Corporation (the Debentures) held by the grantor trust. The debentures have the same interest rate (three month LIBOR plus
1.68%, floating) as the trust preferred securities. The Corporation has the right to defer interest paymenis on the Debentures at any
time or from time to time for a period not exceeding 20 consecutive quarters provided that no extension period may extend beyond
the stated maturity of the related Debentures. During any such extension period, distributions on the trust preferred ccrtlﬁca:es
would also be deferred.

Payment of periodic cash distributions and payment upon liquidation or redemption with respect to the trust preferred securities are
guaranteed by the Corporation to the extent of funds held by the grantor trust (the Preferred Securities Guarantee). The Preferred
Securities Guarantee, when taken together with the Corporation’s other obligations under the Debentures, constitute a full and
unconditional guarantee, on a subordinated basis, by the Corporation of payments due on the trust preferred securities. ©  ~

The trust preferred securities and the related debentures were issued on September 27, 2007. Distributions on the trust preferred
securities are paid quarterly on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year. Interest on the Debentures is paid
on the corresponding dates. The aggregate poincipal amount of Debentures outstanding at December 31, 2007 was $10,310,000.

(11) Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense attributable to income from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006 were as follows:

2007 3006

Current: “
Federal . % 226407 $ 736,314
State ’ “19.59 47924

Total 246,398 784,238
Deferred:
Federal ) .. (419,277) 174,232
State S (52,452) 64.414
Total (471.729) 238,646
Total income tax expense $ (225331) um

Total income tax expense differed from the amount computed by applying the statutory’ federal income tax rate of 34% 10 pretax
earnings as follows:

. .. 2007 __ 2006
Income l1ax at statutory rate -3 274,525- % 1,413,704
Increase (decrease) resulting from: . ) . ' .
Tax exempt interest (540,041) . (471,962}
Interest disallowance 76,963 55,465
State income tax net of federal benefit (21,424) 74,143
Premium amortization on tax exempt mvcstmem securities 22,7133 21,892
Cash surrendered value of life insurance (30,850) (29,165)
GoZone tax credits ; (26,429) (30,032)
Other, net 19,192 {11.161)
$.025331) § 1,022,884

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant pomons of lhe defcrred tax assets and deferred tax habllmes at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:
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2007 2006

Deferred tax assets:

Loans, principatly due to the allowance for loan losses $ 1,129,131 $ 809,953
Other real estate, principally due to differences in camrying value 37,079 3,874
Deferred compensation ) 239,453 160,604
AMT credit camryover - : 202,417 —
Investment securities available for sale — 306,000
Interest rate floor ' — 13,594
Other ‘ . 2.987 28.694

Total deferred tax assets ' . o . 1.611.067 _ 1.322,719

Defetred tax liabilities: : ‘

Premises and equipment, principally due to difference in depreciation 415,589 286,794
Investment securities available for sale 81,410 _—
Discount accretion . - 34,996 29,605
Other . - - 86.932 83.599

Total deferred tax liabiiities . - 618,927 399,998

Net deferred tax assets . S 992740 § 922721

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or
all of the deferved 1ax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning ‘strategies. Based upon the level of historical
taxable income and projection for future taxable income over the periods which the temporary differences resulting in the deferred
tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the Corporation will realize the benefits of these
deductible differences.

{12) Stock Based Compeansation
Stock Options
1998 Stock Option Plan. The United. Bancorporation of Alabama,.Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan (the 1998 Plan) provides for the
grant of options to officers, directors, and employees of the Corporation to purchase up 10 an aggregate of 308,000 shares of Class

A Stock. As of December 31, 2007, 170,400 shares of stock could be granted in the future; however, it is not the intent of the
~ Corporation to grant additional options under the 1998 Plan. The changes in outstanding options are as follows:

Weighted-

. . average -
Sheres under  exercise price
Qmiﬂn e
Balance at December 31, 2003 70,200 $ 1470
Granted 6,000 16.67
Surrendered . (12,000) (135.75)
Exercised _{8.600) (15.73)
Balance at December 3I 2006 . 55600 . % 1450
Granted —_—
Surrendered —_
Exercised _(2.000) 1120
Balance at December 31, 2007 53,600 $ 14.38.

The following table displays information pertaining to the intrinsic value of option shares both outstanding and exercisable for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

c R Co e e L e MY 2006
Aggregate inrinsic value of outstanding options ..., . , $,220,837.§ 235,437 .
Aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable options . .. . .§ '21_5,03? 5. 227,637 .
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At December 31, 2007, 50,000 optioned shares were exercisable at prices between $8.00 and $18.00 per share. When options are
exercised, par value of the shares issued is recorded as an addition to commen stock, and the remainder of the proceeds (including
any tax benefit, if applicable) is credited to capital surplus. The following table summarizes information about stock options
outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006. : ' :

Stock options outstanding and exercisable on December 31, 2007 were as follows:

-
Exercise price per 20 Weighted average
- share remaining contractual Weighted average
Qutstavding: Shares under option life {n years exercise price
s 8.00 2,800 1.3 $ 8.00
11.25 8,160 . © L3 - 11235
12.87 8,160 20 12.87
15.65 8,960 3l 15.65
15.75 12,160 50 15.75
16.00 3,200 8.2 16.00
16.25 8,160 4.0 1625 -
18.00 2,000 8.6 18.00
23,600 6 5 1438
Exercisable: : :
$ 8.00 - 2,800 1.3 $ 8.00
11.25 8,160 1.3 - 11.25
12.87 8,160 2.0 12.87
15.65 8,960 3.1 15.65
15.75 12,160 5.0 15.75
16.00 1,200 8.0 16.00
16.25 8,160 5.0 16.25
18.00 800 86 18.00
20,400 a2 31460

Total intrinsic value of options exercised was $17,600 and $20,710 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 respecti\.rely.
The total fair value of options vested during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $22,200 and $21,032, respectively.

2007 Equity_Incentive Plan. The United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2007 Plan) provides
for the grant of stack options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards (discussed below), performance units, or any
combination thereof to officers, directors, and employees of the Corporation to purchase up to an aggregate of 308,000 shares of
Class A Stock. As of December 31, 2007, 300, 374 shares of stock could be granted in the future. The changes in outstanding
options are as follows:

Weighted
average
Shares under  exercise price
d option per share
Balance at December 31}, 2006 " —
Granted 2,000 § 18.50
Surrendered —
Exercised — —_
Balance at December 31, 2007 —2,000 $ 18.50

The shares outstanding and exercisable had no intrinsic values as of December 31, 2007 as the strike price was equal to the fair
market value of $18.50.

At December 31, 2007, 400 optioned. shares were exercisable a1 a price of $18.50 per share. When options are exercised, par
value of the shares issued is recorded as_an addition to common stock, and the remainder of the proceeds (mcludmg any tax
benefit, if applicable) is credited to capital surplus. The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding
at December 31, 2007.
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Stock options outstanding and exercisable on December 31, 2007 were as follows:

2007
Weighted average
Exercise price-per : . remainiog cootractual Weighted average
share Qutstanding: ‘Shares under option, life in years exercise price
- 2000 - 9.9 s 18.50
$18.50 — 2000 - s 9.9 b3 18.50
Exercisable: : ‘ :
400 9.9 b3 18.50
$18.50 400 9.9 5 -18.50

Grant-date fair value is' measured on the date of grant.using an option-pricing, model with market assumptions. The grant-date
fair values are amonrtized into expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting pericd. The company applies the Black-Scholes-
Merton option-pricing model which requires the use of highly subjective assumptions, including but not limited to, expected
stock price volatility, term, dividend rates, forfeiture rates, and risk-free interest rates, which if changed can materially affect fair
value estimates.

The following is a summary of our weighted average assumptions used to estimate, the weighted-average per share fair value of
options granted on the date of grant using the Black- Scholcs Meérton option-pricing model.

2007 2006
Weighted-average expected life (in years) ' 1000 0 6.67
Expected Volalility 2000%  20.00%
“ Risk-free interest rale BRI : 4.15%  5.02%
" Expected dividend yield . . 1.62% 1.90%

, ‘Weighted-average fair value of options gmnled dunng the period § 547 $ 426

Cash received from the exercise of opuons was $22, 400 and $135,390 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,

respectively. The tax benefit realized for.the tax deductions from options exercise of the share-based payment arrangements

. totaled $5,313 and $8,701 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

As of December 31, 2(3"07, there was $22,664 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to the nonvesied share based
compensation arrangements granted under the 1998 and 2007 Plans. That cost is expecied to be recognized over a period of 4
years. _ Coee

Restricted Srock

. On October §, 2007, two restricted stock awards were made to employees 1otaling 5,626 shares of restricted common stock with

an aggregate per share fair market value of $18.00: The first award of 2,620 shares was made with a six month vesting period.
The Corporation recognized $47,160 of stock based compensation expense as of the award date. The second award of 3,006
shares has a duration of 60 months with vesting’of one-third .of the award:on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversaries of the
award. The total expense associated with this grant of $54,108 will be recognized over the vesting pericd on a straight-line basis.
The unamortized balance of the fair value of.the restricted stock.grant has been recorded as uneammed compensation in the equity
section of the consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2007, there was $51,403 of unrecognized stock-based
compensation expense related o restricted stock, which is expected to be recognized over a pericd of 4.77 years,

The following tables present restricted stock activity:

Restricted  Weighted
stock average

fair val
Balance at December 31 2006 L = .
Granted - . C o o5626 - 18.00

Surrendered —
Vested — —
Balance at December 31, 2007 5626 18.00
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The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense:

: 2007 2006
" Stock Option Expense (1998 Plan) 5112 18,397
Stock Option Expense (2007 Plan) 2,188 —
Restricted Stock Expense (2007 Pian) 49.865 —
Total Stock Based Compensation Expense 57,165 18397

(13) Net Earnings per Share

Presented below is a summary of the components used to calculate d:luled eammgs per share for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006: o

2007 2006

Diluted earnings per share: ]
Basic weighted average common shares ouIstandmg 2,240,010 2,225,269
Effect of the assumed exercise of stock options-based on the ,

treasury stock method using average market price -~ 11,828 7,010
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 225,838 2,232,279 °

(14} Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan

The Corporation sponsors a dividend reinvestment and share purchase plan. Under the plan, all holders of record of common
stock are eligible to participate in the plan. Participants in the plan may direct the plan administrator to invest cash dividends
declared with respect to all or any portion of their common stock. Participants may also make optional cash payments that will be
invested through the plan. All cash dividends paid 1o the plan administrator are invested within 30 days of cash dividend
payment date. Cash dividends and optional cash payments will be used to purchase common stock of the Corporation in the open
market, from newly-issued shares, from shares held in treasury, in negotiated transactions, or in any combination of the
foregoing. The purchase price of the shares of common stock is based on the average market price. All administrative costs are
borne by the Comoration. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, 7,055 and 5,518 shares were purchased under the
plan respectively. .

(15) Employee Bencefit Plans
401(k) Savings Plan
Prior to October |, 2006, employees were eligible in the Corporation’s 401(k) Employee Incentive Savings Plan after completing
six months of service and attaining age 20.5. Eligible employees could contribute a minimum of 1%% up to 15% of salary to the
plan. The Corporation contributed one dollar for each dollar the employee contributed, up to 4% of the'employee’s salary, then
the company matched fifty cents for each dollar the employee contributed up to 7% of the employee’s salary.
Under a new 401(k) savings plan that became effective October |, 2006, employees are eligible after completing ninety days of
service and attaining age 20.5. Eligible employees can conmbute a minimum of (% up to 15% of salary to the plan. The
Corporation contributes one dollar for each dollar the employee contributes, up to 5.5% of the employee’s salary.
Contributions to the Plan charged to expense during 2007 and 2006 were $286,855 and $202,753, respectively.
Profit-Sharing Plan
The Corporation also maintains a profit-sharing plan for eligible employees. Eligibility requirements for this plan are the same as

the 401 (k) Employee Incentive Savings Plan, Annua] profit sharing contributions of $57,142 and $60,533 were made in 2007 and
2006, respectively.
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Salary Continuation Plan

The Cerporation provides a salary continuation plan providing for death and retirement benefits for certain executive officers. The
present value of the estimated amounts to be paid-under the plan is being accrued over the remaining service period of the
executives. The expense recognized for the salary ‘continuation. plan amounted to $82,030 and $77,382 for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The balance of the liability for the salary continuation plan included in other liabilities
at December 31,2007 and 2006 totaled $517,331 and $435,301, respectively. -

The cost of the salary continuation plan described above is being offset by earnings from bank owned life insurance policies on

the executives. The balance of the policy swrender values included in other assets totaled $ 2,506,756 and §2,416,020 at

December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Income recognized from the increase in cash surrender value on these policies totaled
-$90,736 and $85,774 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
The Corporation sponsors an employee stock purchase plan which is availat;le to all employees subject to certain minimum service
* - requiréments. The Plan is administered by a Board appointed committee which designates the offering period in which employees

. may purchase shares and the offering price. All.administrative costs are borne by the Corporation. For the years ended December
31, 2007 and 2006, 1,080 and 0 shares were purchased under the Plan, réspectively.

{16) Fair Value of Finapocial Instruments

The assumptions used in estimating the fair value of the Corporation’s, financial instruments are explained below. Where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using discounted cash flow and other valuation techniques.
Discounted cash flows can be significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future
cash flows. The following fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and should not be

* considered representative of the liquidation value of the Corporation’s financial instruments, but rather a good-faith estimate of the
fair value of financial instruments held by the Corporation.. SFAS No. 107 excludes certain financial instruments and all
nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements.

ﬁe following m'ethods'an‘d assmﬁ|:'1ion;s w.cre ﬁscd by the Coq.)c.n"s;tion in estir;lating the fair valﬁe of its ﬁnancia! instruments:
(a) Cash and Short-term Invesimenis

Fair value approximates the camrying value of such assets.
(8) Investment Securities and Other Securities

The fair value of investment securities is based on quoted market prices. The fair value of other securities, which includes
Federal Home Loan Bank stock and other correspondent stocks, approximates their carrying value.

(c) Loans
The fair value of loans is calculated using discounted cash flows and excludes lease-financing arrangements. The discount
rates used to determine the present value of the foan portfolio are estimated market discount rates that reflect the credit and
interest rate risk inherent in the loan portfolic. The estimated maturities are based on the Corporation’s historical experience
with repayments adjusted to estimate the effect of current market conditions.

(d) Bank Owned Life Insurance

The fair value of bank owned life insurance approximaies its carrying value.
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(e)

()

(h)

0

Deposits

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as non-interest bearing demand deposits, NOW accounts, savings and
money market deposit accounts, approximates the carrying value. Centificates of deposit have been valued using discounted
cash flows. The discount rates used are based on estimated market rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

The fair value estimates in the table below do not include the benefit that results from the low-cost funding provided by the
deposit liabilities compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the market.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Due to their short-term nature, the fair va]uc of securities sold under agreements to repurcha.se approxlmat% their carrying
value.

FHLB, Other Borrowed Funds and Subordinated Debt

. -

The fair value of the Corporation’s other borrowed funds and subordinated debt approximates the carrying value of such
liabilities. The fair value of FHLB advances have been valued using discounted cash flows, The discount rates used are based
on estimated market rates for borrowings of similar remaining maturities. S

Accrued Interest

The fair value of accrued interest receivable and payable approximates their carrying value. - - ‘

Commitments to Extend Credit and Standb_v Letters of Creda

There is no market for the commitment to extend credit and standby Ietters of credit and they were lssued without exphcn
cost. Therefore, it is not practical to establish their fair value.

The carrying value and estimated fair value of the Corporatlon 5 ﬁnancnal mstrumenls at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as
follows {in thousands):
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2007 2008

.Carrying  Estimated  Carrying  Estimated
jr yaloe irx
(Dollars in Thousznds)

Financial assets:

Cash and short-term investments ’ C ) "$ 54,119 % 54,119 % 51204 % 51,204
Investment securities 111,946 111,946 108,410 108,410
Loans, net of the allowance for loan losses 263,156 265,186 242,627 241,925
Bank owned life insurance - . . : S 2,507 2,507 . 2416 2,416

. Accrued interest receivable - L . 3,952 3,952 . 3,580 - 3,580
Financial liabilities: ot e ) - . , . _ .
Deposits 368,903 369,222 326,835 336,040

. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase . - , 41,204 41,204 44410 44410
,Other borrowed funds Ceo . 699 699 857 857
FHLB advances e T 1,775 1,897 6,939 7,054
Subordinated Debt ' ' ' S 10,310 10,310 14,323 14,323
Accrued interest payable , o L 1,161 1,161 937 937

(17) Dividends From Bank

Dividends paid by the Bank are the primary source of funds available to the Corpomhon for payment of dividends to its

stockholders and for other needs. Applicable federal and state statutes and. regulations 1mposc restrictions on the amounts of

dividends that may be declared by the subsidiary bank. In addition, the subsidiary bank is also required to maintain minimum
amounts of capital to total “risk-weighted™ assets, as defined by banking regulators. Capital adequacy considerations could
- further limit the availability of dividends from the subsidiary bank: During 2007, the'Bank could have declared an additional
. amount- of dividends of approxunalely 86, 500 000 wuhoul pnor approval of regulatory amhornities.

T

(18) Com prehenswe Income

" : The following is a summa..ry of the components of other comprehensive income:

i ded
2007 2006
Other comprehensive income before tax: ’
Unrealized holding gains arising during the period for securities, net $ 964,745 § 67,763
Reciassification adjuslment for losses on sales of securities included in net earnings 3,780 4,879
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the peried for cash flow hedges 30062 __ (13.888)
Other comprehensive income, before income taxes ' 998,587 © 58,754
[ncome tax expense (benefits) related to other comprehenstve income: ot
Unrealized holding gains arising during the peried for securities, net (385,898) (25,422)
Reclassification adjustment for losses on sales of securities included in net earnings {1,512) (1,952)
Unrealized holding (gains) losses arising during the period for cash flow hedges (13.590) 5,441
Total income tax expense related 10-cther comprehenswe income (401.004) (21.933)
Other comprehensive income after taxes - o $_ 597,583 S 36821

{19) Litigation

The Corporation is involved in various legal proceedings arising in connection with their business. In the opinion of management,
based upon consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these proceedings is not expected to have a material adverse
eﬁ'eci upon the financial smemems of the Corporation.

2n Commnmeuts

" The Corporatmn leases certain property and equipment for ‘use in its’ busmess 'Ihese leases have lease terms generally not in
excess of five years. Future minimum rental payments required under operating leases, which have initial or remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of cne year as of December 31, 2007, are as follows:
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Years ending December 31:

2008 $ 42,000
2009 25,000
Total 3 67,000

Rental expense for all operating leases charged 1o earnings aggregated $35,489 and $150,036 for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Corporation is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit.
Such instruments involve elements of credit risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. *

The Corporation’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the ether party to the financial instrument for
commitments 1o extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of these instruments. The
Corporation uses the same credit policies in making conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

The financial instruments whose contractial amounts represent credit risk as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, are approxlmalcly as
follows:

;

Years Ended Dcccmbet 31
’ i 2007- 2006 .
Commitments to extend-credit : $ 36,710,000 $ 33,394,000
Standby letters of credit 1,580,000 3,233,000.

Standby letters of credit are commitments issued by the Corperation to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party,
Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing amrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing
letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Corporauon holds varous
assets as collateral supporting those commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary, '

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in
the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clavses and may require payment of a fee.
Since many of the commitments are expected 1o expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. .

(2I).Othe'r Noninieresl Expense . .‘ .

Components of other noninterest expense exceeding 1% of the total of interest income and other income for any of the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, include the following:

R - 2007 2006
Advertising $ 639,572 § 481,016 .
Accounting and audit 349927 ° 214, 612

(22) Regulatory Matters

The Corporation and its subsidiary bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory -— and possibly additional
discretionary — actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Corporation. Under capital
adequacy guidelings and the regulatory framework of prompt corrective action, the Corporation and its subsidiary bank must
meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of each bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet
jtems as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification of the Corporation and its
subsidiary bank are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors,
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Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Corporation and its subsidiary bank to
maintain minimum core capital (Tier 1 Capital) of at least 4% of risk-weighted assets, minimum total capital (Total Qualifying

Capital) of at least 8% of risk-weighted assets and a minimum leverage ratio of at least 4% of average assets. Management
believes, as of December 31, 2007, that the Corporation and its-subsidiary bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which

they are subject.

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the appropriate regulatory agencies categorized the subsidiary bank
as “well capnallzed’ under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as “well capitalized™, the

subsidiary banks must maintain minimum Total

Qualifying Capital, Tier | Capital, and leverage ratios of at least 10%, 6%, and 5%, respectively. There are no conditions or

events since that riotification that management believes have changed the subsidiary bank’s category.
The following table presents the actual capital amounts and ratios of the Corporauon and ifs subsidiary bank at December 31,

2007 and 2006:
= __Total Qualifying Capital Tier ) Capital Levernge
Amount Ratip Amount Ratio Amouni Ratig
As of December 31, : )
2007: e - . ' ‘
United Bancorporation . $744,846 14.35% $ 40,865 13.07% $ 40,865 B.94%
United Bank _ - 143,822 14.03% 39,920 12.78% 39,920 9.44%
As of December 31, T
2006:
United Bancorporation $ 47286 16.40% $ 40,366 14.00% § 40,366 947%
United Bank 42,550 - 1ATT™% 39,538 13.72% 39,538 9.88%

(24) Parent Corporation Financial Information

The condensed ﬁnanclal information for United Bancorporanon of Alabama;, Inc. (Parent Corporauon Only) follows:

(Parent Company Only)
Condensed Balance Sheet Information
December 31, 2007 and 2006
Assets
Cash
Investment in subsidiary
Other assets

Total assets”
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Other liabilities
Note payable to Trust
Toral liabilities
Stockholders’ equity:
Class A common stock of $0.0! par value. Authorized 5,000,000 shares. 1ssued 2, 383 097 and
2,375,471 shares in 2007 and 2006, respectively
Class B common stock of $0.01 par valué, Authorized 250,000 shar:s, no shares issued
Preferred stock of $.01 par value. ~ . .
Authorized 250,000 shares; no shares lssued
Additional paid-in capntal .
Unearned stock based compensation
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Less: 134,654 and 142,789 wreasury shares at cost in 2007 and 2006, respectively
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
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2007 2006

$ 522,564 S 4,868,380
41,287,605 39,979,820
632,640 571.667

$£.45.419,.867

S 211,219 S 380,995
10,310,000 _ 14,322,853
10521219 _ 14,703,848

—— e et

E

23,831 23,755

5916367 5,664,387
(51,403) —
26,700,500 26,341,116

122,105 (475,478)
790.010 837,761
31.621,390 _ 30.716,019

£ 42,442,609 § 43,419,867

—— m——




(Parent Company Only)

Condenscd Statements of Operations Information

Income: -

Dividend income from subsidiary

Other income
Total income
Expense:

Interest on subordinated debentures

Other operating expense
Total expense

Income before equity in undistributed-income of subsndlarles and - -

faxes

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary

Income before taxes
Income tax benefit
Net eamings

Cash flows from ol:;crating activities:

Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net eamings 10 net cash
prowded by operating activities:

Equity in undistribuied earnings of subsnd;ary

Depreciation of premises and equipment

Stock-based compensation expense

Amortization of trust preferred cost

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Decrease {increase) in receivables

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment in bank subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:

~ Cash dividends

Purchase of treasury stock

Proceeds from sale of treasury stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Tax benefit from exercise of common stock
Redemption of subordinated debentures
Issuance of surbordinated debentures
Net cash provided by(used in) financial activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year
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Years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
$ 1,500,000 $ 1,320,000
30,523 151,158 -
[530.523 _ 1471158
1126275 567,449
201,424 286216
7377609 853,665
202,824 617,493 -
350336 _ 3.275.608
553,160 2,893,101
(478.598) __ (241.969)

£ L031758 § 3,135,070

2007 2006
$ 1,031,758 § 3,135,070
(350,336) (2,275,608)
— 137,i51
10,005 18,397
111,147 10,104
(411,616) {(43,000)
{719.740) 34.859
311218 1.016.973
—  — _ {6.000.000)
— — __(6000.000)
{701,936) {668,118)
— (63,750}
16,989 —
22,400 135,390
5313 —
- {4,000,000) _
- 10,000,000
{4.6572.234) 9,403,522
{4,346,016) 4,420,495
4.868.180 "~ 447885
b 522,364 §_4.868.380
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Employment Agreement between United Bank and Allen O. Jones, Jr. (filed herewith).
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Cons;:nl of lndependént Reg.islered P:Iblic Accounting Fim {Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC) |

Certification of Chief Executive Officer under Securities.Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
Certification .of Chief Fin'ancial; Officer under Se‘curities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e} and 15d-15(c)
Certificate pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 ' '

Centificate puirsuant to 18 U.S.C Section ]35b
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Exhibit 10.12
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement™) is made and entered imo as of the ___ day of September, 2007 (the
“Effective Date™), by and between United Bank (the “Bank™} and Allen O. Jones, Jr. (the “Executive”).

WHEREAS, the Bank and the Executive desire to enter into this Agreement to assure the Bank of the continued services of the
Executive, to protect information that is of a proprietary nature to the Bank and to set forth the duties and compensation of the
Executive, all upon the terms and conditions hereinafier set forth. '

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of the parties set forth in this Agreement, and
other goed and valuable consideration, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. Employment; Term: Responsibilities; Exclusive Efforts.

1.1 Employment. The Bank hereby employs the Executive as its SVP, and Chief Financial Officer, hereby accepts employment,
upon and subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

1.2 Term. The term of employment pursuant to this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year commencing on the Effective
Date, and shall automatically be renewed for successive additional one (1) year periods, unless the term of employment is terminated
as provided in this Agreement (the “Term™).

1.3 Responsibilities. The Executive shall have the duties, functions, responsibilities and authorties that the President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Bank (the “President™) or his designee assigns to the Executive from time to time, consistent with the typica!
duties commensurate with the Executive’s position.

1.4 Exclusive Efforts. The Executive shall devote the Executive’s full time, attention and energy to the business of the Bank. The
Executive shall not engage in any activity which would interfere or conflict with the Executive's duties and responsibilities as set forth
herein or negatively affect the interests of the Bank. The Executive shall not engage in any business or other activity for gain, profit or
other pecuniary advantage unless any such activity is consented to by the President; provided, however, that should any such activity
became inconsistent with the interests of the Bank, upon written notice from the President the Executive shall promptly terminate such
activities,

2. Compensation, Benefits and Perguisites. As remuneration for all services to be rendered by the Executive to the Bank during the
Ferm, the Bank shall pay and provide to the Executive the following compensation and benefits:

2.1 Anpual Direct Compensation.

(a) Annual Base Salary. The Bank shall pay to the Executive an annual base salary of $124,800 (the “Base Salary™). The
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank (the “Compensation Committee™), with the assistance of the
President, may, but shall not be required to, review the Base Salary from time 1o time during the Term and increase the Base Salary by
such amount, if any, as the Compensation Commitiee determines, in its sole and absolute discretion. The Bank shall pay the Base
Salary to the Executive in equal installments throughout the year, consistent with the Bank’s normal payroll practices. The Base
Salary shall be prorated for any year of the Term that is less than a full calendar year.

(b) Annual lncentive Compensation. The Bank shall provide 1o the Executive the opportunity to eam an annual incentive
award (“Annual Incentive Compensation Award™) in accordance with the Bank’s incentive plan (the “Incentive Plan”). The Bank
reserves the right to modify or discontinue the Incentive Plan for all participants as desired without prior notice to the Executive.

2.2 Restricted Stock Grant. United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. (“UBA") shall grant to the Executive, pursuant to the terms
and provisions of the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. 505 restricted shares of UBA common
stock (the “Restricted Stock”). The terms and provisions of the Restricted Stock shall be set forth in a separate agreement (the
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“Restricted Stock Award Agreement”) between the UBA and the Execulive in accordance with the provisions of the 2007 Equity
Incentive Plan, and the Restricted Stock and the Restricted Stock Grant Agreement shall be subject to all of the 1erms and provisions
of the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan. UBA may from time to time make such additional awards to the Executive under the 2007 Equity
Incentive Plan as it determines appropriate.

2.3 Benefits and Perquisites. The Bank shall provide to the Executive all benefits provided 10 employees of the Bank generally,

subject to the Executive meeting individual eligibility requirements.for each such benefit.. Such benefits shall include, but are not

limited to, such 401(k), profit sharing, group life and health, dnsabu]uy insurance and supplemental retirement benefits as may be made
available to Bank employees generally from time 10 time. All insurance provided 10 the Executive shall be in such form and on such
terms-as is provided 10 other employees of the Bank. The Bank reserves the ng}n to modify or discontinue any benefit program for all
participants as desired without prior notice to the Executive. :

24 Va calion..The Bank shall providc the Executive al Ieast three weeks of paid vacation time each calendar year, such vacation to
be scheduled in accordance with approved Bank policy consistent with the performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder. During
any year in which the Executive is employed for less than the full calendar year, vacation time shall be prorated accordingly.

3. Termination of Employment. The Executwc 5 cmploymcm may be terminated in accordance with any of the provisions set forth
in this Section 3. . - . . T : ..

v

3.1 Eve_ngbfTerminatiou. . o '

(a) Termination Due 10 Death or Disability. The Executive’s employment shall lerminate immediately upon the Executive’s
death or disability (as described herein). The Executive shall be deemed to suffer from a disability if (i) the Executive is disabled as
defined in any disability insurance policy providing coverage for.the Executive; or (ii) as a result of the Executive’s incapacity due to
physical or mental.illness, the Executive is absent from the full-time performance of the Executive’s duties with the Bank for ninety
(90) or more days, whether or not consecutive, during any six (6) month period. .

(b) Voluntary Termination by the Executive. The Executive may terminate Executive’s employment at any time by

- delivering to the President written notice of the Executive’s intent to terminate, delivered at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the

effective date of such termination. The termination shall become effectwe automatically upon the expiration of the thirty (30) day
notice period. Such notice shall also constitute the resignation by the Executive of any other positions that the Executive may hold as
an officer and/or director of the Bank and/or its affiliates.

(¢) Voluntary Termination by the Bank. The Bank may terminate the Executive’s employment at any time, without Cause,
as defined in Secrion 3.2(¢), by delivering to the Execulive written notice of the Bank’s intent to terminate, delivered at least thirty
(30) calendar days prior to the effective date of such termination. The termination shal) become effective automatically upon the
expiration of the thirty (30) day notice period. Unless otherwise stated in the termination notice, such notice shall also constitule
termination of the Executive as 1o any other posmons that the Executive may hold as.an officer and/or director of the Bank and/or its
affiliates. -

(d) Termination by the Bank for Cause. The.Bank may terminate the E;c.écltitive"s employment for Cause by delivering
wrilten notice of the Bank's intent to terminate. Any such termination shall be effective on the date specified in such notice.

3.2 Payments Upon Termination.

(a) Payments Upon Termination Due To Death, Disability, Voluntaﬂ Termination By Executive, Voluntary
Termination By The Bank, Termination by the Bank for Cause.

() If, prior 1o the end of the Term, the Executive's employment with ‘the Bank terminates due to the Executive’s death or
disability, voluntary termination by the Executive, voluntary, termination by the Bank,.or termination by the Bank for Cause, the Bank
shall pay to the Executive (or 10, his Yegally appoinied pcrsonal rcpresentatwe) (A) any -accrued but -unpaid Base Salary; (B) the cash
component of any Annual incentive Compcnsallon Award that has been awardcd in. accorﬂance wuh the termos of the Incentive Plan
but not paid, subject to any forfeiture provisions of the Incentive Plan; and © any amounts payab]e to the Executive under the terms
of the Bank’s benefits plans in which the Executive is a participant.
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(ii) Subject to Section 3.2(c), item (A) of the preceding paragraph shall be paid in cash within thirty (30) days following the
effective date of termination, or, if termination is due to the death of the Executive, within thirty (30) days following the date on which
the Executive's personal representative is qualified and begins serving. Amounts payable under items (B} and (C) of the preceding
paragraph shall be paid in accordance with the terms of'the respective plans.

{b) Payments Upon Termmatlo By the Bank Without Cause or Termination By the Executive Wlth Cood B;gg n
Within Two Years of 3 Change of Control].

(i} If, within two (2) years followmg a Change of Control, the Executive’s employment is terminated without Cause or if
the Executive terminates the Executive’s employment with the Bank for Good Reason, as defined in Section 3.2(f), the Bank shall pay
10 the Executive (A) any accrued but unpaid Base Salary; (B) the cash component of any Annual Incentive Compcnsnuon Award that
has been awarded in accordance with the terms of the Incentive Plan but not paid, subject to any forfeiture provisions of the Incentive
Plan; (C) any amounts payable to the Executive under the term's of the Bank’ s beneﬁts plans in whrch the Execmwe 1S a participant;
and (D) 2 cash benefit equal to the Executive’s annual Base Salary.

(i) Subject to Section 3.2(c), item (A) of the preceding paragraph shall be paid in cash within thirty (30) days following the
effective date of termination of the Executive’s employment as described in Section 3.2(b)i). Amounts payable under items (B) and
(C) of the preceding paragraph shall be paid in accordance with the terms of the respective plans. Amounts payable under item (D)
may be paid (x) in cash in a lump sum together with the payment described in Item (A); or {y) in up to twelve (12) equal monthly
installments, as may be elected by the Bank.

(iii) Following the effective date of termination of the Executive’s employment as'described in Section 3.2(bXi), any stock
options that have been granted but have not vested shall immediately vest, and the restrictions shall lapse with respect to any restricted
stock of UBA that has been granted but as to which the restrictions have not lapsed. Following the effective date of termination, the
Executive may exercise any vested but unexercised stock options in accordance with the terms of the plan or grant agreement pursuant
to which such options were granted.

- -

{c) Payments Subject to Section 409A. In the event that any payments under this Section 3.2 are subject to the reswictions of
Section 409A of the Intemnal Revenue Code; then payment shall no1 be made umll the first {1st) day of the month followmg the six (6)
menth anniversary date of the effective date of termination.

{d) hange g[ Countrol. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change of Control” of the Bank shall be deemed 10 have occurred
if (i) any “person” or “group” (cther than UBA) hereafier becomes the “beneficial owner” (as $uch terms are defined in the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934), of securities representing fifty percem (50%) or more of the combined voting power of the Bank or UBA,; (ii)
a majority of the Board of Directors of the Bank or UBA, comprised of persons who were not elected or nominated for election to
such Board by curremt directors of the Bank or UBA or directors who (or whose predecessors on such Board) were ultimately
nominated or elected by the currem directors of the Bank or UBA, is elected; (iii) the shareholders of the Bank or of UBA approve a
merger or consolidation of the Bank or of UBA, other than a merger or consolidation which results in the voting securities of the Bank
or of UBA outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into
voting securities of the surviving entity) at least 80% of the combined voling power of the voting securities of the Bank or of UBA, as
the case may be, of such surviving entity outstanding immediately aRter such merger or consolidation; or (iv) the shareholders of the
Bank or of UBA approve a plan of complete liquidation or an agreement for the sale or dlsposnmn of all or substantially all of the
assets, of the Bank or of UBA, as the case may be. .

{e} Cause. For purposes of this Section 3, “Cause™ shall mean any circumstances demonstrating to the Board of Directors of
the Bank that the Executive has undertaken deliberate actions with the intent 10 cause, or with reckless disregard for the possibility of
causing, substantial injury to the Bank, as well as the following:

(i) The Executive’s conviction of, orhis plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, (x)a felony or misdemeanor involving moral

turpitude, mc]udmg without limitatiori fraud,’ embczzlcmem lhcﬁ ‘or dishonesty, (y) any other felony or mlsdcmeanor mvolvmg
criminal conduct against the Bank, or (z) any other fcIOny
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(ii) Findings by the Board of Directors of the Bank that the Executive has engaged in any improper actions specified in
Section 3.2(:)(i) above, or (hat crimina[ charges have bcen filed against the Ex:cutivc for-such actions.

. (iii) The E‘cecutwe s willful mlscondur:l or breach of fiduciary dury with respect lo the handling of monies or other
properties or interests of others.

(iv) Issvance to the Executive by a govemmental or admmlslralwc agcncy of a final cease and de51st order with respect to
actions personally taken by the Exccuhve . y .

(v) Habitual neglect of his responsibilities hereunder, failure to properly account for funds or accounts for which the
Executive has been made specifically accountable, or failure to perform the Executive’s respon5tb||1||es under this Agreement after
written netice and a reasonable opportunity to cure such failure. :

" () Good Reason. The Executive shall be'deemed for the purpuses of this Section 3 10 have termmated the Execunve 5
employment for.“Good Reason” if the Executive terminates the Executive’s employment after the occurrence (other than such as may
be isolated, unsubstantial and inadvertent on the Bank’s part and which is remedied promptly by the Bank after receipt of notice from
the Executive), without the Executive’s express written consent and.after a Change of Control, of any one or more of the following: (i)
a substantia) reduction or alteration in the nature or status of the Executive’s responsibilities and. status (including offices, titles and
reporting requirements) from those.in effect during the six-month peried immediately preceding the Change of Control; (ii) a
reduction by the Bank in'the Executive’s total compensation as in-effect on the date hereof, or as the same may be increased from time
to time; (iii) the failure by the Bank to continue the'Executive’s participation in any of the Bank’s empleyee benefit plans, practices or
arrangements in which the Executive participates, on substantially the same basis as those provided generally from time to time after
the Change of Control to other peer officers of the Bank and its affiliated companies; or (iv) the failure of any.successor to the Bank te
assume or otherwise be bound to perform the Bank's obligations under this Agreement.

.. 3.3 Business Records. Upon tcnninatior.].of the Executive’s employment, the Executive lagrees to promptly deliver to the Bank, all

‘Business Records belonging to the Bank, UBA or any affiliate of the Bank, and all copies thereof and therefrom, including any

Business Records that may be maintained in electronic form, and the Executive acknowledges that such Business Records constitute
the exclusive property of the Bank. The term “Business Records” means all customer files, contract files, reports and related data,
memoranda, notes, records, drawings, manuals, correspondence, financial and accounting information, customer lists, statistical data
and compilations, patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, inventions, formulae, methods, processcs, agreements, contracts,
manuals or any other documents relating to the busmess of the Bank UBA or any affi Ilate of the Bank: .
4. Confidentiality, ln consideration of the Execulwe 5 employmem by the Bank and of lhe confidential information that the Executive
will acquire by virtue of such employment, the Executive agrees to-comply. with the confidentiality provisions of this Section 4.

4.1 Trade Secrets and Confidential Information. During the Term and.thereafter fora period of five (§) years, the Executive
will not directly or indirectly divulge or appropriate 10 Executive’s own use, or to the use of any third party, any “trade secrets” or
“confidential information” (as defined in Section 4.2) of the Bank, UBA or any affiliate of the Bank (collectively referred to.in this
Section 4 as the “Bank Group"), except as may be in publlc domain other than by violation of the Agreement or as may be reqmred by
law., . . .

4.2 Defipjtions. “Trade Secrets” as used hgrein means all secret discoven'es, inventions, formulae, designs, methods, processes,
techniques of production and know-how relating to the Bank Group’s business. “Confidential Information” as used herein means
internal policies and procedures, suppliers, customers, customer information, financial information and marketing practices, as well as
secret discoveries, inventions, formulae, designs, techniques of production, know-how and other information relating to the Bank
Group’s business not rising to the level of a trade secret under applicable law.

4.3 Financial Privacy Act. The Executive agrees to comply with the Right to Financial Privacy Act (12 U.S.C. §3401) and the
rules regarding disclosure of financial information and other information. The Executive agrees that, during and afier Executive’s:term
of employment by the Bank, the Executive will not, without prior written consent.qf the Bank, use for Executive’s own benefit or
disclose any conﬁdennal information; relatmg directly or indirectly to the Bank or.its customers to any third person, parmership,
company, corporation or other organization.
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4:4 Injunclive Retief. The parties acknowledge that the breach or threatened breach of the provisions of Section 4 may result in
irreparable injury to the Bank Group and, therefore, that monetary damages for such breach may be inadequate, In consideration of the
foregoing, the Executive acknowledges and agrees that, in addition to all other remedies available to the Bank or any other member of
the Bank Group at law or in equity, each member of the Bank Group shall be entitled to injunclive relief or specific performance, or
both, to restrain any threatened or continued breach of the provisions of Section 4 or to enforce the terms hereof. The parties hereby
waive any reguirement for the posting of a bond or other security in connection with such injunctive relief.

S. Noncompetition Covenant, The Executive acknowledges that by reason of the Executive’s association with the Bank, the
Executive has obtained and will continue to obtain intimate knowledge of the strategies and other trade secrets of the Bank, the Bank’s
customer relations and its relation with its employees. Accordingly, the Executive agrees that the Executive will not during the term of
the Executive’s employment with the Bank and for a period of one (1) year after termination of Executive’s employment hereunder,
except where such termination is by the Executive for Good Reason or-by the Bank without Cause, either individually or as an
employee, agent, officer, director or shareholder or otherwise of or through any corporation or other business organization, directly or
indirectly (a) carry on or engage in a business similar 1o that of the Bank or any of its affiliates (including without limitation soliciting
or doing any such business with any customer of the Bank or any of its .affiliates), in any territory which the Bank or any of its
affiliates has been conducting business 150 miles of Atmore, Alabama, or advance or lend any money to or make or hold any
investment (other than a non-controlling owner of security interest in a publicly-held corporation) in, or encourage participation by
any member of the Executive’s family in, such a business; or (b) solicit; hire, employ, contract with as an employee, contractor, or in
any similar relationship, or allow, encourage or participale in any of the same acts by any corporation or other business entity, any
employee or former employee of the Bank or any of its affiliates. The parties agree that in the event of a breach by the Executive of
the terms of this Section 5, the Bank shall be entitled to institute and prosecute proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction,
either in law or in equity, 1o obtain damages for any breach of this Agreement, or to enforce specific performance hereof by the
Executive, or to enjoin the Executive from any violation hereof. The term of the covenants contained in this Section § shall be tolled
for the period commencing on the date any successful action is filed for injunctive relief or damages arising out of a breach by the
Executive of this Section 5 and ending upon final adjudication (including appeals) of such action. The Executive acknowledges that
the restrictions sel forth in this Section 5 are reasonable in scope and duration, given the nature of the business of the Bank, and-agrees
that neither the compliance with this Section 5 nor issuance of an mJuncllon as described herein will impose an undue hardship on the
Executive. .

6. Assignment.

6.1 Assignment by the Bank. This Agreement may be assigned or transferred to, and shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of, any successor of the Bank, and any successor shall be deemed substituted for the “Bank™ for all purposes under this
Agreement. As used in this Agreement, the term “successor™ shall mean any person, firm, corporalion, or business entity which at any
time, whether by merger, purchase, or otherwise, acquires all or substantially all of the assets of the Bank.

6.2 Assipnment by Executive. This Agreement is personal and non-assignable by the Executive. >
7. Miscellancous. |

7.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, and to the exient not superseded hereby, the United Bank Personnel Handbook, contain
the entire understanding of the partics with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior or contemperantous
negotiations, representations, understandings and agreements of, by or among the parties, express or implied, oral or written all of
which are fully merged herein. The express lerms of this Agreement control and supersede any course of performance andfor
customary praclice inconsistent with any such terms. Any agreement hereafter made shall be ineffective to change, medify, discharge
or ¢ffect'an abandonment of this Agreement unless such agreement is in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

7.2 Sexerability. if any provisions of this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable, either in whole or in pan,
this Agreerncm shall be deemed amended to delete or modify, as necessary, the offending provisions and to alter the balance of this
Agreement in order to render the same valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permissible, as aforesaid. The provisions of this
Section shall be construed as an'agreement in dcp-cndem of the other provisions of this Agreement. The existence of any claim or cause
of action by the Executive against the Bank shall not constitute a defense to the cnforcement by thc Bank of the provisions-of this
Agreement.
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7.3 Governing 1.aw and Venue; Attorney's Fees. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be
governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama applicable to agreements made and to be
performed wholly within the State of Alabama. Any suil brought hereon shall be brought in the state or federal courts located in
Escambia County, Alabama. If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, at trial, on appeal, and in connection with any pelition for review, reasonable attorneys’
fees, costs and disbursements in addition to any other relief that may be granted.

7.4 Waiver. No waiver by any party to this Agreement of any breach by any other party of any term, provision, or condition
contained in this Agreement, and no failure by any party lo insist upon the performance by any other party of any term, provision or
condition contained in this Agreement, shall be deemed a waiver of such term, provision, or condition, or any subsequent breach of
same, nor shall it be deemed a waiver of any other tertm,.provision, or condition contained in this Agreement. Neither the failure nor
any delay on the pant of any party to this Agreement 10 exercise any right, remedy, power or privilege under this Agreement shall
operate as a waiver thereof. No single or partial exercise of.any right, remedy, power or privilege shall preclude any other or further
exercise of the same or any other right, remedy, power or privilege. Any party’s consent to or approval of any act shall not be deemed
10 render unnecessary the obtaining of such party’s consent or approval of any subsequent act. No waiver shall be effective unless it is
in writing and is signed by the parties asserting such waiver. .

7.5 Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given hercunder shall be in writing, and, if addressed to the Executive, shall be
delivered to the Executive al the Executive’s last known address, and, if addressed to the Bank, UBA, or any affiliate of the Bank,
shall be delivered to the principal office of the Bank in Atmore; Alabama. A notice shall be deemed to have been delivered upon the
first 10 occur of (8) actual receipt by the addressee, or (b) when (i) personally delivered, (ii) delivered to a nationally recognized
overnight delivery service for next day delivery, (iii) deposited in the United States certified mail, return receipt requested and postage
prepaid, or (iv) transmitted 1o the addressee by facsimile, with receipt confirmed.

7.6 Construction. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted without regard to any presumption or other rule requiring
construction against the party drafting the document or any provision contained in the document. It shall be construed neither for nor
against any party, but shall be given reasonable interpretation in accordance with the plain meaning of its terms and the intent of the
parties.

7.7 Survival. The provisions of Sections 3.2, 3.3, 4, 5 and 7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

7.8 Captions; Constructiop. The captions and headings used in this Agreement are inserted only for convenience and in no way
define, describe, extend, or limil the scope ofthe particular provisions to which they refer, or the meaning or intent of this Agreement.
The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” and other similar compounds of the word “here” as used in this Agreement shall refer to
the entire Agreement and not lo any particular provision or section.

7.9 Section 409A Savings Clause. This Agreement and all provisions hereof are intended 1o comply with Section 409A of the
Code and the permanent, temporary or preposed regulations issued thereunder. If any provision of this Agreement violates or fails to
comply with the Section 409A of the Code or the permanent, temporary or proposed regulations thereunder, then such provision shall
be modified, as of the effective date of this Agreement, to the least extent necessary to comply therewith. This Section supersedes all
other provisions of this Agreement to the extent of any inconsistency.

7.10 Counterparts. This Agreement and any amendment hereto may be executed in any number of counterpans, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original as 10 any party whose signature appears thereon, and all of which shall together constitute one and
the same instrument. This Agreement and any amendment hereto shall be binding when one or more counterparts hereof, individually
or taken together, shall bear the signatures of all of the parties to this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by an authorized officer of the Bank and by the Exccutive, as
of the Effective Date. o . :

BANK:
UNITED BANK'

By /s/ Robert R. Jones, ilI
Robert R, Jones, 111
" Its President and
Chief Executive Officer

By - /3 Gwendolyn B. Braden
- Gwendolyn B. Braden

. . * VP-Human Resources Director

|

EXECUTIVE:

* fs/ Allen O. Jones, Jr.
“ Allen O. Jones, Jr. T
.SVP—Chief Financial Officer-
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Neme of Subsidiary
United Bank

United Bancorp Capital
Trust i

United Bancorp Capital
Trust 1l

United Insurance Services

Incorportied In

Alabama

‘ Alabama

Alabama

Alabama
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" Wholly-Owned By

United Bancorporatien Of Alabama

United Bancorporation Of Alabama

United Bancorporation Of Alabama
United Bank




Exhibit No. 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent 10 the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (File No. 333-111503) and Form S-8 (File
No. 333-36720, File No. 333-36722, and File No. 333-144689) of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. of our report, dated March
27, 2008, relating 1o the consolidated financial statements appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2007. . '

_/s/ Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Birmingham, Alabama
March 27, 2008
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
1, Robert R, Jones, 11, President and CEOQ, certify that:.
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc.; -

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenial fact or omil to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mislcadmg with
respect 10 the period covered by this annual report; .

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in ali
‘material respects the financial-condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented i m
this annual report; _

4. The registrant’s other.certifying officers-and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
{as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and have::

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
. our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its ‘consolidated subsidiaries, is. made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our
. - conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the pcnod covered by this annual
report based on such evaluation; and

(c). Disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the reglsmml s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fisca) quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s-internal control over financial reporting; and

-5, The registrant’s.other centifying officers and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors- and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions): '

{a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the.design or. operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability 1o record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control aver financial reporting.

Date: March 27, 2008
Is/ Robert R, Jones. §11

Robert R. Jones, 1l
President and CEO
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Allen O. Jones, Jr., Senior Vice President and CFO(Principal Financial Officer), centify that:
[. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or.omit to state a material fact
necessary o make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect 1o the peried covered by this annual repon, : :

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements; and other financial information included in this annual repont, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows:of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presentcd in
this annual report;

4. The regxstram s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and rnamtammg disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be’ desngncd under
our supervision, 10 ensure that-material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated’ subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during-the period in which this annual report is being prepared,

(b) ‘Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and' presented in this annual report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the pcnod covered by this annual
report based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s intemal control-over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual repon) that has mmenally
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The reg:strant s other cenifying officers and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, 1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to vecord, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(t) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or orhcr employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 27, 2008

{s/ Aliep Q. Jones, Jr,

Allen O. Jones, Jr.

Senior Vice President and CFO
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. for the period ending December 31,
2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), 1, Robert R. Jones, 111, Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectlon 1350, as adopted pursuam to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxlcy Act
of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge: e ,

(1). The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2). The information contained,.in the Repon fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Corporation, -

Date: March 27, 2008 ) o " By: /s/ Robert R. Jones, I
’ R Robert R, Jones, H]
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of United Bancorporation of Alabama Inc. for the period ending December 31,

2007 as filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Allen O. Jones, Jr., Chief Financial
Officer(Principal Financial Officer) of the Corporation, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectien 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sectmn 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

"{1). The Repon fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of I934 as
amended; and

(2). The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in-all material respects, the ﬁnam:lal c0ndmon and resulls of
operations of the Corporation.

Date: March 27, 2008 . . ' By: /s/ Allen Q. Jones, Jr
Allen O. Jones, Jr.
Senior Vice President and CFO
(Principal Financjal Officer)
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Ml Procassing
UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA, INC.  ~“%ten
200 East Nashville Avenue APR 14 2009
Atmore, Alabama

Weshinzon, oo

o]
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held on May 7, 2008

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that pursuant to call of its Board of Directors, the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the “Meeting™) of United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc. (the
“Corporation”), Atmore, Alabama, will be held at the corporate offices of United Bank, 200 East
Nashville Avenue, Atmore, Alabama, on Wednesday, May 7, 2008, at 3:00 p.m., local time, for
the purpose of considering and voting upon the following matters:

1. Election of two persons as directors, each of whom is nominated to serve until the
2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until his/or her successor is elected and
qualified.

2. Transaction of such business as may come properly before the Meeting or any

adjournments thereof.
You are cordially invited to attend the Meeting, and we hope you will attend.

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND, PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN THE
ENCLOSED PROXY IN THE ENCLOSED POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE TO ASSURE
THAT YOUR SHARES ARE REPRESENTED AT THE MEETING.

Stockholders of record on March 31, 2008 are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at
the Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

o

Witliam J. Justice
Chairman of the Board

Atmore, Alabama
April 4, 2008




UNITED BANCORPORATION OF ALABAMA, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT
for
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
to be held on
May 7, 2008

INTRODUCTION

This Proxy Statement is furnished 10 the stockholders of United Bancorporation of Alabama,
Inc. (the “Corporation™) in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Corporation’s Board of
Directors for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Corporation to be held on May 7, 2008,
at 3:00 p.m., local time, and at any adjournments thereof (the “Meeting™).

The matters 10 be considered a1 the Meeting include: (1) the election of two directors, each of
whom is nominated 1o serve until the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, each to serve until his or
her successor is elected and qualified; and (2) the transaction of such other business as may come
properly before the Meeting.

The Corporation’s executive offices are located at 200 East Nashville Avenue, Atmore,
Alabama 36502. This Proxy Statement is dated April 4, 2008 and, together with a copy of the
Corporation’s 2007 Annual Report, is being mailed 1o stockholders of the Corporation on or about
April 7, 2008,

VOTING SECURITIES

As of March 31, 2008, the Corporation’s only outstanding voting security was its Class A
Stock, of which 2,251,164 shares (excluding treasury shares) were issued, outstanding, and entitled to
vote. Those shares were held by approximately 820 stockholders of record. Stockholders of record on
March 31, 2008 are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Meeting.

Notwithstanding that date, the Corporation’s stock transfer books will not be closed, and stock
may be transferred after the record date, although only stockholders of record as of the record date may
vote at the Meeting.

The directors, nominees for election as directors, and executive officers of the Corporation as a
group number eight persons and, as of March 31, 2008, beneficially owned 215,330 shares of Class A
Stock, 9.57% of the total shares of such stock outstanding. See “SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF
CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.”




VOTES REQUIRED

The representation in person or by proxy of at least a majority of the outstanding Class A Stock
entitled to vote at the Meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Votes
withheld from any nominee, abstentions and broker “non-votes” are counted as present or represented
for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum for the Meeting. A “non-vote” occurs
when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a proposal because the
nominee does not have discretionary voting power with respect to the proposal and has not received
nstructions from the beneficial owner.

The election of directors requires an affirmative vote of a plurality of the shares present in
person or represented by proxy at the Meeting. The nominees receiving the highest number of
affirmative votes of such shares will be elected as directors. Accordingly, abstentions and broker non-
votes will have no effect on the outcome of the vote for directors. Although the Corporation is
presently not aware of any other matters to be acted upon at the Meeting, any other matters that may be
considered and acted upon by the stockholders at the Meeting would require approval by the
affirmative vote of at least a majority of the shares entitled to vote and represented at the Meeting
either in person or by proxy. Abstentions would be treated as votes cast with respect to any such
matter and therefore will have the same effect as a vote against such matter. Broker non-votes will not
be counted as votes cast with respect to such matter and therefore would have no effect on the outcome
of the votes.

PROXIES

If the enclosed Proxy is executed and returned, it may be revoked at any time before it has been
exercised; if it is not revoked, the shares represented thereby will be voted by the persons designated in
such Proxy in accordance with the instructions therein. In the absence of instructions, the Proxy will
be voted FOR election of each of the director nominees described in this Proxy Statement and
with discretionary authority on all ather matters that may come properly before the Meeting.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

_ The following table sets forth the name of each nominee and each director of the Corporation
continuing in office after the Meeting, a description of his or her position and offices, if any, with the
Corporation and its subsidiaries, a brief description of his or her principal occupation during at least
the last five years, and certain other information, including his or her age. Each such director and each
nominee is a director. of the.Corporation’s wholly-owned subsidiary, United Bank (“United Bank” or
the “Bank™). .




Name and Age
Michael R. Andreoli (46)

Dale M. Ash (48)

L. Walter Crim (62)

Robert R. Jones, II1 (56)

William J. Justice {68)

David D. Swift (57)

J. Wayne Trawick (59) :° -

Director

Since

2004

2002

1997

1992

1991

1995

2006-

Date Term As
Director Expires

- May 2010

May 2011*

May 2009

May 2011*

May 2009

May 2010

T v,

May-2009

Principal Occupation
During Past Five Years

Stockholder and Vice President,
Robertson, Andreoli & Covington,
P.C., certified public accountants;

General Partner, Alcon Properties.

Partner, Controller of Pepsi-
Cola Bottling Company of
Atmore, Inc., South Alabama
Vending Company, In¢., and
Wetlands Restorations, LLC.-

Owner, Central Farm Supply.

President of the Corporation

since May, 1993} Chief Executive’
Office of the Corporation since
May, 2006; President and Chief
Executive Officer of United Bank
since July, 1992.

Chairman of the Board of the
Corporation; Vice Chairman of the
Board of United Bank; Pharmacist;
former President and Chief
Executive Officer, Greenlawn
Pharmacy.

Vice Chairman of the Board
of the Corporation; Chairman of the

- Board of United Bank; Vice

President, Swift Lumber, Inc;
President & CEOQ, Swift Supply,
Inc.; Partner; Palustris Products,
Led. : -

. President, Trawick Builders,

Inc. S

* nominee for election for a term expiring at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders




The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation. None of the other entities listed
under the column *Principal Occupation During Past Five Years” above is affiliated with the
Corporation.

Each director of the Corporation continuing in office after the Meeting attended at least 75% of ,
the meetings of the Corporation’s Board of Directors and its committees held during 2007 while he or
she served as a director. The Corporation’s Board of Directors held eight meetings in 2007.

The Corporation does not have a standing nominating committee, and all director nominations
are considered by the Board of Directors as a whole, with each director participating in consideration
of director nominees. The Board of Directors has not adopted a nominating committee charter. Certain
members of the Board are not “independent directors” as defined by NASD rules as described under
“AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT” below; as an employee of the Corporation’s subsidiary, United
Bank, Mr. R. Jones is also not an “independent director.” The other members of the Board of Directors.
are “independent directors” as so defined.

The goal of the Board of Directors has been, and continues to be, to identify nominees for
service on the Board of Directors who will bring a variety of perspectives and skills from their
respective professional and business experiences, particularly in the communities served by the Bank:
Experience as a director of the Bank is generally considered a strong positive factor in evaluating
nominees. Depending upon the needs of the Board of Directors and the Corporation from time to time,
certain of the factors described below may be weighed more or less heavily in evaluating potential
nominees. There are no specific, minimum qualifications, qualities or skills that must be met by
potential nominees. ' t

The Board of Directors identifies nominees by first considering on an informal basis the current
members of the Board of Directors. Current members of the Board of Directors are considered for re-
nomination, with strong consideration generally given to the value of continuity of service by existing
members of the Board of Directors. If a vacancy on the Board of Directors occurs due to a director’s
decision not to-stand for re-election or for any other reason, the Board of Directors will then determine
if there is a need to fill the vacancy or reduce the number of directors serving on the Board of
Directors, in accordance with the Corporation’s Bylaws and Certificate of Incorporation. If the Board
of Directors determines a need to fill a vacancy, current members of the Board of Directors are potled
for suggestions as to individuals meeting desired criteria, and research may also be performed to
identify qualified individuals. To date, the Board of Directors has not formally engaged third parties to
assist in identifying or evaluating potential nominees, although the Board of Directors may do so in the
future. : . " IR ’ Ct .

Historically, the Corporation has not had a formal policy concerning stockholder
recommendations for nominees, and the Board of Directors does not feel that such a formal policy is
warranted at this time based on what it believes to be satisfactory experience to date in identifying
director nominees without such a policy. However, a reasonable stockholder recommendation will be
considered, in light of the particular needs of the Corporation and using the procedures set forth above
if the Board is seeking to fill a vacancy. Except in extraordinary circumstances, the Board of Directors




does not anticipate increasing the number of directors to allow nomination by the Board of Directors of
a stockholder-recommended nominee. Any such recommendation should be communicated o the
Board of Directors as described below. Although it does not presently anticipate doing so, the Board of
Directors may reconsider adoption of a formal policy for stockholder recommendations for director
nominees at such time as it believes that the Corporation’s circumstances warrant such consideration.

The Corporation has not instituted to date a formal process by which stockholders may
communicate directly with directors. However, informal processes exist by which communications
sent to the Board of Directors or in care of an officer or other 'represen;ative of the Corporation are
forwarded to the President and Chief Executive Officer, who is also a director. The Board of Directors
believes this process has adequately served the needs of the Board of Directors and the Corporation’s
stockholders. Unti} some other procedure is disclosed to the Corporation’sstockholders, stockholders ~
may direct communications intended for the Board of Directors 10 the Stockholder Relations *
Department, at the address set forth under “ANNUAL-REPORT ON FORM 10-K" below: The
envelope containing such communication must contain a clear notation indicating that thé enclosed -
letter is a “Stockholder-Board Communication™ or ““Stockholder-Director Communication” or sitnilar
statement that clearly indicates the communication is intended for the Board of Directors. All such
communications must clearly indicate that the author is a stockholder of the Corporation and state
whether the intended recipients are all members of the Board of Directors or certain specified directors.
Copies of such communications will be clrculated 10 the President and the appropriate director or
direciors.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee. See “AUDIT
COMMITTEE REPORT"” below. In addition, the Board of Directors of United Bank has established
audit and compensation commitiees.

It is intended that, unless “Withhold Authority” is noted, proxies in the accompanying form

will be voted at the Meeting for the election to the Board of Directors of Dale M. Ash and Robert R:
Jones, I1I to serve until the 201 | Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until their respective successors
are elected and qualified. Both of the nominees are currently members of the Board of Directors. If
any nominee is not a candidate when the election occurs (which is not anticipaied to be the case), it is
intended 1hat the proxies may be voted, unless authorization is withheld, for any substitute nominee or
nominees recommended by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has no reason 10 believe
that any nommee will be unable 10 serve asa dlrector if elected.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CORPORATION RECOMMENDS
A VOTE “FOR” ELECTION OF THE NOMINEES LISTED ABOVE.




SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

As of March 31, 2008, there were no persons who owned of record or, to the knowledge of the
Corporation, may be deemed to own beneficially, more than 5% of the outstanding shares of the
Corporation’s Class A Stock.

The table below sets forth, as of March' 31,2008, the number of shares of Class A Stock
beneficially owned by each director and nominee and by all executive officers and directors as a group.

. . Percentage
Co - Amount and Nature of - of Outstanding
. -Name . Beneficial Ownership - Class A Stock

*"Michael R. Andreoli o 8,904" : *

" Dale M. Ash ' “15,226% *
L. Walter Crim - 15,991¥ *
Robert R. Jones, 111 97,406 4.33%
William J. Justice 33,797 1.50%
David D. Swift 37,804 1.68%

J. Wayne Trawick 1787 *
All executive officers, 215,3300XAXD 9.57%

directors and nominees (HEXTHE)

as a group (8 persons)

* less than 1%

W Includes 2,538 shares owned jointly with his wife; 261 shares owned jointly with his
children; 2,293 shares owned in his Individual Retirement Account; and 2,800 shares which
-may be acquired within 60 days upon exercise of options.

@ Includes 2,352 shares owned jointly with her children; and 1,366 shares which may be
acquired within 60 days upon exercise of options.

@ Includes 5,160 shares owned jointly with his children.

@ Includes 9,152 shares owned jointly with his wife; 304 shares owned jointly with his son;
3,606 shares owned by United Bank in his Individual Retirement Account; 2,404 shares
owned by United Bank in an Individual Retirement Account for his wife; 304 shares owned
jointly by his wife and his daughter; and 40,800 sharés which may be acquired within 60
days upon exercise of options.

) I}lclpdeé 17,915 shares owne.d jointly with his wife; 6,079 shares owned by his wife, as to

which shares Mr: Justice disclaims beneficial ownership; 944 shares owned by Mr. Justice
for his granddaughters, as to which shares Mr. Justice disclaims beneficial ownership.

() Includes 7,609 shares owned by his wife; 483 shares held by his wife as trustee, as to all of
which shares Mr. Swift disclaims beneficial ownership.




U Includes 1,004 shares owned by his wife, as to which Mr. Trawick disclaims beneficial
ownership.

@ Includes 1,024 shares owned by Mr. Allen O. Jones, Jr., Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
of the Corporation, jointly with his wife.

EXECUTIVE O’FF!CERS

The following table lists the executive officers of the Corporation and the respective positions
held by them in the Corporation. Each is a director of the Corporation, except for Allen O. Jones, Jr.,
and information regarding their other business experience during the past five years and certain other
information is set forth under the caption “ELECTION OF DIRECTORS” above. Mr: A.:Jones, age
58, has been Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Corporation since August 2006. From 2005
to August 2006, Mr. A. Jones served as Head of Strategic Planning for Greer’s Supermarkets; a south-
Alabama based supermarket chain. Prior to his employment by Greer’s Supermarkets, Mr. A. Jones
was employed as an independent consultant, From 2000 to 2004, Mr. A, Jones was employed by
Delmas Capital, LLC of Pascagoula, Mississippi as Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Senior
Operating Officer.

Name Position

Robert R. Jones, 11 President and Chief Executive Officer
William J. Justice Chairman of the Board

David D. Swift Vice Chairman of the Board

Allen O. Jones, Jr. Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

The executive officers of the Corporation are elected annually at the organizational meeting of
the Board of Directors, which follows the annual meeting of stockholders, to serve until the
organizational meeting in the subsequent year. Except as described under Agreements with Mr. R.
Jones and Agreement with Mr. A. Jones below, theré are no known arrangements or understandings
between any executive officers and any other person pursuant to which any of the above-named
persons was selected as an officer.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

No fees are paid to directors of the Corporation for their services as such. Since all of the
Corporation’s directors also serve as directors of United Bank, they are primarily compensated for
their services to United Bank. See “EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION" below for mformauon
regarding compensation pald to executive officers of the Corporation.




During 2007, all current directors of the Corporation and nominees for election as directors also
served as directors of United Bank. Each director of United Bank received a standard annual fee for
such service of $3,500 (34,700 for United Bank Board Chairman David D. Swift); $100 for each Board
Meeting of United Bank attended prior to November 1, 2007, fees for attendance at each Board '
Meeting thereafier being increased 10 $200; and $50 for each additional committee meeting attended,
with 2 maximum of $300 per day for addmOnal meetmgs in 2007, Umted Bank’s Board of Directors
held a total of 13 meetings. '

In connecuon with the Corporauon S adOpllOn of the Stock Option Plan in 1998, each director
of the Corporatwn was granted nonstatutory stock options 10 purchase 4,000 shares of Class A Stock at
an exercise price of $8 per share (the number of shares and exercise price having been adjusted in
accordance with the Stock Option Plan to account for the 2-for-1 splits of Class A Stock in May 1999
and June 2004), with two-fifths of such options being immediately exercisable and additional one-fifth
increments becoming exercisable in December of 1999 through 2001, respectively.

In connection with her election to the Board of the Corporation in December 2002, Mrs. Ash
was granted nonstatutory stock options 1o purchase 2,000 shares of Class A Stock at an exercisc price
of $15.75 per share (taking into account the June 2004 split), with one-fifth of such options being
immediately exercisable and additional one-fifth increments becoming exercisable in December of
2003 through 2006, respectively.

In connection with his election to the Board of the Bank in May 2002, Mr. Andreoli was
granted nonstatutory stock options to purchase 2,000 shares of Class A Stock at an exercise price of
$15.65 per share (taking into account the June 2004 split), with one-fifth of such options being
immediately exercisable and additional one-fifth increments becoming exercisable in May of 2003
through 2006, respectively. In connection with his subsequent election to the Board of the Corporation
in May 2004, Mr. Andreoli was granted nonstatutory stock options to purchase an additional 2,000
shares of Class A Stock at an exercise price of $16.00 per share, with two-fifths of such options being
immediately exercisable and additional one-fifth increments becoming exercisable in May of 2006
through.2008, respectively.

In connection with his election to the Board of the Bank in 2001, Mr. Trawick was granted
nonstatutory, stock options to purchase 2,000 shares of Class A-Stock at an exercise price of $8.00 per
share (taking into account the May 1999 and June 2004 stock splits), with two-fifths of such options
being immediately exercisable and additional one-fifth increments becoming exercisable in December
of 1999 through 2001, respectively. In connection with his subsequent election to the Board of the
Corporation in May 2006, Mr. Trawick was granted nonstatutory stock options 10 purchase an
additional 2,000 shares of Class A Stock at an exercise price of $16.00 per share, with one-fifth of such
options being immediately exercisable and additional one-fifth increments becoming exercisable in
June of 2007 through 2010, respectively.




' Director Compensation Table

The following table shows all non-employee director compensation paid for 2007:

12y
2)
3)
4

5

Feels Earned or ,Op;ion Al Other
Paid in Cash Awards Compensation Total
Name ) ) s )

Michae! R. Andreoli 7388 . 0@ . 750 8138
Dale M. Ash 7538 - 0¥.T . . 750 . 8,288 .
L. Walter Crim 90201 = T 0% 750 . 10041
William J. Justice 7,561 N CI 750 8311
David D. Swift 10,641 o9 _ 750 11,391
J. Wayne Trawick 9,241 e 750 9,99

$750.00 paid on long-term disability insurance policy for each director.
At December 31, 2007, Mr. Andreoli held options to purchase 2,800 shares of common stock.
At December 31, 2007, Mrs. Ash held options to purchase 2,000 shares of common stock.

At December 31, 2007, Messrs. Crim, Justice and Swift held no options to purchase shares of
common stock.

At December 3 1, 2007, Mr. Trawick held options to purchase 1,200 shares of common stock.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Officers of the Corporation, and directors who also serve as directors or officers of United

Bank, are remunerated by United Bank. The following Summary Compensation Table sets forth
certain information conceming compensation paid to the Corporation’s (1) President and Chief
Executive Officer and (2) Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, during the year ended December 31,
2007. There were no other executive officers of the Corporation who l‘CCClVCd total compensanon
exceeding $100,000 during the year ended December 31,2007.



Summary Compensation Table

. All Other

Salary Bonus - Compen- Total

Name and Principal Position Year ) s sation ($) S
Robert R. Jones, 111 2007 235000 107,014 130254% 472,268
President and Chief Executive -
Officer of the Corporation 2006 220,000 106,402 125329% 451,731
President and Chief Executive’ e o e
Officer of the Bank
Allen O. Jonés, Jr. 2007 - 124,800 9,799 8,671% 143,270
Chief Financial Officer and ' '
Treasurer of the Corporation 2006 - 57,308 1,485 - .- 58,793%
Chxemeanc:al Officer : SR : '
of the Bank

(n

i

3

4

Includes amounts paid under the Agreement described in “Agreements with Mr. R. Jones and
amounts paid under United Bank’s bonus program. -

Includes $27,082 paid on a life insurance contract owned by Mr. R. Jones and related tax
benefits pursuant 1o the 2001 Agreement described below in each of 2007 and 2006,
respectively; $608 premium reimbursed by United Bank on a long-term disability insurance
policy for Mr. R. Jones in each of 2007 and 2006, respectively; $11,346 and $11,190 '
contributed by United Bark for the account of Mr. R. Jones pursuant to United Bank’s
401¢k) Employee Incentive Savings Plan in 2007 and 2006, respectively; $6,938 and

$6,867 in fees for attendance a1 meetings of United Bank’s Board of Directors in 2007 and
2006, respectively; $82,030 accrued in 2007 and $77,382 accrued in 2006 to provide for
certain post-employment benefits pursuant to the 2001 Agreement described below; and
$2,250 and $2,200 in profit-sharing payments made in 2007 and 2006 for services in 2006
and 2005.

Includes $7,337 contributed by United Bank for the account of Mr. A. Jones pursuant to

" United Bank’s 401(k) Employee Incentive Savings Plan in 2007, and $1,334 in profit

sharing pavments made in 2007 for services in 2006. .

Mr. A. Jones became Cluef Financial Ofﬁcer and Tréasurer of the Corporation in August -
2006.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATiON Dlscussz

The Board of Directors of the Corporation has. nO( appmmed a separate committee for

determiniation of execuuve compensation generally. Each hon- dll‘EC(Ol‘ exccutive officer of the .
Corporation i§ also an officer of the Bank, and receives compensation for services to the Bank.
Executive compensation decisions made by the Bank are reviewed by the entire Board of Directors of




the Corporation, with the exception of determinations made with respect to the President and Chief
Executive Officer, in which he does not participate.

The Board of Directors of the Bank makes compensation determinations with respect to the
employees of the Bank, including those who are executive officers of the Corporation, based on the
recommendations of the Compensation Committee of the Bank’s Board of Directors (the
“Compensation Committee”). For executives other than the President and Chief Executive Officer, the
Compensation Committee acts on compensation recommendations made by the President and Chief
Executive Officer, with the objective of providing compensation competitive with that provnded by
comparable financial institutions.

The compensation of the President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. R. Jones, is determined.by
the Compensation Committee in accordance with the provisions of Mr. R. Jones’ employment,
agreement. See Agreements with Mr. R. Jones below. Mr. R. Jones’ compensation consists of a
specified annual salary, performance-based annual cash incentive compensation, long-term incentives
in the form of stock options and other equity awards, and other benefits. The Compensation Committee
based its determination of Mr. R. Jones’ compensation package as reflected in the employment
agreement on the advice and recommendation of a compensation consultant specializing in the banking
industry, with the intent of providing a compensation package designed to retain Mr. R. Jones’ services,
and motivate him to perform to the best of his ablities. Mr. R. Jones’ 2007 base salary reflects the
Board’s determination of the salary level necessary to meet this objective. As described below, long-
term incentives in the form of incentive stock options were granted to Mr. R. Jones in accordance with
the employment agreement as supplemented in 1999.

Compensation for executive officers other than the President and Chief Executive Officer
consists of annual base salary, annual cash bonuses and awards under the Corporation’s equity
incentive plans determined by the Compensation Committee, primarily on the recommendation of the
President and Chief Executive Officer. Base salary is determined at hiring and is reviewed annually
for increases based upon performance ¢valuations made by the President and Chief Executive Officer.
Annual cash bonuses are generally awarded as a percentage of base salary. The bonus is based on the
individual’s compensation, salary grade and individual performance and the performance of the Bank.

The Corporation is beginning the implementation of an incentive compensation plan, the
purpose of which is to provide appropriate levels of financial reward for the achievement of financial
measures of profitability and the creation of stockholder value. The stockholders of the Corporation
approved the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan) at the 2007 Annual Meeting and awards
under the 2007 Plan were made to certain officers of the Corporation beginning in October, 2007. Itis
contemplated that the percentage of incentive compensation to total compensation will increase over
time. The Corporation intends that the long-term incentives provided by the 2007 Plan will help the
Corporation recruit, retain and motivate its officers, directors and employees.

Agreements with Mr. R. Jones. The Bank and Mr. R. Jones entered into an Executive
Compensation Agreement as of May 28, 1993 (the “1993 Agreement”) which provided for certain
deferred compensation benefits. The 1993 Agreement was replaced in 2001 by the Supplemental
Compensation and Amendment Agreement (the “2001 Agreement”) ¢ dlscussed below, w:th amounts.
payable thereunder for 2006 being described under “All Other Compensat_ion in the Summary
Compensation Table above. ' ‘




Following discussions in the latter part of 1997, the Bank entered into an Employee Agreement
with Mr, R. Jones dated as of January 1, 1998 (the “Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agreement, Mr. R,
Jones has agreed to provide full-time professional services to the Bank in the capacity of President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, to the exclusion of other businesses or activities. The Agreement
was for an initial term from January 1, 1998 through December 31, 2001, and unless terminated will
automatically renew on January 1 of each year for a three-year term. The Agreement provides for a
specified annual salary, together with performance-based cash incentive compensation (“Bonus”)
determined by the Board of the Bank at the time of its annual review of Mr. R. Jones’ performance.
The Bonus under the Agreement:is calculated as a percentage of Mr. R. Jones® salary, ranging from
zero to 45%, based on attainment.of certain net income levels by the Bank. Salary and Bonus paid to
Mr. R. Jones for 2007 and 2006 are reflected in the Summary Compensation Table above. The
Agreement specifies that Bonus awards are intended to eventually be governed by an Executive
Incentive Compensation Plan applicable to certain officers of the Bank generally, as well as to the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank. The Agreement also provides for Mr. R. Jones to
receive long-term incentives at the discretion of the Board; benefits provided to-cmployees of the Bank
generally; reimbursement of reasonable and customary business expenses incurred by him in
connection with the performance of his duties; payment or reimbursement of certain fees for -
professional and other organizations in the Bank’s market area;-an automobile allowance; and vacation-
time. Asamended by the 2001 Agreement, the Agreement also provides for supplemental
compensation to be paid by the Bank to Mr. R. Jones upon retirement and in certain other
circumstances as set forth in the 2001 Agreement. -

The Agreement also provides generally that, in the event of Mr. R. Jones’ death, the Bank will
pay to his estate one quarter of his then-current annual salary plus a prorata portion of the Bonus-
otherwise payable to him, provided that in the event the Bank purchases life insurance with benefits
payable to Mr. R. Jones® beneficiary or estate equal to or in excess of the amounts payable in the event :
of death, no additional payments will be required; that, in the event of his disability, the Bank will pay
his salary and a prorata portion of Bonus until the earlier of twelve months after the date of disability .
or such time as disability benefits commence under a Bank-provided disability insurance policy; and "
that the Bank will pay Mr. R, Jones an amount cqual to monthly salary, benefits and prorata Bonus for
twelve months after termination of his employment if such termination is not for cause or a result.of ..
material change in Mr. R. Jones’ duties and responsibilities.

Under the Agreement, Mr. R. Jones has agreed that, during the term of his employment and for .
two years thereafter, he will not engage in any business similar of that of the Bank or any-of its-
affiliates or solicit any employee of the Bank or any of its affiliates to leave their employment with the
Bank. o . .

In a Supplemental Agreement with Mr. R. Jones dated as of March 9, 1999 (the “Supplemental
Agreement”), the Corporation and the Bank agreed that, subject to-his continued employment by the
Bank at such times, in each year begianing in 1999 and ending in 2002, the Corporation would grant
an incentive stock option (“ISO’") covering 8,160 shares of stock (the number of shares having been
adjusted to account for the 2-for-1 splits of Class A Stock in May 1999 and June 2004) to Mr. R.
Jones, exercisable at the then-current fair market value of Class A Stock, with each such ISO being
exercisable in five equal instaliments, the first of which vested on the date of the grant. The last grant
of options pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement was made in 2002.




On December 12, 2007, the Corporation and Mr. R. Jones entered into an amendment to the
Supplemental Agreement. The amendment to the Supplemental Agreement adds or modifies
provisions of the Supplemental Agreement to comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations and administrative guidance of the
Internal Revenue Service published thereunder.

The 2001 Agreement, which became effective as of January |, 2001, provides for annual
payments on z life insurance contract (*Insurance Payments”) in lieu of comparable payments
previously required under the 1993 Agreement. In addition to the benefits under.the Agreement and in
lieu of post-employment payments previously specified in the 1993 Agreement, the 2001 Agreement
provides for a normal retirement benefit of $102,000 per year to be paid to Mr. R. Jones for 20 years if
he remains employed by the Bank until normal retirement age; lump sum.payment to his beneficiary in
the event of his earlier death; and proration of the annual payment amount if his employment by the
Bank is terminated before normal retirement age for reasons other than his death, total and permanent
disability, cause, or his voluntary termination without required notice; with the prorated annual
payment amount increasing by 5% annual increments from 50% of the normal retirement benefitin ..
200! to 100% in 2011 and thereafter. The 2001 Agreement also provides that if Mr. R. Jones’
employment by the Bank is terminated within 36 months after a change of control of the Corporation,
as defined in the Agreement, he will receive a lump sum payment equal to (a) the discounted present.
value of the normal retirement benefit, plus (b) the discounted present value of the Insurance Payments
for the lesser of ten years or the number of years until he would reach the age of 65.

Agreement with Mr. A. Jones. |n September 2007, the Bank entered into an Employment
Agreement with Mr. A. Jones (the “2007 Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2007 Agreement, Mr. A. Jones
has agreed to provide full-time professional services to the Bank in the capacity of Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Bank, to the exclusion of other businesses or activities.
The 2007 Agreement is for an initial term of one year, and unless terminated will automatically renew
each year for a one-year term. The 2007 Agreement provides for a specified annual salary, together
with the opportunity to earn an annual incentive award in accordance with the Bank’s incentive plan.
Salary and bonus paid to Mr. A. Jones for 2007 and 2006 are reflected in the Summary Compensation *
Table above. - o : .

The 2007 Agreement also provides for (i) benefits provided to employees of the Bank
generally, (ii) an award of 505 restricted shares of the Corporation’s common stock under the 2007
Equity Incentive Plan, and (iii) payment of a cash-benefit equal to Mr. A. Jones’ then current base
salary in the event of termination by the Bank without cause or by Mr. A. Jones for good reason in
either case within two years of a change in control.

Under the 2007 Agreement, Mr. A. Jones has agreed that, during the term of his employment
and for one year thereafter, he will not engage in any business similar to that of the Bank or any of its
affiliates or solicit any employee of the Bank or any of its affiliates to leave their employment with the
Bank. e . _




Outstandlng Equity Awards at December 31, 2007

The following table shows stock options and stock awards outstandmg on December 31, 2007
held by Mr R. Jones and Mr. A. Jones as of such date,

Option Awards. o Stock Awards
Number of Number of ‘ . ] ‘
Securities Securities : . o Number of Market Value
Underlying Underlying ' _ Shares of of Shares of
Uanexercised Unexercised Optian’ Stock That Stock That
Options Options Exercise ) Have Not Have Not
. # # - - . Price  Option Expiration Vested - Vested
Name Exercisable  Unexercisable - (%) : Date {# $)
RobertR. Jones, Il 8,160 = -0- " n2s | 121222008
© 8,160 -0- ! 12.87 12122/2009
8,160 o 1565 121222010
8,160 -0 ’ -l6 25 12/22/2011
8,160 0 16.25 121222012
Allen Q. Jones, Jr. 505 9,342

OQutstanding Options under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth certain information at December 31, 2007 with respect to the
Corporation’s equity compensation plans that provide for the issuance of options, warrants or r:ghts to
purchase the Corporation’s securities.

Plan Category - Number of Securities Weighted Average Number of Securities
to be issued upon Exercise Exercise Price of Remaining Available
of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options for Future Issuance under
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Equity Compensation

. Plan (excluding securities
reflected in the first column)

Equity Compensation 53,600 514.38 . _ 170,400
Plans Approved by

Security Holders —

1998 Stack Option Plan

Equity Compensalion .2,000 o ©° 518.50 C 300,374
Plans Approved by . : :

Security Holders -

2007 Eqmty lncentu.e Plan

Equity Compensauon % R Y T . -

Plans Not Approved
by Security Hplders -
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Some Corporation and United Bank directors, officers, and principal stockholders, and their
associates and immediate families were customers of, or had transactions with, subsidiaries of the
Corporation in the ordinary course of business during 2007. In addition, some Corporation and United
Bank directors are directors, officers, trustees, or principal security holders of corporations or other

‘organizations that were customers of, or had transactions with, the Corporation or its subsidiaries in the
ordinary course of business during 2007. All outstanding loans and other transactions with the :
Corporation’s, and its subsidiary’s, directors, officers, and principal stockholders, and their associates 1
and immediate families, were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms, =
including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with
other persons, and when made did not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or present
other unfavorable features. In addition to banking and financial transactions, the Corporation and its
subsidiaries may have had additional transactions with, or may have used products or services of, |
various organizations of which directors of the Corporation or its subsidiaries are directors, officers, or
principal stockholders. Such transactions were on terms comparable to those which would have been
recorded with unaffiliated parties, and the amounts involved in such noncredit transactions have in no
case been material in relation to the business of the Corporation and its subsidiaries or to such other
organizations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

In January 2003, the Corporation established an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of
the Corporation composed of six directors. The members of the Audit Committee are Michae! R.
Andreoli, Dale M. Ash, L. Walter Crim, J. Wayne Trawick, William J. Justice and David D. Swift.
Although the Corporation is not subject to the listing standards of any stock exchange, including the
National Association of Securities Dealers (“NASD”), SEC regulations require disclosure of whether
Audit Committee members are “independent” as defined in the rules of some of those organizations,
Mrs. Ash, Mr. Crim, Mr. Trawick and Mr. Andreoli are “independent directors” as defined in NASD
Rule 4200(a)(15) adopted by the NASD in December 2003, and Messrs. Justice and Swift do not meet
that definition solely by virtue of their serving as officers of the Corporation, notwithstanding that none
is employed by the Corporation or its subsidiaries. Mrs. Ash and Mr. Andreoli are “audit comumttee
financial experts” as defined in SEC regulations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the
Corporation’s independent auditors. The Audit Committee is required to pre-approve audit and certain
non-audit services performed by the independent auditors. The Committee also assists the Board in
providing oversight over the integrity of the Corporation’s financial statements, the Corporation’s
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the performance of the
Corporation’s internal audit function. The Committee also meets periodically with the Corporation’s
independent auditors and the Bank’s internal auditors outside of the presence of the CorpOraUOn s
management, and possesses the authority to retain professionals to assist it with meeting its
responsibilities without consulting with management. The Committee is also responsible for receiving
and retaining complaints and concerns relating to accounting and auditing matters. The Audit
Committee met 5 times in 2007. The Audit Committee is governed by a written charter adopted by the
Board of Directors in January 2003, a copy of which was attached to the Corporation’s Proxy -
Statement dated April 4, 2006 with respect to the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and the integnty of the
reporting process, including the system of internal and disclosure controls. The independent auditors
are responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of those audited financial statements with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The pnmary responsibility of the Audit
Committee is to oversee the Corporation’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board. In so
doing the Audit Committee is entitled under its charter to rely on reports and other information from
sources it in good faith believes to be rehable mcludmg the Audn Commmee of the Board of
Directors of the Bank.

. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements of the
Corporation with management; has discussed with the independent auditor of the Corporation,
Mauldin and Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, L.L.C. (“Mauldin & Jenkins”), the matters
required to be discussed by SAS 61 (Codification of Statements on Auditing Standards, AU §380); and
has received the written disclosures and the Ietter from Mauldin & Jenkins required by Independence
Standards Board Standard No. | (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees) and discussed
with Mauldin & Jenkins their independence. Based on the review and discussion described above, the
Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors of the Corporation that the audited financial
statements should be included in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007 for filing with the SEC.

Michael R, Andreoli " Dale M., Ash L. Walter Crim
J. Wayne Trawick William J. Justice David D. Swifi

REPORTS UNDER SECTION 16 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) requires the
Corporation’s executive officers and directors, and any persons who own more than 10% of the Class
A Stock, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Security and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”). The Corporation believes that all requirements under Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act applicable to directors and executive officers of the Corporation were complied with by’
such persons during the last fiscal year. In making this disclosure, the Corporation has relied on written
representations by or on behalf of its directors and exccutive officers and copies of reports filed.

"EXPENSES OF SOLICITATION

The cost of soliciting proxies in the accompanying 'forin will be borne by the Corporation. In
addition to the use of the mails, proxies may be solicited by directors, officers, or other employees of
the Corporation or its subsidiaries personally, by telephone, or by telefacsimile. The Corporation does
not expect to pay any compensation for the solicitation of proxies, but will reimburse brokers,
custodians, or other persons holding stock in their names:or in the names of noniinees, for their
reasonable expenses in sending proxy materials to principals and obtaining their instructions.




STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Stockholders are entitled to submit proposals on matters appropriate for stockholder action
consistent with regulations of the SEC. In order to be included in the Corporation’s proxy statement
and form of proxy relating to its 2009 Annual Meeting pursuant 1o Rule [4a-8 promulgated by the SEC
(*Rule 14a-8"), proposals from stockholders to be presented at the 2009 Annual Meeting must be
received by the Secretary of the Corporation no later than December 8, 2008. The date after which
notice of a stockholder proposal submitted outside of the processes of Rule 14a-8 will be considered
untimely is February 23, 2009. If notice of such a stockholder proposal is received by the Corporation
on or after February 23, 2009, then the Corporation’s proxy for the 2009 Annual Me¢ting may confer
discretionary authority to vote on such matter without dlscussmn of such matter in the proxy statement
for the 2009 Annual Meeting.

AUDITORS-

Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, L.L.C. (*Mauldin & Jenkins™), was selecled -
as the Corporation’s auditor on July 2, 2004 and has served as such through the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007. Mauldin & Jenkins has been selected by the Audit Committee to continue 10
serve in such capacity for the current fiscal year. A representative of Mauldin & Jenkins is expected to
be present at the Meeting and will have the opportunity to make a statement if he so desires. The
Mauldin & Jenkins representative also is expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Audit Fees. Mauldin & Jenkins has billed the Corporation aggregate fees totaling $85,568 for fiscal
year 2007, and $77,929 for fiscal year 2006, for professional services rendered for the audit of the
Corporation’s annual financial statements and the reviews of the financial statements included in the
Corporation’s Forms 10-Q and 10-K for 2007 and for services that are normally provided by Mauldin
& Jenkins in connection with statutory and regulatory filings.

Audit-Related Fees, Mauldin & Jenkins billed the Corporation aggregate fees totaling $12,452 for
fiscal year 2007, and aggregate fees totaling $9,151 for fiscal year 2006, for assurance and related
services that were reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company’s
financial statements, including audit of employee benefit plan financial statements.

Tax Fees. Crowe Chizek & Company LLC (“Crowe Chizek™) billed the Company aggregate fees
1otaling $7,1 15 for fiscal year 2007, and aggregate fees totaling $30,180 for fiscal year 2006, for
professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning, including preparation
of federal and state income tax retumns and quarterly estimates. Carr, Riggs and Ingram billed the
Company fees totaling $15,331 for fiscal year 2007.

All Other Fees. Crowe Chizek billed the Company aggregate fees totaling $72,826 for fiscal year 2007
for services. other than those described in the three immediately preceding paragraphs. These fees were
in association with Sarbanes-Oxley Act comphance :

Audit Committee Preapproval Pohc:es. The A'Udll Committee 01: the Board of Directors has adt;pted
preapproval policies and procedures with respect to engagements of Mauldin & Jenkins in accordance
with the Audit Commitiee charter.




Independence. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has considered whether the provision
by Mauldin & Jenkins of the services covered by the fees other than the audit fees is compatible with
maintaining Mauldin & Jenkins’ independence and believes that it is compatible.

OTHER BUSINESS

Management currently knows of no other business to be brought before the Meeting. [f other .
business is brought properly before the Meeting, the accompanying Proxy will be voted in the
discretion of the persons designated in such Proxy, unless the *Authority Withheld” box has been
checked. I '

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

The Corporation will furnish to any stockholder upon written request, without charge, a copy of
the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the financial statements and schedules
thereto, required to be filed with the SEC. Requests for the above information should be directed to: -
Stockholder Relations Department, United Bancorporation of Alabama, Inc., P. O. Box 8, Atmore,
Alabama 36504. ' )
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